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-BUSINESS PROFILE
EHBN

Renco Holdings Group Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in (a) the manufacture and sales of a broad
range of printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), (b) the carrying out
of treasury investments, including investment in securities and
other related activities, and (c) the rendering of financial services
including asset management, investment and other consultancy
related services.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the consolidated annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

As we moved towards the end of last year, we have generally
recovered the price level we have since lost during the period
from January to August last year from most of our major
customers but we have suffered substantial loss during the said
period as price increase needed to be done gradually. Despite
this achievement, unfortunately the worldwide shortage of chips
have started in the last quarter of 2021 and is still continuing.
This has caused some of our major customers, especially in the
automobile sector, to cut back their order loading as they are
unable to get sufficient supplies of chips in order to fulfil their
production. This downturn continued in the first and second
quarter of this year and it seems the chips shortage will not
improve until the end of this year.

Going forward, as the European economy may be affected if
the current Russian-Ukrainian war does not end in the short
term, there will be uncertainties in our business because some
of our major customers are located in Europe. To mitigate this
uncertainties, efforts are being made to obtain more businesses
domestically and in Asia as well.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRERE

For treasury investments segment and financial services segment
of the Group, the financial results of which unfortunately
continued to suffer a significant loss during the Year mainly due
to (i) the provision for impairment losses on several overdue
receivables arising from the financial assistances provided by the
Group (the “Overdue Financial Assistances”) and additional
provision for impairment losses on certain overdue receivables
under the litigation proceedings on the Overdue Financial
Assistances caused by the current worldwide capital market
fluctuations and the adverse impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak;
and (ii) the substantial fair value losses arising from the adverse
market price movements in the listed securities held by the
Group at the fair value through its profit and loss. Meanwhile,
the regulated activities under section 127(1) of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO") in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") and the corporate restructuring business
are facing difficulties in developing their businesses under such
complicated and challenging situations during the Year.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Surrounded by the unstable investment environment and
financial market, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) and the management of the Company considered
that the Group should continue to concentrate more on
improving the risk management and control and compliance
management in relation to the inflow of sustainable returns
while exploring the opportunities in assets management
and other financial services related businesses, and also on
enhancing the recoverability of the transactions and maintaining
sufficient level of cash flow.

Considering the strategic upgrade and the implementation of
new strategic plan due to the changes in the major shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”), the Group has been
actively diversifying its business and will continue to better
utilize its available resources to develop and upgrade the
traditional manufacturing business in PCBs, to maintain the
treasury investments and financial services, and to explore the
scope of business for identifying new investment and business
development opportunities, including, but not limited to,
the broad application of artificial intelligence technology in
telecommunications, the construction of intelligent cities and
financial technology.
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Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been implemented across the PRC
and Hong Kong since January 2020 which caused temporary
disruption in the Group's business. Following the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and recent regulations and policies
released by the SAR government of Hong Kong, it is anticipated
that the travelling arrangement between the PRC and Hong
Kong may not be resumed in the short time and the sales and
operations of the manufacturing segment and financial services
segment of the Group may not possibly be restored gradually in
the year of 2022.

As at the date of this report, the Group has acknowledged the
material effect on the financial results of the Group caused
by the COVID-19 outbreak which may continue to hinder
the repayment of the debts from the borrowers of the loans
and issuers of the bonds to the Group in the coming vyears,
resulting in additional provision for impairment loss for the loan
receivables and note receivables. The Group will actively place
utmost importance on pandemic prevention and control,
closely monitor the day-to-day operations and management
of businesses to reduce the adverse impacts on the Group's
operations and financial performance caused by the pandemic.

and

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to the management team and all staff for their
dedication and commitment to make valuable contributions to
the Group during the Year and to thank all our shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”), business partners and
customers for their continuous support. With our combined
we are looking forward to overcoming all those
challenges and to achieving the Group’s success in the years to
come.

efforts,

Li Yongjun
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 May 2022

Chairman’s Statement
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-MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEwmRDH

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of HK$535.43
million, representing an increase of approximately 92.89% as
compared with the total revenue of HK$277.58 million for the
corresponding year in 2020. Such an increase in revenue was
mainly due to the increase in sales volume from manufacturing
segment of the Group and a reduction of loss attributable to
the treasury investments segment. The total revenue of the
Group for the Year represented by the manufacturing segment
amounted to HK$551.76 million (2020: HK$461.03 million).
The loss for the Year represented by the treasury investments
segment was HK$16.33 million (2020: HK$183.45 million).

The Group reported a loss before income tax of approximately
HK$390.42 million (2020: HK$1,036.99 million), which
was mainly attributable to the unrealised fair value losses
on financial investments held for trading through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"”) of approximately HK$57.27 million (2020:
HK$256.53 million) and the impairment losses on trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivables and note
receivables of HK$244.83 million in total in respect of the Group
(2020: HK$308.12 million).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$451.59 million, as compared
with the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$1,029.97 million for the corresponding year
in 2020. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately 20.45 HK cents, as
compared with that of 46.65 HK cents for the corresponding
year in 2020.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend any declaration of
final dividend payment for the Year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing business

During the Year, the principal business of the Group’s
manufacturing segment remained unchanged and was involved
in the manufacture and sale of a wide range of PCBs.

Compared to the revenue for the corresponding year of 2020,
the sales of goods in the Group’s manufacturing segment
increased by approximately 19.68% from approximately
HK$461.03 million in 2020 to approximately HK$551.76 million
in 2021 whereas its gross profit margin increased from 9.45% in
2020 to 10.44% in 2021.

Treasury investments

During the Year, the Group's treasury investments team
continued to make effective use of its available financial
resources in monitoring and making investment/disposal on a
wide variety of financial assets including investments in listed
equity securities, investments in funds, and the provision of
financial assistance to independent third parties.

For the Year, the Group’s treasury investments segment recorded
a loss of approximately HK$314.40 million (2020: HK$926.80
million) in the form of realised and unrealised fair value losses
and interest income. The substantial fair value losses arising
from the adverse market price changes of listed securities held
by the Group were mainly due to the downturn of the Hong
Kong stock market and the downward share price performance
of the individual listed securities held by the Group during the
Year. The provision for impairment losses were arisen as a result
of the increase in credit-impaired receivables of the treasury
investments segment.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R

Financial services

Renco Investments Limited (“Renco Investments”) held the
licenses to conduct Type 4 (Advising on Securities) and Type
9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under the SFO
during the Year while Renco Capital Partners Limited (“Renco
Capital”) held the licenses to conduct Type 1 (Dealing in
Securities) and Type 6 (Advising on Corporate Finance) regulated
activities under the SFO from 1 January 2021 to 23 February
2021 respectively. Renco Investments and Renco Capital, which
are both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
actively participated in asset management, consultancy services,
corporate solution services and debt, asset and shareholding
restructuring business during the last three years.

Due to severe business competition and for cost-saving purpose,
the Board and the management of the Group had determined
to submit a request to cease carrying on Renco Capital’s
businesses in Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) and Type 6 (Advising
on Corporate Finance) regulated activities pursuant to section
195(1)(d) of the SFO. Subsequent to such submission, the Group
received a confirmation letter dated 25 February 2021 from the
Securities and Futures Commission, stating that the licenses
of Renco Capital for Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) and Type 6
(Advising on Corporate Finance) regulated activities under the
SFO were revoked with effect from 24 February 2021.
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Asset management

During the Year, the Group continued to act as a general
partner of several offshore private funds launched by the Group
which were related to investments under the concept of One
Belt One Road (the "OBOR"). Besides, the Group has set up
several offshore private funds (the “HKBridge Funds”) for
investments in listed equity securities investments and unlisted
debt investments.

Due to the global macroeconomic downturn since 2019, some
limited partners of several offshore private funds had withdrawn
their contribution of capital, and the general partners in 2020
carried out a series of restructuring schemes for the relevant
offshore private funds. As at the date of this report, among the
total of 12 investment funds established by the Group, 8 were
related to the OBOR and 4 were related to the HKBridge Funds.
The aggregated amount of assets under management up to the
date of this report was approximately HK$2.62 billion.

The Group had gradually built up its credential in the asset
management business and established a solid foundation
for further development in the years to come. Up to 31
December 2021, the Group made a total sum of original capital
contributions of approximately HK$1.38 billion (2020: HK$1.38
billion) to some of the above funds.

Investment, consultancy and corporation solution
services

For investment, consultancy and corporation solution services,
the Group built up a professional investment team with
investment banking and corporate finance experience and
exposure in order to improve the efficiency and quality of
services.

During the Year, the Group did not engage in any consultancy
and corporate solution services due to the current capital market
fluctuations and the adverse impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations through a
combination of internally generated cash flows, shareholders’
equity and borrowings from banks and the independent third
parties.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total equity of
approximately HK$753.92 million (2020: HK$1,189.19 million)
and net debts (trade payables, other payables and accruals,
loan from a related party, loan from a Director, and borrowings
less bank balances and deposits) of approximately HK$1,575.85
million (2020: HK$1,436.74 million),
ratio, defined as net debts over total equity plus net debts, of
67.64% (2020: 54.71%).

representing a gearing

The Group’s net current assets of approximately HK$10.95
million (2020: HK$880.40 million) consisted of current assets of
approximately HK$1,728.54 million (2020: HK$1,972.10 million)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$1,717.59 million
(2020: HK$1,091.70 million),
1.01 (2020: 1.81).

representing a current ratio of

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets consisted
of approximately HK$36.33 million (2020: HK$28.46 million)
held as bank balances and deposits,
denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB.

which were mainly

The Group’s manufacturing segment’s current assets also
consisted of approximately HK$163.40 million (2020:
HK$123.86 million) held as trade receivables. Debtors turnover
days was approximately 108 days (2020: 98 days).

The Group's inventories increased from approximately HK$55.22
million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$56.70
million as at 31 December 2021. Inventory turnover days in the
Group’s manufacturing segment was approximately 42 days
(2020: 48 days). Trade payables increased from approximately
HK$137.59 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$231.20 million as at 31 December 2021. Creditors turnover

days was approximately 171 days (2020: 121 days).
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Interest-bearing Borrowings

The bank loans were secured by certain buildings and right-
of-use assets related to leasehold land, corporate guarantee of
the Company and personal guarantee of a Director during the
Year. As at 31 December 2021, bank loans of approximately
HK$144.42 million (2020: HK$131.86 million) carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 2.36% to 3.85% per annum (2020:
0.85% to 4.35% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, other loan obtained from an associate
amounting to approximately HK$177.94 million was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable in 2024. The remaining
balance of other loans was secured by equity interests in certain
subsidiaries and an associate of the Group, manufacturing
segment and other trade and loan receivables and financial
assets at FVTPL, bearing interest at a rate for the range of 3%
to 8% per annum (2020: 3% to 8% per annum), of which
HK$672.71 million (2020: HK$200.00 million) and HK$Nil
(2020: HK$478.19 million) were repayable within the next
twelve months and beyond the twelve months respectively.

Apart from the secured borrowings described above, there
were loans advanced by Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok”),
an executive Director, of HK$103.71 million at an effective
interest rate of 7% per annum (2020: 7% per annum) which
are repayable on demand. Furthermore, there was another
loan advanced by Mr. Liu Tingan (“Mr. Liu”), who resigned
as an executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company on 6 April 2020 but remained to act as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, for an amount of HK$2.95
million which is non-interest bearing and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The financial assistances provided by Mr. Cheok
and Mr. Liu were connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of the
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). However, they are fully exempted from
the reporting, announcement, and approval from independent
Shareholders requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules because
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or better and
are not secured by the assets of the Group.
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Subscription and/or Holding of Interest in Funds
Set out below are the particulars of the Group’s major
unlisted fund investments:

(a) Partners Special Opportunities Fund I (the

“Partners Fund”)

On 25 January 2017, the Group contributed
HK$200.00 million into the Partners Fund. The
Partners Fund is managed by Grand Highlight
Investments Limited (the “Grand Highlight”)
(whereas Partners Investment Management Limited
tendered its resignation as the manager of the
Partners Fund with effect from 4 September 2019),
with the objective of generating long term capital
appreciation for its investors. The subscription of the
Partners Fund constituted a disclosable transaction
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and further
details of which were set out in the Company’'s
announcements dated 25 January 2017 and 22
October 2019 respectively.

According to the placing memorandum of the
Partners Fund, the investment objective of the
Partners Fund is to generate long term capital
appreciation for its shareholders and the Partners
Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective
primarily by investing in debt securities or equity
securities of both private and listed companies
in Hong Kong or elsewhere or in other financial
instruments as the investment adviser(s) may
determine.
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With reference to the investment objectives of the
Partners Fund and the extensive experience and
skills of the directors of the Partners Fund and the
manager, the Board believes that the subscription of
the Partners Fund will enable the Group to capture
investment opportunities and further diversify the
Group's investment portfolio. The subscription is
also in alignment with the Group’s expansion plan
on carrying out financial investments by investing in
high-yield equity and debt products to maximise the
long-term investment return of the Group.

In August 2019, the Group obtained joint control of
the Partners Fund through the Group’s ownership of
50% equity interest in Grand Highlight. Accordingly,
the Partners Fund had been re-classified under
“Investments in joint ventures” in the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements since then. The
underlying investment in the Partners Fund is a bond
issued by an independent third party of the Group
(the “Bond lIssuer”), the maturity date of which
fell on 20 December 2020. Grand Highlight, the
general partner of the Partners Fund, had approached
the Bond Issuer to attempt for collecting back the
aforesaid investment or to discuss on the extension
arrangement for the bond. As at the date of this
report, both parties were still negotiating certain
terms of arrangement but had not reached consensus
on any arrangement yet.

In the opinion of the management of the Group,
the Group, or together with Grand Highlight, may
conduct debt restructuring arrangement for the
underlying investment of the Partners Fund, and/
or proceed with litigation proceedings against the
Bond Issuer if there is no substantial progress in the
coming months. Further announcement(s) regarding
any significant developments on the investment in
the Partners Fund will be published as and when
appropriate.
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Pursuant to the deed of undertakings and relevant
extension agreement executed on 22 April 2017
between the Bond Issuer and the Group, the Bond
Issuer and its related person as the guarantor should
have paid the Group an extra interest of 8% since
April 2017 (since July 2019: 2%) per annum on the
Group’s contribution to the Partners Fund on or
before 20 December 2020 but such extra interest
was still overdue during the Year. The outstanding
amount of receivables was recorded under the trade
receivables in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Since the current financial performance and the
status of the business operations of the Bond Issuer
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was worse
than that of the previous year, no settlement was
received during the Year and the Bond Issuer was
unable to meet the repayment deadline under the
plan. Default payment by the Bond Issuer caused
significant increase in credit risk on the above trade
receivables when compared with the same of the
previous year. It was therefore considered as credit-
impaired under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (the "HKFRS"”) 9 as at 31 December 2021.
Accordingly, the management of the Group provided
further significant impairment loss of HK$15.49
million for the trade receivables from the Bond Issuer
and the carrying amount of the trade receivables as
at 31 December 2021 was HK$Nil (2020: HK$15.49
million). The accumulated impairment loss on the
bond receivables held by the Partners Fund amounted
to HK$60.41 million in total.
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(b) Huarong International Fortune Innovation LP

(the “Huarong Fund”)

On 10 April 2017, the Group contributed HK$340.00
million in the Huarong Fund as one of the limited
partners. The Huarong Fund is managed by Huarong
International Capital Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The net proceeds raised by the Huarong Fund
were used to acquire not more than HK$2.23 billion
of shares in Fullshare Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(HKSE Stock Code: 607), and such other assets with
mutual consent by all limited partners of the Huarong
Fund. The contributions made to the Huarong Fund
constituted a disclosable transaction under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules and further details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated
23 December 2016, 8 December 2017, 11 December
2017, 26 March 2018, 3 July 2018, 2 October 2018,
3 January 2019, 16 August 2019 and 22 October
2019 respectively.

Pursuant to a share charge agreement entered into
on 22 March 2017 with two chargors which were
independent third parties of the Group, 69,120,000
shares in Zall Smart Commerce Group Limited (HKSE
Stock Code: 2098) (the “Zall Shares”) were provided
in favour of the Group’s subscription of interest
in the Huarong Fund as security for the full and
punctual performance of all the secured liabilities.
The Group recognised the fair value of Zall Shares of
HK$293.00 million as derivative financial assets as at
31 December 2018 and disposed of all Zall Shares in
2019.
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(c)

As at 31 December 2021, with reference to the
substantial fair value losses arising from the adverse
market price changes of the listed securities held by
the Huarong Fund, the fair value of the investment
in the Huarong Fund was zero (2020: zero) if the
distribution of the net sale proceeds of the Huarong
Fund was calculated.

The Group together with other plaintiffs filed and
served the statement of claim to the High Court
of Hong Kong on 9 March 2021. As at the date of
this report, the Group was undergoing litigation
proceedings in connection with the Huarong Fund.
Further announcement(s) regarding any significant
developments on the litigation matters will be
published as and when appropriate.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Natural
Resource Fund LP (the “Natural Resource Fund”)
On 14 May 2017 and 12 March 2018, the Group
contributed HK$220.00 million and HK$375.00
million respectively in the Natural Resource Fund,
while the Group also acted as the general partner
of the Natural Resource Fund, as the only second-
tier limited partner. Further details of the Natural
Resource Fund were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 14 May 2017, 12 March 2018
and 22 October 2019 respectively.

According to the amended and restated limited
partnership agreement of the Natural Resource
Fund, the primary purpose of the Natural Resource
Fund is to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity, equity-related
investments, fixed income securities, debt instruments
and loans in connection with energy, mining or
agricultural businesses, or infrastructure relating to
any of the foregoing.
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In addition to being a general partner, on 16
May 2019, following the withdrawal of the first-
tier limited partner, the Group has become the
only limited partner in the Natural Resource Fund.
According to the accounting policy of the Group,
the investment in the Natural Resource Fund was
derecognised from the financial assets at FVTPL,
and the assets, liabilities and returns of the Natural
Resource Fund had been consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements since then.

At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of
the Natural Resource Fund, the Natural Resource
Fund (i) had a loan receivable from an independent
third party of HK$220.00 million with interest
rate of 6% per annum; and (ii) held a bond with
principal amount of HK$375.00 million issued by an
independent third party, which was interest-bearing
at 10% per annum and whose maturity date fell on
12 September 2020 (the “Bond 1”). The carrying
amount of Bond | was recorded as note receivables of
approximately HK$412.00 million in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2019.

Facing the adverse impacts brought by the current
worldwide capital market fluctuations and the
COVID-19 outbreak, the Group had partially
withdrawn the contribution of HK$220.00 million
from the Natural Resource Fund on 29 May 2020 and
received a distribution in kind of the loan receivables
with carrying amount of HK$231.60 million in total in
order to lower the investment risk, which was offset
with the Group’s borrowing immediately.
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On 29 May 2020, in order to enhance the investment
quality of the fund, the general partner and manager
of the Natural Resource Fund together with that
of the Fixed Income Fund (as defined below) had
decided to adjust the investment strategies and
entered into a series of restructuring and debt
assignment agreements with several funds (the
“"OBOR Funds Restructuring”). Pursuant to the
restructuring and debt assignment agreements,
each of the Natural Resource Fund and the Fixed
Income Fund acquired 50% interest of Hong Kong
Bridge High-Tech Investment Fund, L.P. (the “High-
Tech Investment Fund”) and HKBridge Special
Situation Fund, L.P. (the “Special Situation Fund”)
respectively; and the Natural Resource Fund acquired
100% interest of Hong Kong Bridge One Belt
One Road M&A Fund, L.P. (the "M&A Fund”), by
respectively assigning Bond | and Bond Il (as defined
below) to the original limited partners of the High-
Tech Investment Fund, the Special Situation Fund and
the M&A Fund and became the new limited partners
of these funds. The OBOR Funds Restructuring took
retrospective effect on 1 January 2020.

Details of the investments of the M&A Fund and
the High-Tech Investment Fund are set out in the
paragraphs headed “(e) Hong Kong Bridge One Belt
One Road M&A Fund LP” and “(f) Hong Kong Bridge
High-Tech Investment Fund LP" below respectively.
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Upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
each of the capitals of the High-Tech Investment Fund
and the Special Situation Fund had been contributed
as to 50% by the Natural Resource Fund and 50%
by the Fixed Income Fund respectively since 1
January 2020. Subsequently, the Fixed Income Fund
transferred its 50% interest in the Special Situation
Fund to the Natural Resource Fund on 17 July 2020
(such transfer took retrospective effect on 1 January
2020). The Natural Resource Fund has become the
only limited partner of the Special Situation Fund
since then.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Natural Resource Fund, the general partner continued
to look for a new first-tier limited partner to expand
the fund investing activities. The Board considered
that all the subscriptions of interests in the Natural
Resource Fund were beneficial to the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole, by generating the returns
from medium to long term investments and to
enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

As at the date of this report, the Natural Resource
Fund held 100% interest in the M&A Fund and the
Special Situation Fund respectively as the only limited
partner of each fund.
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(d) Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Fixed

Income Fund LP (the “Fixed Income Fund”)

On 14 May 2017 and 12 March 2018, the Group
contributed HK$220.00 million and HK$375.00
million respectively to the Fixed Income Fund, while
the Group also acted as the general partner of the
Fixed Income Fund, as the second-tier limited partner.
Further details of the Fixed Income Fund were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 14
May 2017, 12 March 2018 and 22 October 2019
respectively.

According to the amended and restated limited
partnership agreement of the Fixed Income Fund,
the primary purpose of the Fixed Income Fund is to
achieve long-term capital appreciation, principally
through investing in fixed income securities, debt
instruments and loans, including but without
l[imitation to the loans, convertible bonds, fixed
income securities, money market and convertible
securities.

In addition to being a general partner, on 16 May
2019, following the withdrawal of the first-tier
limited partner, the Group has become the only
limited partner in the Fixed Income Fund. According
to the accounting policy of the Group, the investment
in the Fixed Income Fund was derecognised from the
financial assets at FVTPL, and the assets, liabilities
and returns of the Fixed Income Fund have been
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements
since then.
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At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of
the Fixed Income Fund, the Fixed Income Fund (i) had
a loan receivable from an independent third party of
HK$220.00 million with an interest rate of 6% per
annum; and (ii) held a bond with principal amount
of HK$375.00 million issued by an independent third
party, which is interest-bearing at 10% per annum
and whose maturity date fell on 12 September 2020
(the “Bond I1”). The carrying amount of Bond I
was recorded as note receivables of approximately
HK$409.00 million in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

Facing the adverse impacts brought by the current
worldwide capital market fluctuations and the
COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has partially
withdrawn the contribution from the Fixed Income
Fund to the extent of HK$220.00 million on 29
May 2020 in order to lower the investment risk and
received a distribution in kind of the loan receivables
with carrying amount of HK$230.73 million, which
was offset with the Group’s borrowing immediately.

On 29 May 2020, in order to enhance the quality of
the investments, the general partner and manager
of the Fixed Income Fund decided to adjust the
investment strategies and underwent the OBOR Funds
Restructuring.

Details of the OBOR Funds Restructuring are set out
“(c) Hong Kong Bridge One
Belt One Road Natural Resource Fund LP” above.

in the paragraph headed

i =

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN R RO

REAEERAE—HNEREBA (F
ItE #7152 B3 B 7 W o B & 1 61 4)
2R BEWmER)REBIE=A
KNS HA220.0088HE 7T
EA6%  W(iNREBAEREBIIF=
HE1TH375.008 BB TES (8
Hi) FEFEE10%  DENAW
APPERE_SE_EFAA+Z
B ZZE—hE+ZHA=+—H
BHMBRERZ EREEFRESIN
BRE{E49409.00F B H T o

HHEARKEATHEERTTE
REREBEMEENIAREE X
EREER_EEFRB -+ NH
REEWZEEFIEIN220.0088
BITHNERES  UBRBRERRE
BIRNES T URREXSENERE
BEAR230.73 BB THNRKER
BUYMBRIEEBIAEBENE

=+
o

N_EZEFRBZ+NHE AR
SEERENEE BETKRmES
SR %A%)\*Dﬁ%ﬁ.ﬁg?ﬂ B R
RS — % —REEEMH-

—H—RESEEFFEEINETLE
BRENOBB—H—RERERES
ERGBAER -

—E-F5R MRAZREERRAE 23



Management Discussion and Analysis

B R

24

Subsequently, the Natural Resource Fund transferred
50% of its interest in the High-Tech Investment Fund
to the Fixed Income Fund on 17 July 2020 (such
transfer took retrospective effect on 1 January 2020).
The Fixed Income Fund has become the only limited
partner of the High-Tech Investment Fund since then.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Fixed Income Fund, the general partner continues
to look for a new first-tier limited partner to expand
the fund investing activities. The Board considered
that all the subscriptions of interests in the Fixed
Income Fund were beneficial to the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole, by generating the returns
from medium to long term investments and to
enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

As at the date of this report, the Fixed Income Fund

held 100% interest in the High-Tech Investment Fund
as the only limited partner.
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(e) Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road M&A Fund

LP (the “M&A Fund”)

At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of
the M&A Fund, the M&A Fund had a loan receivable
from an independent third party of HK$200.00
million which was interest-bearing at 5% per
annum and a further interest-free financing amount
of approximately HK$18.00 million to the same
borrower (the “Borrower”). The maturity dates of
these loans were further extended to 31 December
2022 on 31 December 2021 (the “Loan 1”). The Loan
| was secured by the Borrower’s interest in certain
bonds issued by China Resources and Transportation
Group Limited (“CRTG"”), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 269).

With reference to the investment objectives of
the M&A Fund, the purpose of its activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity or equity-
related investments or fixed income debt
investment or convertible bonds in overseas energy
resources, agriculture, high-tech industry, advanced
manufacturing and service industries and/or other
investments in connection with the foregoing or the
Belt and Road Initiative of the PRC at the discretion of
the general partner.

Upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Natural Resource Fund has become the only
second-tier limited partner of the M&A Fund. Under
such circumstances and the accounting policy of the
Group, its assets (including the Loan | which was
recorded as loan receivables), liabilities and returns
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements since the Group was the general partner
and the only second-tier limited partner of the M&A
Fund.

(e)
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(7)

The M&A Fund had not received the settlement of
the outstanding amounts due from the Borrower
during the Year as the Borrower was still suffering
from the adverse impacts caused by the COVID-19
outbreak. The recoverable value of the bonds issued
by CRTG as the securities decreased significantly
due to the poor financial performance of CRTG as
disclosed in its interim report 2021 published on 30
December 2021. Having considered the worsened
situation, the general partner and the manager of
the M&A Fund decided to provide further impairment
loss of HK$35.19 million in respect of the Loan |
for the Year according to the HKFRS 9. The carrying
value of the Loan | after the accumulated impairment
loss of HK$100.53 million as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$150.80 million (2020:
HK$185.96 million).

Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech Investment Fund LP
(the “High-Tech Investment Fund”)

The High-Tech Investment Fund entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with four independent
third parties to acquire 64,148,063 shares of the
SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3 (as defined below).
Details of the subscription of interest in the High-
Tech Investment Fund were set out in the paragraph
headed “(Il) Subscription and/or Holding of Listed
Securities” under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this report.

On 12 September 2017, the High-Tech Investment
Fund as lender and the Borrower entered into the
loan agreement to lend the total principal amount
of HK$80.00 million with an interest rate of 5% per
annum and further interest-free financing amount of
approximately HK$4.15 million with the expiry dates
of the loans being further extended to 31 December
2022 on 31 December 2021 (the “Loan Il”). The
Loan Il was secured by the Borrower’s interest in
certain bonds issued by CRTG.
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With reference to the investment objectives of
the High-Tech Investment Fund, the purpose of its
activities is primarily to achieve long-term capital
appreciation, principally through investing in equity,
equity-related investments or equivalent, fixed income
securities, debt securities and loans or convertible
bonds in connection with hi-tech industries and/or
other investments in connection with the foregoing
as determined at the general partner’s discretion,
temporary investments and entering into options,
futures and derivatives contracts for the purpose
of hedging the equity, currency and interest rate
exposure for investing in a portfolio of companies.

Upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Fixed Income Fund has become the only limited
partner of the High-Tech Investment Fund. Under
such circumstances and accounting policy of the
Group, the assets (including the Loan Il which was
recorded as loan receivables), liabilities and returns
of the High-Tech Investment Fund have been
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements
since the subscription of interest in the High-Tech
Investment Fund.

The High-Tech Investment Fund had not received the
outstanding amounts from the Borrower during the
Year. Having considered the worsened situation and
the aforesaid reasons, the general partner and the
manager of the High-Tech Investment Fund decided
to provide further impairment loss of HK$13.64
million in respect of the Loan Il for the Year according
to the HKFRS 9. The carrying value of the Loan Il after
the accumulated impairment loss of HK$38.95 million
as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$58.43 million (2020: HK$72.05 million).
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(g) Hong Kong Bridge Landmark Investment Fund LP

(the “Landmark Fund”)

The capital of the Landmark Fund in the amount of
HK$220.00 million was contributed by the Group
as the only second-tier limited partner since 27
December 2017. The Landmark Fund subscribed for
a bond issued by the Borrower for the total principal
amount of HK$200.00 million with an interest rate
of 5% per annum, together with further interest-
free financing amount of approximately HK$18.00
million on the same date (the “Bond IllI"”). The Bond
Il was secured by the Borrower’s interest in certain
bonds for HK$100.00 million issued by CRTG with the
maturity date of the Bond Ill being further extended
to 31 December 2022 on 31 December 2021. The
subscription of interest in Landmark Fund did not
constitute a disclosable transaction under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transaction contemplated under the
subscription were less than 5% as at the date of
subscription.

With reference to the investment objectives of
the Landmark Fund, the purpose of its activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in convertible debts,
equity securities, equity-related securities, debt
securities, loans as well as engaging in bridge and
mezzanine financing and entering into repurchase
agreements or any other investment in connection
with the foregoing at the general partner’s discretion.

Since the Group was the general partner and the only
second-tier limited partner of the Landmark Fund, its
assets, liabilities and returns had been consolidated
into the Group’s financial statements.
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(h)

The Landmark Fund had not received the outstanding
amounts due from the Borrower during the Year.
After having considered the worsened situation and
the aforesaid reasons, the general partner and the
manager of the Landmark Fund decided to provide
further impairment loss of HK$35.03 million for the
Bond Il according to the HKFRS 9. The carrying value
of the Bond Ill after the accumulated impairment
loss of HK$100.07 million as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$150.10 million (2020:
HK$185.10 million).

HKBridge Absolute Return Fund LP (the
“Absolute Return Fund”)

The Absolute Return Fund entered into the sale
and purchase agreement with four independent
third parties to acquire 24,397,946 shares of the
SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2 (as defined below).
Details of the subscription of interest in the Absolute
Return Fund were set out in the paragraph headed
“(Il) Subscription and/or Holding of Listed Securities”
under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Absolute Return Fund, the purpose of its activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity securities of
a portfolio of companies in the industry of inflight
wireless network engineering and services with their
main business in Hong Kong, temporary investments
and entering into options, futures and derivatives
contracts for the purpose of hedging the equity,
currency and interest rate exposure for investing in
the portfolio investment.

(h)
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Upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Group held 100% (2020: 100%) of interest
in the Absolute Return Fund. The unrealised fair
value loss of the equity investments of the Absolute
Return Fund had been consolidated into the Group's
financial statements since the Group obtained the
majority interest in the Absolute Return Fund.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road
Infrastructure Investment Fund Il LP (the
“Infrastructure Fund Ill”)

The capital of the Infrastructure Fund Il in the
amount of HK$150.00 million was contributed by the
Group as the only second-tier limited partner since 12
March 2018. The Infrastructure Fund Il subscribed for
a bond issued by an independent third party to the
Group, of the total principal amount of HK$150.00
million with an interest rate of 10% per annum (the
“Bond IV") on the same date. The maturity date of
the Bond IV was extended to 12 September 2020.
The subscription of interest in the Infrastructure Fund
[l did not constitute a disclosable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as all the applicable
percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the transaction contemplated
under the subscription were less than 5% at the date
of subscription.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Infrastructure Fund Ill, the purpose of its activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity, equity-
related investments, fixed income securities, debt
securities or loans in connection with road, railway,
port, sea and inner river transportation, airplane,
energy, electricity, undersea power cable, fiber,
telecommunication or information technology
industries or any other investments in connection
with the foregoing at the general partner’s discretion.
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According to the accounting policy of the Group,
the assets, liabilities and returns of the Infrastructure
Fund Il had been consolidated into the Group's
financial statements.

Upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Group received the distribution in kind of
subscription of Bond IV and assigned it to offset
the borrowings of the Group in 2020. The carrying
value of the Bond IV amounted to approximately
HK$165.87 million as at 31 December 2019. The
Group remained as the only second-tier limited
partner of the Infrastructure Fund Ill with contribution
amount of HK$1 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$1).

Goodwill arising from the OBOR Funds Restructuring

Pursuant to the OBOR Funds Restructuring, all parties agreed
to offset the value of distribution in kinds (being the original
investment amount of the underlying assets) with original
amount of capital contribution to the respective funds
regardless of the changes in value of the underlying net assets
of the funds in the past years. In particular, the underlying assets
of High-Tech Investment Fund being the equity investments in
SuperRobotics Shares (as defined below) has suffered significant
fair value losses since they were acquired by the High-Tech
Investment Fund a few years ago. This resulted in the fair value
of the net assets/liabilities of the funds acquired by the Group
on 1 January 2020 becoming smaller than the fair value of
the consideration transferred (i.e. the fair value of receivables
assigned to the original limited partners of the respective funds).

The goodwill arising from the OBOR Funds Restructuring was
allocated to the respective funds, each of which represented
a cash-generating unit, for impairment testing. On 1 January
2020, i.e. the effective date of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the recoverable amounts of the funds were determined with
reference to the carrying value of their net identifiable assets/
liabilities with major assets being investments in listed shares
and loan receivables. As a result, an aggregate impairment loss
for goodwill of HK$331.00 million was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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() Subscription and/or Holding of Listed Securities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$120.13 million (31
December 2020: HK$177.40 million) of which the club
debenture of HK$4.27 million was classified as non-current
assets and the listed equity investments of HK$115.87
million (2020: HK$173.13 million) was classified as current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position

of the Group.

Listed below are the particulars of the Group’s major listed

equity investments:

()]

REEM HEFEELTES

N _E - —F+ZA=+—H &T&EH
RHERATFTEFABGZEMEEN
120.13E 88T (T2 24 1 177.408
BET B RAERBHESTH
RREN FEEEFBLI27TEEBTHE
BIERBEE M LEWRERKE115878
BAT(CEIEE173.1388871T) 9
HARBEE -

TXHEIINFEBZETEETREREZ

B

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZS--F+ZB=+-HLEE

Approximate

percentage
of
Cost/ investments
Approximate fair value Market attributable
percentage as at prices as at to the
Number of  of interest 1January  Additions/ 31 December Market Group's total Dividend Disposal Fair value
Notes shares held 2021 (transfer) 2021 value assets received gain/(loss) gain/(loss)
e KRZZ-%F RZZ--fF REM
FiisE#Ez —A-AZ +-B FEEEE HE ATE
REERDGH Mzt BRIABE BOENE mE/ATE 5 =+-BHE mE  AEZHS BHERE W&/ (B8 WE/ (58
(HK$'000) (HK$°000) (HKS) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$000) (HK$'000)
(F#7) (F#7) (F#7) (F#7) (F#E7) (F#7) (FE7m)
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited
("SuperRobotics")
(HKSE Stock Code: 8176)
(the "SuperRobotics Shares Batch 1") (a) 41,666,666 8.23% 37,500 N/A 0.400 16,667 0.62% N/A N/A (20,833)
BABEERERAR
(AR
(BEBTARIAMNE @ 8176)
(ME—-HBABRERR)) @ 41,666,666 8.23% 37,500 TER 0.400 16,667 0.62% TER TER (20,833)
SuperRobotics
(the "SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2") (b) 64,148,063 12.67% 57,733 N/A 0.400 25,659 0.96% N/A N/A (32,074)
BASE
(B HBABRERR)) (b) 64,148,063 12.67% 57,733 TEE 0.400 25,659 0.96% TEH TER (32,074)
SuperRobotics
(the "SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3") (c) 24,397,946 4.82% 21,958 N/A 0.400 9,759 0.37% N/A N/A (12,199)
0 Ak
E
(TE=HBABRERR)) © 24,397,946 4.82% 21,958 TER 0.400 9,759 037% TEH TER (12,199)
Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 993)
(the “Huarong Financial ) (@) 237,359,400 2.73% 38,452 N/A 0.196 46,522 1.74% N/A N/A 8,070
ZRERERERERAT
(BEHRTMRAMNG 1 993) (ERER) @ 237,359,400 273% 38,452 TER 0.196 46,522 1.74% TEA TER 8,070
Bank of Gansu Co., Ltd. (HKSE Stock Code: 2139)
(the "Bank of Gansu") (e) 11,506,000 0.30% 17,490 N/A 1.500 17,259 0.65% N/A N/A (231)
HERTRABRAR
(EEBTAROAE:2139) (HERT) @ 11,506,000 0.30% 17,490 ER 1.500 17,259 0.65% ER TER (231)
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(a) SuperRobotics Shares Batch 1

On 23 November 2016, the Group entered into
a placing letter with a placing agent, pursuant
to which, among others, the Group agreed to (i)
subscribe for a total number of 35,416,666 shares
(the “SuperRobotics Shares”) in SuperRobotics at
a subscription price of HK$4.80 per share, whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(HKSE Stock Code: 8176); and (ii) acquire 6,250,000
SuperRobotics Shares from New Cove Limited (a
then substantial shareholder of SuperRobotics)
at a purchase price of HK$4.80 per share. On 5
December and 14 December 2016, the above two
transactions were completed respectively, and a total
consideration of approximately HK$200.00 million
(exclusive of stamp duty, trading fees, transaction
levies and brokerage) was paid out by the Group.
Further details of the subscription and acquisition
of SuperRobotics Shares Batch 1 were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 November 2016.

The principal activities of SuperRobotics are the
provision of engineering products and related services
and the sales of beauty products and provision of
therapy services.
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(b)

The Board noted that the robust development of the
robotic industry in the PRC represents an enormous
potential for market expansion for SuperRobotics
in the future. The construction of intelligent cities
had been in full swing based upon the artificial
intelligence technology. The wide application of
intelligent robotics covered from police use to various
aspects such as services and security. The investment
team of the Group considered that the investment in
SuperRobotics would be expected to generate returns
to the Group after the realisation and the large-scale
expansion of the use of relevant technologies in the
future.

SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2

On 6 December 2019, the Group entered into a deed
of adherence and assignment, pursuant to which the
Group acquired the interest of 75% in the Absolute
Return Fund at the consideration of HK$160.00
million to become one of the limited partners, while
the Group also acted as the general partner and
manager of the Absolute Return Fund. The fair value
of SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2, being the asset/
portfolio investment under the Absolute Return Fund,
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$186.03
million. Further details of the Absolute Return Fund
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
6 December 2019. The Absolute Return Fund has
become an indirect subsidiary of the Group since 6
December 2019 according to the Group’s accounting
policy. Pursuant to the OBOR Funds Restructuring, the
Group further acquired 25% interest of the Absolute
Return Fund during the year of 2020 and became the
only limited partner of the Absolute Return Fund.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

(b)

EFEIEI FEBEEBATEZ
EILERHBAEERKETSEE
BREREN - KEALE R 8
ERTHERNBAR R B
ABNERRERRBEZRARE
ZREZETE - TEBZREE
B m RARRBRERKRFEEEKR
BERRMABRE RBABREZR
HRERAMSETERELLOR-

FBZHEBANEERT

N _E—hE+_ANA KTEH
SN ETREEZE BIL > A&EE
ZARE160.008 & & T B E [0
WREEZ75%m UHABRSE
BAZ— MAEBRTETEEHD
RESZEBERARKCE NI
BEEE FHBASEERD (EA
BHEKRESHE T 2EE HEK
B) 2 ATFEA186.03HEBEEBT B
FMEHLDIRESCZE—THBEN
AATEBEA_SE—HLE+ AN
Bz ARG REANEENZTEER
BHORESER _T—NE+ =
BREHERALXEBR ZEEHREBA
BloRBE—F—RESEMR AEHE
RIEZZTFERE—FTINBEEMD
RESH25% 5 WA ABEE
RESHNE—BREE A



The Absolute Return Fund’s investment objective
was to generate returns by investing all or
substantially all of its assets in the equity securities
of the portfolio companies in the industry of in-
flight wireless network engineering and services as
their main business in Hong Kong (the “Portfolio
Investment |”). The Absolute Return Fund might
choose to invest all or substantially all of its assets in
a single investment. It was therefore possible that the
underlying investments of the Portfolio Investment |
would be concentrated.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Absolute Return Fund, the Absolute Return Fund
held the Portfolio Investment | in relation to the
broad application of artificial intelligence technology
in telecommunications and the construction of
intelligent cities. The general partner and manager
continued to research on the industry of high and
new technology to expand the fund investing
activities. The Board considered that the subscription
of interests in the Absolute Return Fund was
beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole, by generating the returns from the
investments and to enhance the experience of assets
management in the coming years.
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(c) SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3

On 29 May 2020, the Natural Resource Fund, the
Fixed Income Fund and the two limited partners
of the High-Tech Investment Fund entered into the
OBOR Funds Restructuring, pursuant to which each
of the Natural Resource Fund and the Fixed Income
Fund acquired the interest of 50% of the High-Tech
Investment Fund by assigning their note receivables to
the previous limited partners respectively to become
the new limited partners, while the Group also acted
as the general partner and manager of the High-
Tech Investment Fund. The series of restructuring and
debt assignment agreements took retrospective effect
on 1 January 2020. The fair value of SuperRobotics
Shares Batch 3, being the asset/portfolio investment
under the High-Tech Investment Fund, as at the date
of acquisitions amounted to HK$70.75 million. The
High-Tech Investment Fund had become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since 1
January 2020 according to the Group’s accounting

policy.

The High-Tech Investment Fund’s investment objective
is to generate high risk-adjusted returns by primarily
investing in equity, equity-related investments,
fixed income securities, debt securities and loans
or convertible bonds in connection with hi-tech
industries in Hong Kong (the “Portfolio Investment
n).
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(d)

With reference to the investment objectives of the
High-Tech Investment Fund, the High-Tech Investment
Fund currently invests in the debt equity and holds
the Portfolio Investment Il in relation to the broad
application of artificial intelligence technology in the
industry of telecommunications and the construction
of intelligent cities. The general partner and manager
of the High-Tech Investment Fund continued to
research on the industry of high and new technology
to expand the fund investing activities. The Board
considered that the subscription of interests in
the High-Tech Investment Fund was beneficial to
the Group and the Shareholders as a whole, by
generating the returns from the investments and to
enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

Huarong Financial Shares

On 8 December 2017, the Group acquired a total
number of 88,000,000 shares (the “Huarong
Investment Shares”) in Huarong Investment Stock
Corporation Limited (“Huarong Investment”)
(whose shares were then listed on the Stock Exchange
(HKSE Stock Code: 2277)) through a broker from an
independent third party at the price of HK$0.90 per
share. The total consideration of HK$79.20 million
for the acquisition of Huarong Investment Shares was
financed by the Group’s net proceeds received from
the exercise of the put option by the Group during
2017. On 5 February 2018 and 6 February 2018, the
Group further acquired a total of 2,600,000 Huarong
Investment Shares at the average price of HK$1.32
per share through a broker from an independent third
party. Further details of the acquisition of Huarong
Investment Shares in 2017 were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2017.

The principal activities of Huarong Investment are
direct investments, foundation and substructure
construction services, financial services and others.

(d)
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Due to the unexpected continuing downturn in the
share price performance of Huarong Investment,
the Group's investment team decided to minimise
the continuing unrealised losses by completing the
disposal of a total of 6,430,000 Huarong Investment
Shares through a broker at the total consideration
of approximately HK$3.35 million during the year of
2018.

Huarong Investment together with Huarong
Financial published a joint announcement dated 11
November 2020 to disclose that the privatisation
scheme of Huarong Investment became effective
on 10 November 2020 and the withdrawal of the
listing of Huarong Investment Shares on the Stock
Exchange became effective on 12 November 2020
after the trading hours. Upon completion of the
privatisation scheme, the balance of 84,170,000
Huarong Investment Shares were converted into a
total of 237,359,400 shares (the “Huarong Financial
Shares”) in Huarong Financial on 13 November
2020.

The principal activities of Huarong Financial are (i)
engaging in the broking and dealing of securities,
futures and options contracts, as well as the provision
of margin financing services, (ii) engaging in the
provision of underwriting, sponsoring and financial
advisory services of securities to institutional clients,
(iii) engaging in the provision of asset management
services, as well as the direct investments in equities,
bonds, funds, derivative instruments and other
financial products, and (iv) involving in money
lending, the provision of pawn loan services and
the provision of financial lease services through its
subsidiaries.

As at the date of this report, all of the Huarong
Financial Shares have been pledged as security for
a long-term borrowing of HK$660.00 million of the
Group.
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(e) Bank of Gansu Shares

After the OBOR Funds Restructuring initiated by the
general partner and manager of the Fixed Income
Fund and Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road
Growth Income Fund, L.P. (the “"Growth Fund”) of
which a subsidiary of the Group acted as the limited
partner, the Fixed Income Fund and the Growth Fund
held a total of 3,336,740 shares in Bank of Gansu
(the "Bank of Gansu Shares”) upon completion
of the OBOR Funds Restructuring. The initial cost of
such shares was HK$4.97 million at the date of the
execution of the OBOR Funds Restructuring. During
the year 2020, the Group also acquired 8,169,260
Bank of Gansu Shares at an initial cost of HK$24.34
million.

Bank of Gansu mainly operates its businesses
through three segments: (i) the corporate banking
segment, which offers financial products and services,
including loans, discounted bills, deposits, and fee-
and commission-based products and services; (ii)
the financial market operation segment, which
issues debit cards denominated in Renminbi to retail
customers holding deposit accounts with the Bank
of Gansu; and (iii) the retail banking segment, which
offers retail customers financial products and services
including loans, discounted bills, deposits, and fee-
and commission-based products and services.

During the Year, the investment in the Bank of Gansu
Shares recorded an unrealised fair value loss of
HK$0.23 million (2020: HK$11.83 million) due to the
unexpected downturn in the share price performance
of Bank of Gansu. With reference to the investment
objectives of the Fixed Income Fund and the Growth
Fund, the general partner and manager considered
that the investment in Bank of Gansu was beneficial
to the Group and the Shareholders as a whole, by
generating the returns from medium to long term
investments and by enhancing the experience of
assets management in the coming years.

As at the date of this report, all of the Bank of Gansu
Shares have been pledged as security for the long-
term borrowings of HK$675.90 million in total.
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Deposits of Investment in potential business

Following the strategic upgrade and the implementation of
new strategic plan of the Group, the Group entered into
two investment agreements with two different independent
third parties respectively and paid the investment deposit of
HK$50.00 million for securing the potential new businesses
in the PRC in January 2019 respectively. The transactions of
investment deposit payment did not constitute a disclosable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as all the
applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the transactions were less than 5% at the
date of the investment agreements. The deposits were recorded
as other receivables in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Having conducted the due diligence on each potential
investment, the management of the Group acknowledged
that certain criteria of the two potential investments did not
meet the Group’s expectation and decided to negotiate for the
withdrawal of the investment deposits in due course. Although
the due date for the refund of investment deposits had been
extended to 31 December 2021, the Group expected the
investment deposits could only be fully recovered in one or two
years. Having considered that there was significant increase in
the credit risk on the deposits which might not be able to be
refunded before the original maturity date due to the COVID-19
outbreak, the management of the Group decided to provide
additional impairment loss of HK$21.00 million for the other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2020 according to
the HKFRS 9.

On 17 May 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with
two different independent third parties respectively to receive
the deposit of HK$50.00 million on or before 31 December
2022 by assigning its investment rights. Thus, the accumulated
impairment loss of HK$23.00 million was expected to be
reduced to HK$20.00 million. The carrying value of the
other receivables in relation to this deposit should amount to
HK$80.00 million (2020: HK$77.00 million) as at 31 December
2021.
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PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

During the Year, the Group also engaged in the provision of
financial assistance to some independent third parties. As at 31
December 2021, the total outstanding receivables in relation to
this activity amounted to approximately HK$1,208.32 million
(2020: HK$1,431.51 million) and those transactions that were
summarised below were relatively significant to the Group at
the time of entering into the relevant agreements between the
Group and those relevant independent third parties respectively.

The Group had provided additional impairment of approximately
HK$122.27 million (2020: HK$103.25 million) for those overdue
financial assistances during the Year. The Board was of the
opinion that such impairment provided by the Group were
made in accordance with the requirements of the accounting
standards. In order to lower the investment risks and reduce
the losses, the Group puts its best efforts to maximise the
recovery of the relevant financial assistances by restructuring or
conducting lawsuits against several debtors.

Due to the continuing adverse impacts of the COVID-19
outbreak, the Board will keep assessing and ascertaining the
recoverability of the following transactions closely and may
further increase the provisions for impairment for the coming
years.
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On 22 March 2017, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement with BV I REREMEREBRAE (the
“Zhanjiang Borrower”) and the guarantors for the
provision of a loan facility of not more than RMB200.00
million (the “Loan Facility”). Details in relation to the
provision of the financial assistance were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2017.

Due to the default in repayment and failure of negotiation
for settlement of the Loan Facility, the Group filed a
statement of claim (&FF#k) on 30 June 2019 at the
Shaoguan Intermediate People’'s Court (BBRAT AR A
E%B%) (the “Shaoguan Court”) against the Zhanjiang
Borrower and the guarantors to claim for the principal
amount of the Loan Facility of RMB200.00 million and the
interest accrued which remained outstanding amounted
to approximately RMB60.75 million as at 30 June 2019.
Subsequent to such filing, the Group received a notice of
acceptance for litigation proceedings (ZIBZE BN E)
issued by the Shaoguan Court on 16 July 2019. On 24 July
2019, the Group paid the required litigation fee to the
Shaoguan Court to confirm the first hearing of the said
litigation proceedings which was originally scheduled to be
held on 20 August 2019, but was adjourned to be held on
14 February 2020. Details in relation to the aforesaid legal
proceedings were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 July 2019.

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group was informed
by the Shaoguan Court on 2 February 2020 that the date
of the first hearing of the said litigation proceedings
was adjourned to a date and time to be determined in
due course. Finally, the first hearing of the said litigation
proceedings was held on 9 July 2020.
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On 21 January 2021, the Group received the first
judgement issued by Shaoguan Court (the “First
Judgement”). It was held that the Zhanjiang Borrower
and the guarantors were liable to make payment to
the Group for (i) the total sum of about RMB178.36
million (the “New Principal”), including the outstanding
principal and interests accrued at the rate of 4.75% per
annum from the borrowing date to 16 May 2019, (ii) the
interest on the amount of the New Principal accrued from
16 May 2019 to 19 August 2019 at the rate of 4.75%
per annum, and (iii) the interest on any outstanding
amount commencing from 20 August 2019 until the final
settlement of the amount of the New Principal would
accrue at the one-year term of Loan Prime Rate (B
M B MEFIX) announced by the National Interbank
Funding Center (2Bl #R1T7EIEIZEHE L) in the PRC. The
Group subsequently submitted an appeal against the First
Judgement on 9 February 2021 after having consulted with
its PRC legal advisors. Subsequent to such filing of appeal,
the Group received a notice of acceptance for appeal
proceedings issued by Shaoguan Court on 19 February
2021. However, in order to recover this financial assistance
as soon as possible by way of exercising its right in the
55% equity interest in the Zhanjiang Borrower, the Group
withdrew the appeal and received the withdrawal notice
from the Shaoguan Court on 16 July 2021, and the Group
received the final judgement dated 8 July 2021 (the “Final
Judgement”).

Pursuant to the Final Judgement, the Group applied to
the Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court Gl
M NEREBT) (the “Shenzhen Court”) on 10 August
2021 to exercise its right in the 55% equity interest in
the Zhanjiang Borrower. On 8 October 2021,
received the judgement dated 29 September 2021 from
the Shenzhen Court which objected the Group to apply
the exercise of such rights in the Shenzhen Court. After
consulting with its PRC legal advisors, the Group submitted
an objection to such judgement from the Shenzhen Court
to The High People’s Court of Guangdong Province (B
B S/ AR AR (the “Guangdong High Court”) for the
final appeal on 15 October 2021.

the Group

i =
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Due to the failure of Zhanjiang Borrower to make
repayment and having regard to the lengthy legal
proceedings and enforcement process, the management
of the Group considered that the loan amount due from
the Zhangjiang Borrower would probably not be able to be
recovered until second half of year 2023 and determined
to provide additional impairment loss of HK$16.53 million
during the Year for the loan receivables according to the
HKFRS 9. The carrying amount of the amount due from
the Zhanjiang Borrower after the accumulated impairment
loss of HK$76.96 million as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$197.88 million (2020: HK$214.42
million).

As at the date of this report, the Group has not yet
received any details on the hearing of the relevant legal
proceedings from the Guangdong High Court but will keep
on consulting with its PRC legal advisors for exploring
further legal actions. Further announcement(s) regarding
any significant developments on the above litigation will be
published as and when appropriate.
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(b) Zhonghong Advance

On 25 January 2018, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Zhonghong Holding Co., Ltd. (the
“Zhonghong Borrower”) for the amount of RMB200.00
million (the “Zhonghong Advance”). To secure the
recovery of the principal amount of the provision of
financial assistance and to reduce the risk of impairment
loss, on 13 September 2018, the Group had filed an
application for arbitration proceedings at the Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration (the “SCIA") against the
Zhonghong Borrower and the relevant guarantors for the
breach of the supplemental agreements and the guarantee
agreement dated 3 September 2018. On 18 September
2018, the Group received the notice of acceptance for
arbitration proceedings issued by the SCIA. In January
2019, hearing of the arbitration proceedings was
conducted. At the end of April 2019, the Group received
the arbitral awards (FRZE) (the “Arbitral Awards”)
dated 25 April 2019 given by the SCIA in respect of
the aforesaid arbitration proceedings. Further details
of the Zhonghong Advance in relation to the provision
of financial assistance and the abovesaid developments
on the arbitrations were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 February 2018, 19 March 2018,
25 May 2018, 6 September 2018, 20 September 2018 and
3 May 2019 respectively.

As at the date of this report, the disposal of the Sea Area
Use Certificate (835 A #5&3) through public auction
approved by the Hainan Province Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Hainan Court”) (BfE&EO™
m4k AR JERR) and the relevant properties held by the
guarantors of the Zhonghong Borrower as pledged
securities of the Zhonghong Advance held by the Group
had not yet been initiated. The Group will continue to
consult its PRC legal advisors for exploring further legal
actions against the Zhonghong Borrower and the relevant
guarantors. Further announcement(s) regarding any
significant developments on the above arbitrations will be
published as and when appropriate.
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Meanwhile, in order to increase the recoverability of
the Zhonghong Advance, the Group had been exploring
potential well-known buyers or property developers during
the past two years to set up a restructuring arrangement
between Zhonghong Borrower and existing creditors of
Zhonghong Borrower.

Pursuant to the Arbitral Awards, the Group could
apply to the Hainan Court to auction the relevant
guarantor’s assets. However, as the recovering process
of the Zhonghong Advance would involve restructuring
discussion with other major creditors of the Zhonghong
Borrower, in the opinion of the management of the
Group, the outstanding amount of loan would likely to be
recovered within three to four years. Having considered
the restructuring plan which would be complicated and
required extra time, the management of the Group decided
to provide further impairment loss of HK$16.30 million
during the Year for the loan receivables according to
HKFRS 9. The carrying amount of the amount due from the
Zhonghong Borrower after the accumulated impairment
loss of HK$246.10 million as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$215.33 million (2020: HK$231.62
million).
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(c) China Gem Jiangsu Advance

The Group entered into a loan agreement dated 19
October 2017 with A EZEERE C1%) BEA5 (China
Gem Enterprise Development (Jiangsu) Limited) (the
“China Gem Jiangsu”) for the provision of a loan of
RMB100.00 million (the “China Gem Jiangsu Advance”)
with the interest rate of 9% per annum and extra
undertaking of interest of 9% per annum of the principal
amount. The collaterals of the loan were 493,160,000
shares of China Gem Holdings Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(HKSE Stock Code:1191) (the “China Gem Shares”) and
HK$150.00 million equity interests in a fund owned by a
related company of China Gem Jiangsu. The transaction
of China Gem Jiangsu Advance did not constitute a
disclosable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules as all the applicable percentage ratios under Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the transaction
were less than 5% as at the date of the loan agreement.

On 28 August 2019, the Group and China Gem lJiangsu
entered into a supplemental agreement to lower the
interest rate to 12% per annum and extended the
expiry date of the loan to 30 June 2020 after obtaining
additional shares of China Gem Holdings Limited, pre-sale
agreements in properties in the PRC and interest in a fund
held by China Gem Jiangsu as further securities.

(c)

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Since the financial performance and the status of business
operations of China Gem Jiangsu as at 31 December 2021
were worse than those of the previous year, therefore no
settlement had been received during the Year. In addition,
the market value of the collaterals of the loan had been
declined enormously as trading in the China Gem Shares
on the Stock Exchange had been suspended since 30
August 2021. As the default in repayment by China Gem
Jiangsu caused significant increase in the credit risk on
the Group’s loan receivable, it was considered that credit-
impairment loss should be made for China Gem Jiangsu
as at 31 December 2021. The management of the Group
decided to provide additional impairment loss of HK$55.13
million for the Year in view of the loan receivable overdue
from China Gem Jiangsu. The carrying amount due from
China Gem Jiangsu after the accumulated impairment
loss of HK$145.09 million as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$5.92 million (2020: HK$61.05 million).

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS IN CONNECTION
WITH PROVISION OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
(a) Credit Risk Assessment

48

Prior to the provision of financial assistance or making an
investment, the management of the Group will conduct
due diligence on the potential customers. The due
diligence procedures included conducting research on the
customers’ background, evaluating its current business
operations and financial conditions, market reputation
and creditability, and conducting financial analysis and
recoverability analysis. To minimise credit or investment
risks, the Group will typically require guarantees, including
personal guarantees and corporate guarantees, and/
or collaterals with expected realised value exceeding the
loan or investment amount. Furthermore, for the existing
customers, the Group will evaluate its past business
relationships with them and their track records as factors
to extend loan duration or otherwise continue to maintain
business relationship.
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(b)

During the subsistence of the financial assistance or the
investment, the Group has implemented various on-
going monitoring and risk management procedures which
include conducting regular visits and interviews with the
customers, requesting the customers to furnish periodic
financial information, conducting public searches and
obtaining information on any legal disputes, negative
news and media reports on the business or affairs of the
customers to understand its latest business development
and management condition, in order to conduct
continuous assessment on the customers’ repayment
ability.

Mechanism in Determining Loan Term

The Group generally provides short-term loans with a
repayment term of less than three years which carry higher
interest rate than the market rate usually charged by
financial institutions. The repayment terms and conditions
are determined from the factors including the liquidity
needs of the customers and the Group’s funding and
cash flows management strategies. The Group will also
make reference to the terms and conditions of loan
arrangements provided by the financial institutions in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong to companies in the
same industry of the customers to ensure that the loan
or investment agreements between the Group and its
customers are on normal commercial terms and are fair
and reasonable.

(b)

Management Discussion and Analysis
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(c) Monitoring Loan Repayment and Recovery

50

The management of the Group will regularly communicate
with and monitor and manage the recoverability of loans
and conditions of the customers. If a customer fails to
repay the loan or interest on time or fails to comply with
material term of the investment agreement on payment or
settlement of investment return, the management of the
Group will first take steps to understand the reasons for its
default (for instance, whether the customer’s business had
experienced any operational difficulties, any other major
debt cross-defaults, any winding-up petitions filed against
the customer, etc.) and will take appropriate steps in light
of the situation and urgency of the matter. Generally, the
following procedures for debt recovery will be taken:

Stage 1: Assess the possibility for the customer to repay
the loan or receivables within one year for the purpose of
determining whether a time extension for such repayment
will be granted or business relationship be otherwise
maintained.

Stage 2: Assess the possibility of realising the collaterals
provided and methods for disposal to recoup the loss.

Stage 3: Engage its legal adviser to commence necessary
legal actions against the customer and/or the guarantor(s)
including the obtaining of court or arbitrary order for
seizure, private sale or public auction of assets of the
borrowers.
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(d)

Impairment Loss and Write-off Treatment

In general, where the management of the Group has
noticed the following circumstances, there may be possible
default in the loans or receivables concerned and provision
for impairment loss under the ECL model (as defined
below) may be necessary:

—  the customers experienced operational difficulties;

- worsened macroeconomic and industry conditions,
leading to further deterioration of the financial
conditions of the customers; and

- the customers have been involved in lawsuits for debt
collection.

The Group uses "expected credit losses (the "ECL")
model” as an impairment model according to HKFRS
9 which requires the Group to estimate the weighted
possibility of default events and recognise ECLs for
trade and other receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost accordingly.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) life-time ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life-time of a
financial instrument.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to fulfill its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

(d)

Management Discussion and Analysis
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For financial assets at amortised cost of investment
segments (i.e. trade and other receivables, loan and
note receivables and loans to associates), the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the life-
time ECLs. For determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group would
consider reasonable and supporting information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group has considered the probability of default and
the loss given default with reference to (i) the value of
collateral/other contractual arrangements, (ii) financial
ability of the debtors and (iii) other forward-looking
factors, if any. Time value of money is also considered if
the receivable is expected to be received more than 1 year
after the reporting date.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Sales of the Group's products in manufacturing segment are
principally denominated in US dollars and the purchases of
materials and payments of operational expenses are mainly
denominated in US dollars, HK dollars and RMB. Most of
the Group’s purchases and expenses during the Year were
denominated in RMB. As such, the Group had incurred a
net exchange loss of HK$16.35 million for the Year (2020:
HK$22.13 million) due to the depreciation of US dollars and
RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had not entered into any
financial instruments for hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure in
the future and will consider hedging such exposure to minimise
exchange risk should the need arise.
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RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Macroeconomic Risk

The Group is operating in a highly competitive business
and economic environment, the manufacturing segment in
particular. Manufacturing segment is in a turmoil, being greatly
affected by the recent Sino-US trade war, complications caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic and its customers which are highly
volatile, combined with the rising labour and production costs.
The Group's manufacturing segment has to compete with its
competitors on various factors, such as product variety, product
performance, customer service, quality, pricing, new product
innovation, timely delivery and brand recognition.

On the other hand, volatility in the Hong Kong securities
market may affect the Group’s performance on listed securities
investments resulting in fluctuations in unrealised fair value
gains or losses. An interest rate hike is likely and will not
only affect the Group’s cost of borrowings, but also costs of
purchase of materials.

Credit Risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
and services are provided to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group mainly trades with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that credit
terms are granted subject to in-depth credit verification
procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and trade receivable balances
of manufacturing segment are substantially covered by credit
insurance. In this regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk under the manufacturing segment is minimal.
Since the Group mainly trades with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collaterals.

In respect of loans to associates, loan receivables and note
receivables, the Group assesses the background and financial
conditions of the debtors, and requests securities pledged from
the debtors and/or guarantee as collaterals from the debtors’
related parties in order to minimise credit risk.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk, which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to the failure to perform
an obligation by the counterparties arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets, was stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021.

Foreign Currency Risk

As the PCBs business is operating in the PRC, the Company
faces foreign currency risks due to the exchange gain/loss from
exchange rate fluctuations as well as the currency conversion
risk due to the converted net asset value fluctuations of
investment projects in the PRC. To manage the foreign currency
risk effectively, the Company closely monitors foreign exchange
markets and utilises multiple strategic approaches, such as
optimising cash management strategy and deploying project
finance instruments, to control foreign exchange risk.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2021, excluding those employed by the
Company’s associates, the Group had 1,115 employees (2020:
1,126 employees). For the Year, our total staff costs amounted
to HK$138.81 million (2020: HK$149.65 million).

Under the Group’s remuneration policy, employees are rewarded
in line with market rate and in compliance with statutory
requirements of all jurisdictions where it operates. Employees
are also granted discretionary bonus subject to the individual’s
performance and business results of the Group.

The Group follows a policy of encouraging its subsidiaries to

send their staff to attend training classes or seminars that are
related directly or indirectly to the Group's businesses.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of HK$Nil
(2020: HK$0.92 million) and had no material contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

On 26 May 2022 (after trading hours), the Company and Aristo
Securities Limited (the "Placing Agent”) entered into the
placing agreement pursuant to which the Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to procure the placing (the “Placing”)
of a maximum of 440,000,000 placing shares (the “Placing
Share(s)”) on best endeavor basis to currently expected not
less than six placees at a price of HK$0.1 per Placing Share.
The Placing is conditional upon, among other factors, the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting approval for
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Placing Shares.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant events
occurred subsequent to 31 December 2021 which would
materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as at the date of this report.
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- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEELRRS

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are of the
opinion that during the Year, the Group has properly operated
in accordance with the “Corporate Governance Code” in Part
2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) which
sets out (a) the principles of good corporate governance; (b)
the code provisions (on a “comply or explain” basis); and (c)
the recommended best practices (which are encouraged to be
adopted on a voluntary basis).

The Board is committed to the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the CG Code
to better enhance the value of the Shareholders and proper
management of corporate assets in the following ways:

1. ensuring the decision-making process, risk management
process, internal audit and controls, disclosure of
information and the communication with stakeholders are
carried out in accordance with good management practices
and compliance with the respective regulatory standards;

2. cultivating a culture of integrity, transparency and
accountability for the Company, its staff and the Directors
and emphasising the importance of their roles in such an
environment; and

3. adopting quality standards widely recognised to foster
quality management in every aspect of daily operations to
enhance the performance and value of the Company as a
whole.

Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term business return for Shareholders. To achieve this objective,
the Group's strategy is to place high emphasis on achieving
long-term financial performance and maintaining the Group's
strong financial profit. The “Chairman’s Statement” and
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections in this
annual report contain discussions and analyses of the Group's
performance and the basis on which the Group generates or
preserves value over the longer term, and the basis on which
the Group will execute its strategy for achieving the Group’s
objectives.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Directors confirm that, during the Year, the Company acted
in compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE
“"MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct (the “Own
Dealing Code”) regarding securities transactions by Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiries, confirms that
each member of the Board complied with the Own Dealing
Code throughout the Year. Members of the Company’s
management, who, due to their positions in the Company, are
likely to be in possession of inside information, also complied
with the provisions of the Own Dealing Code.

The Own Dealing Code has been uploaded to the Company’s
website.

CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE
BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
With effect from 4 November 2021,

(i)  Mr. Shan Yongxin (“Mr. Shan”) resigned as an executive
Director, a member of the executive committee of the
Board (the "Executive Committee”) and an authorised
representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of
the Listing Rules (the "“Authorised Representative”)
due to his intention to concentrate on the pursuit and
development of his other business activities. Following
Mr. Shan’s resignation, there is no member in the Executive
Committee; and

(i)  Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, an independent non-executive
Director, has been appointed as an Authorised
Representative.

The Company will identify suitable candidate(s) who is(are)
qualified for appointment as the member(s) of Executive
Committee as soon as possible.
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The Directors are of the opinion that the aforesaid changes in
the composition of the Board can be well managed without
undue disruption to the management and operation of the
Group.

Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 4 November 2021.

With effect from 21 March 2022, Mr. Ng Man Kung (“Mr. Ng")
had tendered his resignation from the office of an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman and member of the
remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and a member of each of the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Board respectively due to his
other business activities.

Following Mr. Ng's resignation, the Company fails to meet the
requirements of (I) Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules that the
Board must include at least three independent non-executive
Directors; (Il) Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules that the Audit
Committee must comprise a minimum of three non-executive
Directors; and (Ill) Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules that the
Remuneration Committee must be chaired by an independent
non-executive Director and comprise a majority of independent
non-executive Directors.

The Company will endeavour to identify a suitable candidate
for appointment as an independent non-executive Director,
chairman and member of the Remuneration Committee,
member of the Audit Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee within three months from the date of
Mr. Ng's resignation pursuant to Rule 3.11, Rule 3.23 and Rule
3.27 of the Listing Rules.

Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 March 2022.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of five Directors, MR _E_-_—F+_-_A=+—H ' EFgHL%
with a variety and a balance of skills and experience in ZBERMHAM REEFEGT RIT - WiE -HHHE
accounting, banking, manufacturing, marketing, finance and E -FHEKKREFEZ RN KR FE
investment professions. Their biographical particulars are set ZEEHNAERFI00E 1B - FHIEETT
out on pages 100 to 111 of this annual report. List of Directors HEREMZEZLEREABKEED L
and their role and function, which sets out the members and & 2§ 32 Fr 48 ub(www.hkexnews. hk) kK Z4< A 5]
composition of the Board, has been uploaded on the Stock  #uL(www.renco.com.hk)e

Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s

website (www.renco.com.hk).

Members of the Board and their respective attendance to Board EZ=ZZHERRENAEERNBRTZ2EEZ
meetings and general meetings held during the Year are as @EABRRAGZHERIT :
follows:

Number of Number of
attendance at  attendance at
Board general
meetings meetings
EEFEEZ BERERAXEZ
Names of Directors EEHY HEER H fE =
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung = e 3/5 1/1
Mr. Shan Yongxin (resigned as an executive BB EfE (ER - FE_-—1F
Director on 4 November 2021) +—HBAHFTHITESE) 3/3 1/1
Non-executive Director FFHITEE
Mr. Li Yongjun (Chairman of the Board) — ZXZBHh4 (BEFTL/E) 5/5 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B IFHITEE
(“INEDs") (G IFHITEE)
Mr. Ng Man Kung SR E 4/5 1/1
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence BIEE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei EJEip-S 5/5 1/1
The number of Board meetings held during the Year was 5. KEEBRITAREETTGH-
The number of general meetings held during the Year was 1. KEEBRIT—RRKEARG -
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During the Year, the Company had complied with the minimum
requirement of three INEDs forming more than one-third of
the Board, all of whom have accounting and related financial
management expertise. They are dedicated to provide the
Company with professional advice with respect to the steady
operation and development of the Company. They also exercised
supervision and coordination to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders.

Each INED for the Year had provided an annual confirmation
of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on such annual confirmation received from
each of the INEDs, the Company considers that all INEDs are still
considered to be independent during the Year for their tenure
of office in the Company for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All existing non-executive Director and INEDs have signed letters
of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years, and will be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to the bye laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors and INEDs is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and is fixed from
time to time by the Board subject to the authority granted
pursuant to the Bye-laws by the Shareholders at the Company’s
general meetings.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Board are
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (executive Director), Mr. Li Yongjun (non-
executive Director and Chairman), Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (INED)
and Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (INED).
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THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

One of the main responsibilities of the Board is to supervise
and direct the management of the Company to operate under
good corporate governance in order to maximise value of
the Shareholders while balancing the interest of its various
stakeholders. The Board holds meetings quarterly so as to
monitor the performance and discuss the business development
of the Company against the budget, to discuss and decide
on major corporate, strategic and operational issues, and to
evaluate any available investment opportunities.

The major duties performed by the Board are as follows:
1. setting the Company’s values and standards;

2. setting the objectives of the Company and responsibilities
of the Board and its various committees;

3. establishing the strategic direction for the Company;
4.  setting targets for the management of the Group;

5.  monitoring the performance of the management of the
Group;

6. reviewing the annual and interim results of the Group;

7. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective
internal control is in place to assess and manage the risk
of the Group and implementing appropriate systems to
manage these risks;

8. overseeing the Company’s relationships with its
Shareholders, customers, the community, various
government authorities, interest groups and others;

9. identifying and assessing any matters of substantial
Shareholder(s) or Director(s) resulting in conflict of interest;

10. determining material acquisitions and disposals of assets,
investments, capital, projects, authority levels, major
treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and
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11.

considering and determining issues which are the
responsibilities of the Board pursuant to the Company's
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws and the
relevant laws and regulations in force by which the
Company is governed from time to time.

The Board is also responsible for the following corporate
governance duties:

to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on any amendment or updating (if any);

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the Company's
senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Report”) under the CG Code; and

to be responsible for performing any other corporate
governance duties and functions set out in the CG Code
and the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time), or
delegating the responsibility to a committee or committees
(if applicable).

During the Year, the Company had reviewed its corporate

governance policy by the Board in achieving high standards of

corporate governance duties. The Board will further develop and

review this policy regularly and at least annually so as to make

recommendations on any amendment or updating (if any).

62

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

M. EERRERBARBEREAMEHAE
AU KRAFRERAT ZHNAEAE
FORERBEFEEREZEEH

EEeTaEUTEEE

BEE

UU]T

1. HERBRERARNZEEELSHRRRS
o ERMESTHNEN WA) REREE

2. ﬁ.ﬂ‘& S RESREARFEREEANE
Bl RSB EEEE

3. BAKRBERARATEE
EREZBRRER;

TERAREER

4. HIE-BAKRERBEARETAGREERE
EZORTREGHEFTM @A) ;

5. BMEARNTEFTEETHZBRRIEE
TETFHREEEARES (HEEARRK
E)AZHE &

o
‘I]]Tf

BERITEET R EHRA EREE
.J) e 2 AR EMEEE RS KB
BB EREEREKY —BEEEHZEE
BE (HEA) -

REFE  ARBEEREFTEEZIEEE
AR BNEINSKFZEXERHE -E
FERUEBERKRELEFH T RIESTIEE
B LU ERMEST N ERM H) IRhEe&E-



During the Year, the Board had delegated its authority to the
Nomination Committee to review its board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) for the Company and the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee. The Board (via the
reporting from the Nomination Committee) had reviewed and
considered the measurable objectives set for implementing the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy during the Year and would,
together with the Nomination Committee, regularly review the
progress on achieving those objectives.

The Board delegates to the management in respect of the major
corporate matters as stated below:

1.  preparation of the annual and interim results of the Group
to be approved by the Board;

2 execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the
Group adopted by the Board;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures of the Group; and

4. carrying out daily business operations and decision-
makings of the Group, etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board
has established various committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. These committees are
governed by their respective terms of reference, which describe
the authorities and duties of these committees and will be
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. These committees
include the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, and the Executive Committee
whose terms of reference had been set out in writing and
have been uploaded to the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.renco.com.hk)
respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. The Board was aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern which were detailed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. Having considered the factors
in Note 2, the Board has prepared the accounts on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor,
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 119 to 128 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is composed of three INEDs throughout
the Year.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an INED who has
the appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee discharges
its responsibilities as follows and in accordance with its existing
terms of reference being adopted by the Board:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim and
annual results and financial statements of the Company
and of the Group and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and
financial policies and practices of the Group;
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reviewing and primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
appointment, retirement, resignation or removal of
the Company’s external auditor and reviewing their
remuneration and terms of engagement, discussing their
audit plan and scope of audit, and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process up to applicable standard, and also reporting
the issues raised by the external auditor, including but
not limited to those stated in their management letter
addressed to the Board, implementing policy on engaging
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

re-

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor;

reviewing the fairness and reasonableness of connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) of the
Company, if any;

ensuring full access by the respective responsible teams
of the Group under corporate governance function of any
concerns that may have arisen during the course of their
corporate governance works;

conducting annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems
as delegated by the Board and considering any findings
of major investigation of its internal control and risk
management matters; and ensuring the Group's
management has discharged its duty to have an effective
internal control and risk management system including the
qualifications and experience of
staff from the Group; and

adequacy of resources,

reviewing arrangements which can be used by employees
of the Company, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters, and the whistleblowing policy
and system for employees which has been adopted by the
Board.

i =
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During the Year, three Audit Committee meetings were held
(whereas two of which had been held with the attendance of
the Company’s external auditor) to review the financial results
and reports for the year ended 31 December 2020 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2021, risk management and
internal control processes, related party transactions, continuing
connected transactions and discloseable transactions (if any),
roles and responsibilities as well as works performed by the
teams under corporate governance function, and the re-election
of the Company's external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated annual
results and financial statements of the Group for the Year,
including the significant accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group.

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
at its meetings during the Year is set out below:

REFEE BRZEEBET=Rg% (H
TMREREIN AT INEZBEANLE 2B
MTEERT)  UERABE_Z-_TF+°-A
S+ HLEFERBEE_FT_—FRB=+
HIEARBEREZMBEERRS  AREERA
BEEEF BEAIRZ FEREXS K
ATRERS WA) FEEEEABERK
ZABREEMMETZ T UKREEINE
22

BEREZECSCEEREFERNESFEZRS
EXERMBRE OEFAEERMNZERS
stIRAIR B A -

REFE KBRZEZEENENHEERZHE
feEESWMT

Attendance
Members of Audit Committee EZEZESHE HEX
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Chairman) RIELE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Ng Man Kung (Member) BRE (E) 3/3
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (Member) EHEELE (HE) 3/3
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Auditor’s Remuneration =R EM A =

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the BWBIZZECEEEZELTEREEIIEZHKLM-
appointment and re-election of the external auditor. During the RAXREER > REBAEIIEZHMPEZED
Year, the remunerations paid/payable to the external auditor, EtENIEEFIBRABSZAUTNER :
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, were as follows:

Fee paid/
payable
Type of services provided by the external auditor YMEEAZ EXEM IR 1t 2~ ARFS 48 R eft  EER
(HK$'000)
(FET)
Audit services: ZERTE -

Audit of the financial statements for the year ended EBEZEE_E_—4F+"H=+—H
31 December 2021 IFFEZFEMBRE 1,600
Tax services IR 600
2,200
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Throughout the Year, three members of the Remuneration
Committee were INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee performs the following roles
and functions in accordance with its terms of reference and its
written remuneration policy adopted by the Board:

68

ensuring formal and transparent procedures for overseeing,
developing and determining policies on the remuneration
packages of Directors and the Company’s senior
management;

assessing the achievement and performance and reviewing
the performance-based remuneration of executive
Directors and the Company’s senior management by
reference to the Company’s corporate goals;

approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
agreements or letters of appointment (as appropriate);

providing effective supervision and administration of the
Company'’s share award or option schemes and other share
incentive schemes (if available);

(i) determining with delegated responsibility on
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the Company’s senior management or
(i) recommending to the Board on executive Directors’
and the Company’s senior management’'s remuneration
packages (whereas the Remuneration Committee adopted
this model (ii) during the Year), and (iii) reviewing the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and INEDs; and

ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was
held to discuss and review the remuneration packages and
bonus (if any) of executive Directors and other Directors and the
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terms of their service agreements and letters of appointment, EE#M XA KRAER ZHMNER (22

the management’s remuneration and the remuneration #MEZEE@RESEKR EHHBA) -

policy of the Company and the Group (with reference to the

Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference and Listing

Rules).

The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration RAEE  EHMNEETHENRHEGEZ ZHE

Committee at its meeting for the Year is set out below: AERESIWT -

Attendance

Members of Remuneration Committee FrNEEERE H
Mr. Ng Man Kung (Chairman) B E (F/EF) 171
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Member) RIS (B E) 11
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (Member) EERERE (HS) 1/1

During the Year, the Company has reviewed and made RER > &xA T E MR ENEER (TEHBNE

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy (the
“Remuneration Policy”) as at the date of this annual report
which were set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Remuneration Policy is to set out the
principles by which the remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are determined.

Remuneration of the Directors

The Directors, with the exception of the Chairman of the
Board,
time by the Board, and subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee pursuant to the power given by the Shareholders
under the Bye-laws, with reference to the contribution of the
Directors in terms of time, skills and expertise, the prevailing
market conditions and the remuneration benchmark in the
industry.

receive a fixed fee. The fee is determined from time to

No Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee would review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of Directors for misconduct in consistent with their contractual
terms of employment and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

Remuneration of executive Directors and Senior
Management

The executive Directors and senior management of the Group
are rewarded in line with the market rate and in compliance
with statutory requirements of all jurisdictions where the
Company operates.

Reference should be made by considering salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the group.

A significant proportion of executive Directors’ remuneration
should link rewards to corporate and individual performance.

The Directors may also be entitled to a bonus which depends
on both their own performance and the financial results of the
Group.

The remuneration levels of the executive Directors and senior
management of the Group should be sufficient to attract
and retain Directors to run the Company successfully without
paying more than necessary and with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives.

Each of the executive Directors and senior management of
the Group has executed contract of employment or letter of
employment with the Company, whereas any compensation
payable for any loss or termination of office or appointment
has been stated in employment contracts or letters whose
contractual terms are fair and not excessive.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors

The remuneration of non-executive Directors and INEDs has
been recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for consideration.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and INEDs has executed
letter of employment with the Company, whereas any
compensation payable for any loss or termination of office or
appointment has been stated in employment letters whose
contractual terms are fair and not excessive.

Reference has been made by considering salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the group.

Regular review on the Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy is intended to provide a flexible set
of guidelines for the effective functioning of the Company's
remuneration package. The Board and the Remuneration
Committee intend to review the Remuneration Policy at least
annually and anticipate that modifications may be necessary
from time to time as the Company’s needs and circumstances
evolve, and as applicable if and where the legal obligations or
any applicable statutory requirements change.

During the Year, the Company has reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of Directors and the Company’s senior management.

Share option scheme

The Company may establish and operate share option scheme
("“Scheme”) for the purposes of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants, including Directors and senior
management of the Group for their contribution to the success
of the Group’s operations with the Scheme’s terms and
conditions being made reference to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, the Bye-laws, laws of Hong Kong or Bermuda
or other regulations (whichever applicable) at any time the
Directors think favourable to the Company for recommendation
to the Shareholders for adoption at any of the Company’s
general meeting.
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Share award scheme

On 17 May 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”), which is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purposes of the share award scheme are (i) to provide those
eligible persons with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary
interest in the Company; (ii) to encourage and retain such
individual to work with the Company; and (iii) to provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance goals, with
a view to achieving the objectives of increasing the value of the
Company and aligning the interests of those eligible persons
directly to Shareholders through their ownership of shares in the
Company.

In order to reduce the operating cost and due to the changes of
the operating strategies of the Group, the Share Award Scheme
was terminated and cancelled on 27 March 2020. Further
details in relation to the termination of the Share Award Scheme
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March
2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Throughout the Year, three members of the Nomination
Committee were INEDs.

The Nomination Committee performs the following roles and
functions in accordance with its nomination procedures and
criteria as follows and in accordance with its terms of reference
and its written nomination policies adopted by the Board:

1. determining the policy for the nomination of Directors
during the Year;

2. adopting the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the Year by considering the candidates’
past performance and experience, academic and working
qualifications, general market conditions in accordance
with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the
Bye-laws so as to make the composition of the Board filled
with a diverse and a balance of skills and experience;

72 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

% 19 82 Bh 51 21

20165170 AR B BIE 7 —ERDEE
T2 (TR 82 Eh st 8.) > ZET 8RS L RA
F+TERENOE-

RNDEBSEZENRE  ((REEGERAL
RUHESATDEARGDNEE (IZBNEE
BLEARNTGERA (IHAMPIBIRAQEE
EEXEERRMEENVER wRBMMAE
ABEUBRBMALTNEEB R

ARESERAI AR EB LSS RENFEE
B SRSt 8172202053827 H AR IE KREUH ©
BERAKRLERODEBFINE—THEBINRA
B]722020FE3827H A S ©

RBWEEY
REFE  RREEEG=-LHREHRHBILIFHR
TES-

RLZEGREBEUTRBRER RER LUIKIR
BEFEMRMZIBREERESHERR
RoOBITUTHB KRB

1. EERFERRBRESFZER,

2. FEERBETRAMEEERETAF
MBBMER K E BIRIEAZBERFERKE
B BMKEIFERE - —MRMERRE
RINIRRIRT » URBEE R IR NERE
EFVARKEE NFEFEHAES
BRI e R A B 2 N LHERK ;



3. reviewing regularly the roles of Directors and considering
any issue on conflict of interest, their performance and
conduct;

4. assessing the independence of INEDs pursuant to the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules; and

5. reviewing regularly the Nomination Policy and Board
Diversity Policy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness
of these policies and to review any progress on achieving
those objectives in these policies.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held
to discuss and review (i) the retiring Directors to be re-elected
at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company; (ii) the
independence of the INEDs; (iii) the terms of appointment of
Directors; (iv) the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (v)
the role, performance and conduct of the existing Directors
(including but not limited to the issues on any conflict of
interest); (vi) any nomination of potential candidate in place of
the resigned Director(s) to the Board; and (vii) the Nomination
Policy and Board Diversity Policy (including its measurable
objectives and progress on achieving those objectives) of the
Company (with reference to the Nomination Committee’s terms
of reference and Listing Rules).

The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee at its meeting for the Year is set out below:
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Mr. Ng Man Kung (Member) EXHEE (E) A

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Member) RNELRE (BHE) 1/1
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The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy to enhance its
effectiveness. The Nomination Policy is intended to provide a
flexible set of guidelines for the effective functioning of the
Company’s nomination process. The Board and the Nomination
Committee intend to review the Nomination Policy (together
with the Board Diversity Policy) at least annually and anticipate
that modifications may be necessary from time to time as the
Company’s needs and circumstances evolve, and as applicable
if and where the legal obligations or requirements in the Listing
Rules or laws of Hong Kong or Bermuda or other regulations
change. The details of the Nomination Policy as at the date of
this annual report were set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set out the process
by which candidates of possible inclusion in the Company's
recommended slate of director nominees are selected.
The Nomination Policy is administered by the Nomination
Committee.

Composition of the Board
The Nomination Committee will ensure that:

1. the Board will consist of Directors with a variety and
a balance of skills and experience in accounting,
manufacturing, marketing, finance, investment and legal
professions and with reference to the criteria and diversity
set out in the Board Diversity Policy and the Listing Rules;

2. the Company should maintain the minimum number of
INEDs as required by the Listing Rules;

3. anew INED should be appointed if all INEDs on the Board
have served more than 9 years as long-serving INEDs;

4.  regular assessment will be conducted on the independence
of INEDs for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
especially considering the independence of those long-
serving INEDs and if there is any reason for doubting
whether such INED is still considered as independent
pursuant to the Listing Rules or other regulations, it
may propose the re-designation of the INED into other
directorate position in the Board; and
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5. the Board should not consist of Directors with a
single gender and will endeavour to comply with the
requirements of the diversity of the Board from time to
time with effect from the date(s) stipulated by the Listing
Rules and with reference to the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company.

Nomination and selection criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account the
Company’s current requirements and the qualities needed for
the Board’s services when the candidate is being considered for
election as Director, including but not limited to:

1. the ethical character, integrity and maturity of judgment of
the candidate;

2. the candidate’s experience at the policy-making level
in the industry and business, the PRC and Hong Kong
governments, education or other settings;

3. the candidate’s insight into material aspects of the
Company’s business;

4. the expertise of the candidate in areas that are useful to
the Company and complementary to the background and
experience of other Board members;

5. the candidate’s willingness to take an active interest in the
Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of
its business, and to devote the required amount of time
to carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Board
and various committees’ membership if being invited,;

6. the candidate’'s willingness to report to the Board in a
timely manner any new change in his/her office held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, the time involved, identities of
such public companies and organisations;

7. the willingness of the candidate to serve on the Board for
multiple terms;
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.
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the willingness of the candidate to refrain from engaging
in activities that may be in conflict with the Director’s
duties and responsibilities to the Company and its
Shareholders;

the candidate’s independence under the Listing Rules,
especially if he/she is appointed as INED, and if the
proposed INED will be holding his/her seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, the reasons why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board, his/her perspectives, skills and
experience that he/she can bring to the Board and how the
proposed INED contributes to diversity of the Board;

the candidate’s service on other boards of directors of the
Group or of other companies (whether they are listed or
non-listed);

the candidate’s willingness to participate in continuous
professional development courses annually to be arranged
and funded by the Company;

the candidate’s willingness to attend general meetings of
the Company;

the candidate’s obligation to disclose his/her information
on all civil judgments of fraud, breach of duty, or other
misconduct involving dishonesty (if any);

the candidate’s willingness to comply with the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements in full for discharging
Directors’ liabilities; and

whether the candidate as Director can achieve the diversity

of the Board as set out in the Listing Rules from time to
time.
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For those potential new director candidates who appear upon
first consideration to meet the Board’'s selection criteria, the
Nomination Committee will conduct appropriate inquiries into
their background and qualifications and, depending on the
result of such inquiries, arrange for in-person meeting with the
potential candidates.

In the case of incumbent Directors whose terms of office are set
to expire, the Nomination Committee will review such Directors’
overall service to the Company during their terms of office in
the Company, and if feasible and appropriate, will conduct an
exit interview.

The Nomination Committee may use multiple sources for
identifying potential new director candidates, including but not
limited to:

1. its own contacts and referrals from other Directors,
members of the management of the Company, the
Company’s professional advisors, and executive search
firms;

2. the potential new director candidates being recommended
by the Shareholders with the evaluation in the
same manner with other director candidates being
recommended by other sources; and

3. making recommendations for potential new director
candidates to be proposed to the Board for election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Nomination Committee will consider any written
recommendation of potential new director candidates
pursuant to Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws. Recommendations
must include the candidate’s name, contact information
and a statement of the candidate’s background and
qualifications, and must be lodged at the head office or
the registered office of the Company for the attention of
the chairman of the Board/Company Secretary.
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The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to enhance
its effectiveness. In designing the Board’'s composition, the
Board Diversity Policy has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, regional and industry
experience, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
services and time to be devoted as a Director. The Company will
consider all measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of its business strategies and in order
for the Board to be effective. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The details of the Board Diversity Policy were set
out below:

1. Purpose
1.1 The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
diversity on the Board.

2. Scope of Application
2.1 The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

2.2 The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and
does not apply to diversity in relation to employees of
the Group.

3. Board Diversity Policy Statement
3.1 In designing the Board’s composition, the Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
Board members.

3.2 Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
regional and industry experience, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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3.3

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
the composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board on appointment of
new Directors. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of the Board’s diversity.

4. Measurable Objectives

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually all measurable objectives for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and achieving the Board's
diversity and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

Selection of candidates for Board members will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, regional and
industry experience, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, as well as the
criterion set out in the Company’s Nomination Policy.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The Board’'s composition (including gender,
age, length of service, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge) will
be disclosed in the Company’s CG Report annually
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

5. Monitoring and Reporting

5.1

The Nomination Committee will report annually,
in the CG Report, on the Board’'s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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6. Review of the Board Diversity Policy
6.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy regularly, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and to
review any progress on achieving those objectives in
the Board Diversity Policy.

6.2 The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Under the CG Code provision B.2.2, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Bye-
laws has provided that at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

The Bye-laws has provided that the Board shall have power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
Director so appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and shall then be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election, but shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at such meeting.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee operates with overall delegated
authority from the Board. The Executive Committee carries out
the following tasks for the purposes of dealing with the affairs
relating to the day-to-day operations of the Group:

1. determining group strategies;

2. setting targets for the management;
3. reviewing business performance;

4.  ensuring adequate funding; and

5. examining major investments.

During the period from 1 January 2021 to 3 November 2021,
the sole member of the Executive Committee was Mr. Shan
Yongxin (a then executive Director) who resigned as member
of the Executive Committee (following his resignation as
an executive Director) with effect from 4 November 2021.
Following the resignation of Mr. Shan Yongxin with effect
from 4 November 2021, there was no member in the Executive
Committee as at the date of this annual report.

During the Year, no Executive Committee meeting had been
held as no significant events and transactions were carried out.

During the Year, the terms of reference for the Executive
Committee had been amended and restated.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Group provides briefings, reading materials and other
training opportunities to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills so as to keep them abreast of their
collective responsibilities and to put more emphasis on the
importance of roles, functions and duties of Directors.

The Group continuously updates the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices, and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

During the Year and as required by and in compliance with the
CG Code, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

EFHEIIKRZE
AEERHEEN T REEN KEMEIE
TOUERKRERSF2AHARE RS
RZFREERERS EEEES2AC B
BERBEZEE M

FEBFERL LT RUKREMBEREERE
ZHERARNERAESFRERMER  DHER
BTITREFCXEARR LRSBREHZFR
MzBd URBRREENBEZERLTHE
EEFRYEREZEM

REFE REEETRZREE EFE2 A
BUF 53l

Types of Training

Name of Directors EEHA o pe R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung S0 R L% A - C
Mr. Shan Yongxin BRERE
(resigned on 4 November 2021) (BR-ZFEZ—F

+—A 9 H FFHE) - - C
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Li Yongjun (Chairman) FXEBEERE (FE) - - C
INEDs BUFHITEE
Mr. Ng Man Kung SRRt - - @
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence E e A - -
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei EEELE - - C

A:

giving talks at seminars/conferences/forums

attending seminars/conferences/forums (via different means)

self-reading: (newspapers, journals and updates on: global and
Hong Kong economy, business of the Group, updates on Listing
Rules, directors’ duties, relevant statutory requirements)
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board established a whistleblowing policy on 27 March
2012 which deals with and governs proper and fair concerns
raised by the Group’'s employees about any suspected
malpractice or misconduct regarding financial reporting, internal
control or other matters within the Group. The Audit Committee
shall review regularly this policy and ensure that arrangements
are in place for independent and fair investigation of these
matters and for appropriate following-up action.

The responsible teams of different sections or departments
within the Group under corporate governance function play a
major role in monitoring the internal corporate governance of
the Group. They have unrestricted access to the information
that allow them to review all aspects of the Group’s risk
management and governance processes in connection with
nature of compliance and legal requirements. It also has the
power to consult directly with the Audit Committee without the
consent of the Company’s management.

During the Year, the Group has complied with the CG Code
by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its businesses and operations. The
system comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of

objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
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. Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the enterprise risk assessments conducted in 2021, no
significant risk was identified which might materially affect the
Group’s businesses and operations except the adverse impacts
of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
controls across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensuring that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain

whether each component of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
and to ensure the truthfulness,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group

information, accuracy,
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures for the Group's directors, officers and all relevant
employees. The term refers to employee
of the Group, who, because of his office or employment, is
likely to be in possession of the unpublished inside information.
The above-mentioned persons are also recommended to
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside

“relevant employee”

make reference to the
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Internal controls on handling and dissemination of inside
information are in place.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2021, no
significant control deficiency which might affect the reliability
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an internal audit (“IA") function, which consists
of professional staff with relevant expertise performed by a
professional firm. The IA function is independent from the
Group's daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.
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An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually and the
results are reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensures that review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board's review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of different levels of risks since the last annual
review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (ii) the scope and
quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA
function and the Audit Committee during the Year, concluded
that the risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

OPERATION RISKS

The Group has implemented appropriate policies and procedures
for all major operations. The management closely monitors
the procurement process and performs due diligence check on
suppliers. The quality assurance department and the reliability
department ensure the stability of the manufacturing process
and monitor products quality. The Group also strives to promote
human resources reforms and comprehensively enhances cost
management. At the same time, the management also keeps
a close eye on every investment process to ensure that they
have exercised due care towards those investments made. By
establishing clear policies and a well-documented business
process, the exposure to operation risks is considered as minimal
by the Group.

86 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

EFCTEMERNELE - RETRAE

RERHAEERBREERANBPEZERRET
Bz hEGRHEREBERZEGERTE
EHgo

R EERAEERRARE

EFCEEFEENAREERANEEER
MoOUERSFHZFRAFENBERNEETSE
Z-BEFEEREEZREETHE  SEERR
ROB L —REEEZRETEREEREBNMEE
REENEE hAEEREHEFRINEIR
BEHNED ; R(NEEBFERIZEKRNGE
EhERRANEEERGNEERE R

REEE EFTEBHBERAN
REZZEBFHNEZELRE
&W%%E%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%%?ﬁﬁﬁ%%
MEEEEMFERAREEREFERNE
B BEMAEEEARRBERIMSIBRIFLS
EMFENRE-BR BETIEERERET
eI RIS BRIt 8| RFAEHTEE T
Eo

*B%V ThAE
R B E 1

SiE R
AEBEMAEFEEEERETEE I
REARER EREERVEREERR LHH
EHETERAT REREFMAKERAITSE
MR FREARBENRESERZ
B - AEENTRNRBANERNEREA
RANABEE - EEETRERHER
R URRHREERNDBEMIEHIERE -
LLﬁiﬁWﬂ%&”“ﬁﬁ¥$&r'$$
B A S E E ki o



INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
on 27 March 2012 for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders and other stakeholders and encouraging them
to communicate actively with the Company. This policy sets
out the principles of the Company, in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring that its
communications with the Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including potential investors) with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments, governance and risk profile),
in order to enable the Shareholders and other stakeholders
to exercise their rights in an informed manner mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications (such as interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, notices of
meetings, proxy forms and listing documents), annual general
meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on
the website of the Company.

Interim reports, annual reports and circulars and associated
explanatory documents etc are sent to the Shareholders and are
also posted on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.
hk) and the Company’s website (www.renco.com.hk) under a
dedicated “Investor Relations” section in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single
language, and will be updated on a regular basis and in a timely
manner. The Company’s website provides the Shareholders with
the corporate information, such as principal business activities,
the development of corporate governance and the corporate
social responsibilities of the Group such as environmental
protection, etc.
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Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address (as indicated below), in order to enable them or even
the Board to make any enquiry that they may have with respect
to the Company or the Group. In addition, if the registered
Shareholders have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlements to dividend, they can contact Tricor Tengis
Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office, through the online holding enquiry service at
www.tricoris.com or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.
com or hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or fax at (852) 2810 8185 or
in person at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. However, Shareholders may send their enquiries to
the following contacts:

Principal place of
business in Hong

: Unit 2707, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Kong
For the attention of Chairman of the
Board/Company Secretary
Telephone : (852) 2710 2323
Fax : (852) 2323 8137
Email . investor.relations@renco.com.hk

The Company’s general meetings allow the Directors, members
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee respectively, and its external
auditor to meet and communicate with its Shareholders and
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The Company will ensure
that the Shareholders’ views can be properly communicated to
the Board. For each substantially separate issue at a general
meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed by the
chairman of that meeting, for instances, nomination of persons
as Directors by means of a separate resolution. The Procedures
for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director
of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the
Company.
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The proceedings of general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate
governance practices. An annual general meeting shall be called
by not less than twenty clear business days’ notice and twenty-
one clear days' notice in writing at the least. All other general
meetings (including a special general meeting) shall be called by
ten clear business days’ notice and fourteen clear days' notice
in writing at the least (whereas the notice shall be exclusive of
the day on which it is given or deemed to be given and of the
day for which it is given), and the accompanying circular also
sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the general meetings exercises his power
under the Bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to the vote
by way of a poll, save for the resolutions (if any) proposed by
the chairman of the meeting regarding the approval on the
procedural or administrative matters as defined in the Listing
Rules. The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are
explained at the general meetings prior to the polls being taken.
Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general
meeting are entitled to ask about the poll voting procedures
and details of the proposed resolutions at the general meeting
whose questions should be answered during the general
meeting prior to the conduction of poll voting. Announcement
on poll voting results of general meeting will be posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of
promoting investor relations and effective communication with
the Shareholders and analysts by better utilising the Company's
website (www.renco.com.hk) as a channel to disclose the
Company’s updated information and corporate communications
to the Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on a timely
basis.
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Shareholders Rights

Convening a special general meeting by Shareholders

The Directors, pursuant to Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (“Companies Act”) and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-
laws shall, on the requisition of the Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do
so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act.

The requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company'’s registered office and the principal place of business
in Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Pursuant to section 74(3) of the Companies Act, if the Directors
do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a general meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a general meeting, but any general meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the said
date.

A general meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be

convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.
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Any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth (1/20) of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
or not less than 100 Shareholders, may make a requisition in
writing to the Company to do the following (which will be
done at the expense of the requisitionists unless the Company
otherwise resolves):

(i) to give the Shareholders a notice of the next annual
general meeting and notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and/or

(i) to circulate to the Shareholders a notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.

A copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists, or
two or more copies which contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office and
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company in
the following manner:

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution,
not less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting,

and there must be deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

However please note that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time limit stated above shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by
reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a general
meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

A Shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at investor.relations@renco.com.hk, or
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 2707, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong
Kong, specifying his/her/its shareholding information, his/her/
its contact details and the proposal (the “Proposal”) he/she/
it intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding any
specified transaction/business with supporting documents.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the
Board will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal
may be included in the agenda for the general meeting to be set
out in the notice of meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2707, Tower One, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board of
Directors/Company Secretary.

Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
the Shareholders to be the goal. The dividend policy aims
at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating
the Shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company.
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According to the dividend policy, while the Company intends to
declare and pay dividends in the future, the payment and the
amount of any dividends will depend on a number of factors,
including but not limited to:

(i)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(iii) profits available for distribution, retained earnings and

distributable reserves of the Company and each of the

members of the Group;

(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate and

relevant.

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends
in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The recommendation of the
dividends by the Company shall be determined at the sole
discretion of the Board and shall be subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Act and every other Act of Bermuda,
the Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.
Any declaration of annual dividend for the financial year
ended of the Company will be subject to the approval by the
Shareholders. The dividend policy adopted by the Board is
intended for the Company to maintain adequate cash reserves
to meet its capital requirements, fund its future growth and
enhance shareholder value when dividends are recommended.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed by the Board
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.

31 May 2022
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"REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

Details of the analysis of the Group's revenue for the Year by
geographical location are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion on the Group’s business review, and operating
and financial performance during the Year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development as well as the
Group’s financial key performance indicators are included
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 7 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 55 of this
annual report.

Particulars on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, and key relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and others were set out in the ESG Report on pages
263 to 300 of this annual report. All these disclosures form part
of the contents of the Report of the Directors.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is now operating in a highly competitive business
and economic environment, in particular, the manufacturing
segment. Manufacturing segment is greatly affected by its
customers which are highly volatile combined with rising labour
and production costs. The Group’s manufacturing segment
has to compete with its competitors on various factors such
as product variety, product performance, customer service,
quality, pricing, new product innovation, timely delivery and
brand recognition. On the other hand, volatility in Hong Kong
securities market may affect the Group's performance on listed
securities investments resulting in fluctuations in unrealised fair
value gains or losses. Rising in interest rate is highly likely and
this will affect not only the Group’s costs of borrowings but
also costs of purchases on materials. In addition to risks and
uncertainties mentioned above, the Group is also subject to
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the normal
course of the Group's business and further details of which are
set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations such as the Companies Act in Bermuda,
the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, and laws and
regulations implemented by relevant jurisdictions. The Company
believes the existing laws and regulations do not have any
significant effect on the Group's activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’'s loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 129 to 133.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any declaration of
dividend payment for the Year (2020: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 262. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s issued share capital for
the Year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders though there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 134.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Companies Act, the contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution or payment of
dividends to the Shareholders provided that immediately
following such distribution or payment, the Company is able to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves include
share premium of approximately HK$2,559,569,000 (2020:
HK$2,559,569,000) which may be available for dividend
distribution upon the passing of special resolution by the
Shareholders at the general meeting to reduce the share
premium amount and transfer it to contributed surplus after
offsetting with the accumulated losses of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the revenue from the largest and the five largest
customers amounted to approximately 11% (2020: 17%) and
43% (2020: 74%) of the Group’s revenue respectively.

For the Year, the purchase of materials from the largest and the
five largest suppliers amounted to approximately 10% (2020:
11%) and approximately 41% (2020: 43%) of the Group's total
purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) has any interest in any of the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group for the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary, for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the financial affairs of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public
float of 25% as required by the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Tenancy Agreement

On 29 May 2020, Topsearch Printed Circuits (HK) Limited
(“Topsearch PC (HK)”) as a tenant (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into a renewed
tenancy agreement (the “"Renewed Tenancy Agreement”)
with Keentop Investment Limited as a landlord (an investment
holding company and a connected person of the Company as
defined under the Listing Rules, which is beneficially owned as
to 50% by each of Mr. Cheok Ho Fung, an executive Director
and his spouse, Mrs. Cheok Chu Wai Min) in respect of the
lease of the properties known as House 7 and the Garden
appurtenant thereto and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 7A and 7B on
Basement Floor, Las Pinadas, No. 33 Shouson Hill Road, Hong
Kong for a lease term of three years commencing from 1 June
2020 to 31 May 2023 (both days inclusive) as director’s quarters
provided to Mr. Cheok and his family.

Keentop Investment Limited charged Topsearch PC (HK) a
monthly rental of HK$165,000 (exclusive of rates, management
fee and other outgoings) and a monthly management fee
of HK$18,000. The annual cap under the Renewal Tenancy
Agreement is HK$2,350,000. The terms of the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis and
are considered as fair and reasonable and on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Renewed Tenancy Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company but is exempt from
Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

In respect of the Renewed Tenancy Agreement which constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company, the INEDs have
reviewed the said transaction and confirmed that the said
transaction has been entered into:

(1) after arm’s length negotiation and for the purpose of and
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and
(3) according to the Renewed Tenancy Agreement governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung
Mr. Shan Yongxin
(resigned on 4 November 2021)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Yongjun (Chairman)

INEDs:

Mr. Ng Man Kung (resigned on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence

Mr. Mak Kwok Kei

In accordance with the Listing Rules and Bye-law 84 of the Bye-
laws, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-
laws, the Directors shall have the power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorization by the
Shareholders in general meeting, as an addition to the existing
Board but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall
not exceed any maximum number determined from time to time
by the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.
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Mr. Li Yongjun (non-executive Director) and Mr. Lau Fai
Lawrence (INED) shall retire from office by rotation pursuant to
Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has any
service contract with the Company in respect of any unexpired
period which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok”)

Mr. Cheok (alias: Peter), aged 70, is an executive Director who
tendered his resignation as the deputy chairman of the Board
and a member of the Executive Committee with effect from 6
April 2020. He is the founder of the Group.

Mr. Cheok has over 30 years of experience in the PCBs industry
and is also involved in the business of real estate development in
China, and other high-tech products.

Mr. Cheok had held the positions of financial controller and
various management positions in different multinational
companies involved in computer related products, application
systems, motor vehicles and agricultural equipment, ship
repairing and oil-rig construction, business-form printing and
PCBs manufacturing. Mr. Cheok has been a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1980,
a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants since 1981 and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 1990.
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Mr. Cheok entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 30 May 2002 for an initial fixed term of three years and
shall continue thereafter for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the day immediately following the expiry
of the then current terms of the service agreement. Such
agreement may be terminated by either party by giving not
less than six months’ written notice to the other party. He is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company pursuant to the Bye-laws.
His remuneration and performance bonus was approved by the
Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders to
authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time. Under the service agreement with
Mr. Cheok, he was entitled to receive an annual remuneration of
approximately HK$5,227,000 including the housing benefits in
kind for the Year.

Prior to 15 January 2016, Mr. Cheok was one of the then
substantial Shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules), a
director and a shareholder of Inni International Inc. which was
also one of the then substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheok had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group
and he had not held any other directorships in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years. Other
than the relationship arising from being an executive Director
(and being the deputy chairman of the Board and a member
of the Executive Committee before he tendered his resignation
with effect from 6 April 2020), Mr. Cheok does not have any
relationships with any other Directors and senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Cheok has no interest or deemed interest and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and there are no other matters
concerning Mr. Cheok that need to be brought to the attention
of the Shareholders nor any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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Mr. Shan Yongxin (“Mr. Shan”) (resigned on 4 November
2021)

Mr. Shan, aged 42, was an executive Director of the Board and a
member of the Executive Committee prior to his resignation on
4 November 2021. He joined the Group on 30 August 2019 and
resigned as executive Director on 4 November 2021.

Mr. Shan obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from Central
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC in June 2004. He
was granted the qualification as a chartered financial analyst
("CFA") by CFA Institute certified by the Occupational Skill
Testing Authority of Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC in March 2010 and was registered as a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 2011.

Mr. Shan has over 15 years of working experience in corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, audit consulting and financial
management. From August 2004 to July 2011, Mr. Shan worked
with PricewaterhouseCoopers in Beijing. He was a departmental
manager prior to leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers in Beijing. Mr.
Shan then served with PricewaterhouseCoopers in New Zealand
during the period from August 2011 to July 2014. He was a
senior manager prior to leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers in New
Zealand. From December 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Shan was the
finance-in-charge officer of Anbang Insurance Group (USA).
During the period from April 2016 to September 2018, Mr.
Shan worked with Beijing Orient Landscape & Environment Co.,
Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002310). He had served in its various subsidiaries
and was a vice-president of one of its various subsidiaries before
he left. Since March 2019, Mr. Shan has been serving as the
vice president of Eternal Glory Holdings Limited, a substantial
Shareholder of the Company.
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On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a service
agreement with Mr. Shan on his appointments as an executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee for an
initial term of three years commencing from 30 August 2019.
The term is renewable automatically for successive term of
three years on the same terms and conditions, unless not less
than thirty days’ notice given by either party in writing of its
decision not to renew the agreement. Such agreement may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice to the other party. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company pursuant to the Bye-laws. His remuneration was
approved by the Board subject to the authority granted by
the Shareholders to authorise the Board to fix the Directors’
remuneration at the annual general meeting of the Company
with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Company and the prevailing market situation and shall be
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.
Under the service agreement with Mr. Shan, he was entitled
to an annual remuneration of approximately HK$2,533,000
per annum for the period from 1 January 2021 to 4 November
2021.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Shan had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group
and he had not held any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other
than the relationship arising from being an executive Director
of the Board and a member of the Executive Committee, Mr.
Shan does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Shan has no interest or
deemed interest and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and
there are no other matters concerning Mr. Shan that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Yongjun (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 53, is a non-executive Director of the Board and
was appointed as Chairman of the Board with effect from 6
April 2020. He joined the Group on 30 August 2019.

Mr. Li obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in the PRC in September 2008. He obtained a qualification
certificate as a senior engineer in the PRC in July 2001.

Mr. Li has over 20 years’ of working experience in enterprise
strategic decision making and corporate management. He is
currently the president of Yongxinhua Holding Group Co., Ltd.
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Yongxinhua Holding”).
Mr. Li founded the Yongxinhua Holding in 2003, which is an
integrated and multipurpose corporation and a co-partner of
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
(UNESCO) in the world intangible cultural heritage industry.
Its principal activities include equity investment in financial
institutions, cultural industry integration and innovation
development, development and construction of cultural industry
park and protection of intangible cultural heritage. Since May
2018, Mr. Li has been serving as an executive director and
vice chairman of the board of directors of Crown International
Corporation Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 727).
Mr. Li was the chief executive officer of Crown International
Corporation Limited from July 2018 to March 2019.

Mr. Li is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition,
the vice chairman of the “Belt and Road” Silk Road Planning
Researching Center, the vice chairman of the China Industry
University Research Collaboration Association and the vice
chairman of the China Intangible Cultural Heritage Protection
Association.
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On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a service
agreement with Mr. Li on his appointment as a non-executive
Director for an initial term of three years commencing from 30
August 2019, which is renewable automatically for successive
term of three years on the same terms and conditions, unless it
is terminable by either party by giving to the other one month’s
prior notice in writing. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to the Bye-laws. His remuneration was approved by
the Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders
to authorize the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time. Under the service agreement with
Mr. Li, he was entitled to receive an annual remuneration of
HK$600,000 for the Year.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than
the relationship arising from being a non-executive Director,
(and the Chairman of the Board since 6 April 2020), Mr. Li
does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Details of Mr. Li's interest or
deemed interest and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at
31 December 2021 have been disclosed in this annual report
on page 111 under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” of the Report of the Directors.
There are no other matters concerning Mr. Li that need to
be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

INEDs
Mr. Ng Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) (resigned on 21 March 2022)

Mr. Ng, aged 70, was an INED prior to his resignation on 21
March 2022. He joined the Group on 22 March 2016 as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
and resigned on 21 March 2022.

Mr. Ng graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
an attendance certificate in banking. Mr. Ng has been senior
management in banking industry of Hong Kong for 28 years. He
was appointed as the managing director and general manager
of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 1992 and the vice-
chairman and chief executive of Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited in 2001. He retired from Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited in 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the council of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 1999 to 2003 and
was a member of Fujian Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013.
Mr. Ng served as a business consultant of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holdings Limited from January
2014 to April 2015 and a non-executive director of Roma
Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8072) from August 2017 to
December 2017. He has been appointed as the chairman of the
supervisory board of Well Link Bank in Macau since 31 March
2018.

Mr. Ng is currently the INED of each of Fujian Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 181) since June 2014, ELL Environmental
Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1395) since September
2014 and Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science
Company Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1084) since September
2019. Mr. Ng was the INED of each of Guoan International
Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 143) from March 2016 to February
2021 and Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (HKSE Stock Code:
755) from May 2017 to January 2021.
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Mr. Ng had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 22
March 2016. The term is renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by the INED or the Company expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company pursuant to the Bye-laws.

Mr. Ng was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Ng was approved by the
Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders to
authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than
the relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee, Mr.
Ng does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ng has no interest or deemed
interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and there are no
other matters concerning Mr. Ng that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor any information required to be
disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (“Mr. Lau”)

Mr. Lau, aged 50, is an INED. He joined the Group on 22 March
2016. He is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Nomination Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Authorised Representative of
the Company.

Mr. Lau is currently a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. Mr. Lau graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration in 1994 and obtained a master’s degree
in corporate finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2007.

Mr. Lau joined BBMG Corporation on 6 August 2008 as joint
company secretary and qualified accountant. Since 26 October
2012, Mr. Lau has been serving as the company secretary of
BBMG Corporation.

Before joining BBMG Corporation, Mr. Lau served as the
group financial controller and qualified accountant of Founder
Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 418) and Peking University
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 618),
both companies being listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lau is an executive director of Future World
Financial Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) (HKSE Stock Code: 572). Mr. Lau is an INED of each
of Artini Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 789) and Titan
Petrochemicals Group Limited (in liquidation) (suspension of
trading since 1 April 2021) (HKSE Stock Code: 1192), shares
of both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, respectively. Mr. Lau was a non-executive director
of Alltronics Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 833) from
March 2017 to December 2018 and an INED of Winto Group
(Holdings) Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8238) from April 2019
to November 2019. Mr. Lau has been appointed as the INED
of Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8156)
since January 2020, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and appointed as the INED of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1185) since
March 2020, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau has been appointed as the company
secretary of HM International Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock
Code: 8416), whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 14 August 2020. From November
2018 to November 2020, Mr. Lau had been the INED of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited whose shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 1219)
before the delisting in November 2020.
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Mr. Lau had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 22
March 2016. The term is renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by the INED or the Company expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company pursuant to the Bye-laws.

Mr. Lau was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Lau was approved by the
Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders to
authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than the
relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Authorised
Representative, Mr. Lau does not have any relationships with any
other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders,
or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Lau has no
interest or deemed interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) and there are no other matters concerning Mr. Lau that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (“Mr. Mak”)

Mr. Mak (alias: Eric), aged 36, is an INED. He joined the Group
on 17 July 2018. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Mak has over ten years of experience in securities sales and
trading and capital markets advisory at various international
investment banks, specialising in initial public offerings and
capital fund raising for companies in Hong Kong and China.
He worked as a trainee in Credit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank (Hong Kong Branch), a financial services
company, where he was mainly engaged in transacting various
high grade corporate and government bonds with central
banks in Asia, from September 2009 to November 2010. He
also worked at Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited, a
financial services company, as associate where he was mainly
engaged in both primary and secondary equity fund raising
activities for listed companies and high-net-worth individuals
in Asia, from November 2010 to August 2015. From October
2015 to June 2018, he has served as a managing director and
head of equity capital markets in Zhongtai International Capital
Limited, a corporate finance advisory company. He was primarily
responsible for providing capital markets advisory services to
clients and operating and managing the equity capital markets
franchise. During January 2019 to July 2021, he had served
as member of executive committee and head of investment
banking division of Soochow Securities International Capital
Limited (formerly known as China Investment Securities (Hong
Kong) Financial Holdings Limited) who was in charge of the
investment banking division, including IPO sponsoring, debt and
equity fund raising and financial advisory.

Mr. Mak has been a limited partner in WI Harper Fund VIII
LP, which is mainly engaged in venture capital investments in
healthcare and technology sectors, since May 2016.

Mr. Mak is currently an INED of Lapco Holdings Limited (HKSE

Stock Code: 8472), whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Mak obtained a bachelor degree with first class honour in
applied business management from Imperial College London,
United Kingdom in August 2008 and subsequently obtained
a master degree in philosophy from University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom in October 2009.

Mr. Mak had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 17
July 2018. The term is renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by the INED or the Company expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company pursuant to the Bye-laws.

Mr. Mak was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Mak was approved by
the Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders
to authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Mak had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group and
he had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than the
relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Mak does
not have any relationships with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Mak has no interest or deemed interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), and there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Mak that need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders, nor any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above under the heading “Biographical Details
of Directors”, none of the Directors has or is proposed to have
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EQUITY-
SETTLED SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
BENEFITS, AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration and equity-settled share-based
compensation benefits of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

The employees of the Group in the PRC participate in various
social security plans enacted in the PRC, which cover pension,
medical and other welfare benefits. The Group is required
to make contributions to the plans calculated based on a
percentage of the monthly compensation of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the respective labour and
social welfare authorities in accordance with the applicable
PRC rules and regulations. The local government is responsible
for the planning, management and supervision of the scheme,
including collecting and investing the contributions, and paying
out the pension to the retired employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF"”) Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong, for all its employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The other employees are covered by other defined-contribution
pension plans sponsored by local government.

There was no forfeited contribution under the scheme available
for deduction of future contribution to be made by the Group
during the Year. Accordingly, no forfeited contribution was
utilised during the Year, and as at 31 December 2021, there
was no forfeited contribution available to reduce the Group’s
existing level of contributions to the scheme.
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The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the schemes except the
contribution described above.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which any member of the Group was a
party subsisting during the Year or as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 164 of the Bye-laws and subject to the
provisions permitted by the Companies Ordinance, every
Director or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his
office. The permitted indemnity provision made by the Company
for the benefit of the Directors and other officers of the
Company is in force.
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" EEERE
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EENROKRMBRRGDZES
UNDERLYING SHARES
1. Directors’ interests in Shares 1. EERKRMPZER
As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions N _E T —F+_B=+—H ' AXRATE
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the ERTEBEREABNEBEEE (E
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company ZR(BHF KRG ) EXVEL BYIRMK
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part MHERDRESEFEEBREB(ES X
XV of the SFO) required to be notified to the Company FAEBRA ) EXVEET RSO ERME AR
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of B RN ER kA (BERERE
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions (BEREAEKRA )N B BIE X S El
which they have taken, or are deemed to have taken, RAEEENERRER)  AREBEGESF &
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the FAE1RR ) 352K BERN A AT AR
register required to be kept by the Company under section ENESEMANER XA HIREIRE
352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and STRIZB R & A A B B Bt 2 P BY 4 38 Aok
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were set BT
out below:
The Company b AT}
Percentage to
Nature of Number of total issued
Name of Director Capacity interest held ordinary shares share capital
HEET
SRS 519 EmtE Fris&iERE B A B AL
Mr. Li Yongjun Interests of Long position 624,960,000 28.30%
corporation
controlled
FRERE RE2EFEZEZ HAE 624,960,000 28.30%
R
Mr. Liu Tingan, a former executive Director and chairman AT EFIEZREN _T ——
of the management committee of the Company, held +ZHB=+—H1%36,156,0008F & 15 >
36,156,000 shares in long position as beneficial owner, RETEBAN LB EITRAL1.64%

representing approximately 1.64% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions they have
taken, or are deemed to have taken, under such provisions
of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Share Options of the
Company

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Company’s
Directors held share options of the Company because the
Company’s share option scheme had been expired on 30
May 2012.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions in Shares:

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
every person, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRKRHEMALRR KRERR
BRin Zz Eak

RiRHBZEE
BRBAEARDREESFT KA EFRAFE3361FA
FEZEMATH R_E-_—F+2A4
Zt+t—RB B2RFAERRARMRERRN
5%HUEZ AT (RRBEFHITHBHG
SN PREER 2 KA T ¢

Number of Percentage to

Nature of ordinary total issued

Name of shareholders Notes Capacity interest shares held share capital

HwesT

IRERATE Wizt 13 S FrfsEEiREE RAEBSL

Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (1) Beneficial owner Long position 624,960,000 28.30%

("Eternal Glory")

KMEEERRAS (DRIEER)) (1) BmBEAA FA 624,960,000 28.30%

Mr. Li Yongjun (“Mr. Li") (1) Interests of corporation  Long position 624,960,000 28.30%
controlled

FxBERE (MFEXE) (1) MRREGREEZ#EED A 624,960,000 28.30%

Ms. Liu Xinjun (“Ms. Liu") (1) Interest of spouse Long position 624,960,000 28.30%

FmERLT (ML) (1) EBz#E=m A 624,960,000 28.30%

Youfu Investment Co., Ltd. (“Youfu”) (2)  Beneficial owner Long position 340,192,957 15.41%

BRRERARAR (B4R 2) BmBEBA Fa 340,192,957 15.41%

Mr. Sun Mingwen (2)  Interests of corporation  Long position 340,192,957 15.41%
controlled

HEAX L (2) REEGHEEZER 59 340,192,957 15.41%

Zhisheng Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd. (3)  Beneficial owner Long position 170,097,333 7.70%

("Zhisheng”)

BHEELEFRAS (MBI (3) BmEAA FA 170,097,333 7.70%

Mr. Zhu Yanbin (3) Interests of corporation Long position 170,097,333 7.70%
controlled

KEMAEE (3) MREGREEZ#ED A 170,097,333 7.70%
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Eternal Glory and is deemed to be interested in the 624,960,000
Shares, representing approximately 28.30% of the total issued
Shares, held by Eternal Glory under the SFO. Ms. Liu, being Mr.
Li's spouse, is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
Shares held by Mr. Li by virtue of the SFO.

2. Mr. Sun Mingwen is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Youfu and is deemed to be interested in the
340,192,957 Shares, representing approximately 15.41% of the
total issued Shares, held by Youfu under the SFO.

3. Mr. Zhu Yanbin is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Zhisheng and is deemed to be interested in the
170,097,333 Shares, representing approximately 7.70% of the
total issued Shares, held by Zhisheng under the SFO.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 26 May 2022 (after trading hours), the Company and Aristo
Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into the
placing agreement pursuant to which the Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to procure the placing (the “Placing”)
of a maximum of 440,000,000 placing shares (the “Placing
Share(s)”) on best endeavor basis to currently expected not
less than six placees at a price of HK$0.1 per Placing Share.
The Placing is conditional upon, among other factors, the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting approval for
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Placing Shares.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there are no significant events
subsequent to 31 December 2021 which would materially affect
the Group's operating and financial performance as of the date
of this report.
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited had tendered its resignation letter as the
Company's external auditor (the “Auditor”) which had been
accepted by the Board on 10 November 2021. ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited was appointed as Auditor by the Board to fill
the casual vacancy created by BDO, the resigned Auditor, and
to hold office commencing from 10 November 2021 until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company
at a fee to be agreed with the Directors as authorised by the
Shareholders thereat.

A resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited, the retiring Auditor, and being eligible, who
will offer themselves for re-appointment, would be proposed
for the consideration by the Shareholders, and if thought fit,
for approval at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

Year have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

On behalf of the Board

Li Yongjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

b ;L

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
RENCO HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Renco
Holdings Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
129 to 261, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

1.

120

Loan to an associate, trade receivables, loan
receivables, note receivables and other receivables
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
a loan to an associate, certain trade receivables, loan
receivables, note receivables and certain other receivables
of HK$89,449,000, HK$5,464,000, HK$1,070,223,000,
HK$138,099,000 and HK$84,806,000 as at 31 December
2021 respectively and HK$101,902,000, HK$27,717,000,
HK$1,261,210,000, HK$170,301,000 and HK$88,454,000
respectively as at 31 December 2020 and whether the loss
allowance provisions in respect to a loan to an associate,
certain trade receivables, loan receivables, note receivables
and certain other receivables of HK$22,362,000,
HK$22,253,000, HK$186,648,000, HK$32,230,000
and HK$3,648,000 respectively for the year ended
31 December 2021 and HK$Nil, HK$28,205,000,
HK$222,327,000, HK$37,822,000 and HK$19,805,000
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
appropriately recorded.

In the absence of the information in relation to the
financial status of these issuer, customers and borrowers
on assessing their ability for settling on these outstanding
amounts to the Group, the management considered that
there is uncertainty on recovering the abovementioned
balances. The management has initiated actions
including but not limited to legal action against certain
abovementioned balances, hence no result from actions
is available up to the date of this report for justifying the
extent of the recoverability of the aforesaid balances.
There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to determine whether any allowance for
non-recovery of the amount should be made in respect
to a loan to an associate, certain trade receivables, loan
receivables, note receivables and certain other receivables
in the consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were balances of
approximately HK$30,821,000 and HK$26,841,000
respectively which were due from certain parties. Due
to the limited accounting books and records available
to us, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the nature and
recoverability of other receivables and other assets of
approximately HK$30,821,000 and HK$26,841,000
respectively as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. There
are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to determine the nature and whether any allowance
for non-recovery of the amount should be made in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Other payables and accruals

Included in other payables and accruals in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were other payables and accruals of
approximately HK$143,425,000 and HK$71,121,000
respectively which were due to certain parties. Due to the
limited accounting books and records available to us, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the nature and obligation of other
payables and accruals of approximately HK$143,425,000
and HK$71,121,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. There are no other satisfactory audit procedures
that we could adopt to determine the nature and whether
any written-back should be made in the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

2.
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Deferred tax assets

Included in deferred tax assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were of approximately HK$Nil and
HK$57,920,000 respectively which represent the tax
effect of impairment of financial assets and unrealised
fair value change on financial instruments. Management
had not provided sufficient information as to the future
utilisation of deferred tax assets and we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the future ultilisation of deferred tax assets
of approximately HK$Nil and HK$57,920,000 as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 respectively and whether the
income tax expense and credit of HK$57,920,000 and
HK$7,775,000 for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 respectively were appropriately recorded.

Tax payable

Included in tax payable in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 were of approximately HK$270,020,000 and
HK$271,232,000 respectively which represent tax payables
of certain subsidiaries. In the absence of final assessment
from relevant tax authority, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the obligation of tax payables of approximately
HK$270,020,000 and HK$271,232,000 respectively as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 and whether the income
tax expense and credit of HK$Nil and HK$2,343,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively
were appropriately recorded.

Any adjustments to the figures described above might have
a consequential effect on the Group financial performance
and cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 and the related disclosure
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$451,590,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021. In addition,
the Group had outstanding borrowings of approximately
HK$819,744,000 which would be due for repayment
within the next twelve months and amount due
to a related party and a director of approximately
HK$2,950,000 and HK$103,710,000 respectively which are
repayable on demand and bank balances and deposits of
approximately HK$36,328,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Loans to associates
Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of loans to associates for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of loans to associates of HK$197,694,000
as at 31 December 2021 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves

application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Evaluating management’s impairment assessment
on the default risk of these balances by challenging
management’s views of probability of default events of
amounts outstanding;

Challenging management'’s view of risk of default and loss
given default of these balances;

Performing background search of the underlying
borrowers;

Evaluating other evidences including financial information,
day past due information and credit rating of the
underlying borrowers available;

Questioning management’s knowledge of future
conditions that may impact expected receipts from the
underlying borrowers; and

Assessing the disclosures of the quantitative and qualitative
considerations in relation to credit risks on these balances,
by comparing these disclosures to our understanding of
the matter.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for loans to
associates is supported by the available evidence.
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Property, plant and equipment
Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of property, plant and equipment of
HK$318,054,000 as at 31 December 2021 is material to the

consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Group's

impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculation;

Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins and discount
rates);

Checking input data to supporting evidence;

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuer engaged by client;

Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with
the external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied in
the valuation model;

Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and
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—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in
the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant
and equipment is supported by the available evidence.

Trade receivables
Refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade receivables of HK$163,497,000 as
at 31 December 2021 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to customers;

—  Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

—  Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about loan to an associate,
trade receivables, loan receivables, note receivables and other
receivables, prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
other payables and accruals, deferred tax assets and tax payable.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to these
matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-
and-regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309
Hong Kong, 31 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e limkEMEER= R

i 3
For the year Ended 31 December 2021
BETS—E+"_H=1+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E—&F TR
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
k=3 FAET FAET
REVENUE WA 9 535,431 277,575
Cost of sales HE A (494,147) (417,472)
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) EF, (18 41,284 (139,897)
Other income =R N 10 8,468 20,525
Other gains and losses Hiham &5 18 11 (16,348) (345,149)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 53 f& BT 2 B E K518 (22,307) (28,166)
Impairment loss on other receivables EfthfEUTIE 2 BB K518 (3.648) (19,805)
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEUWE = Z BB B (186,648) (222,327)
Impairment loss on note receivables FEULZE IR BEK B (32,230) (37,822)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAS (22,237) (19,058)
Administrative expenses THHX (52,287) (98,111)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS EiEEE (285,953) (889,810)
Finance costs MEER 12 (63,265) (74,855)
Share of results of joint ventures HEEREZER (89,287) (62,327)
Share of results of associates HHE AR 2 EE 48,090 (9,994)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRI AIAS 4R (390,415) (1,036,986)
Income tax (expense)/credit FRiSi (ZH) R % 13 (61,175) 7,012
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEFEERE 14 (451,590) (1,029,974)
Other comprehensive income RiEEMEEWE !
after tax:
Items that may be reclassified AIEMSBEEEEZIER
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on MEBINEF 2 ERELR
translating foreign operations (30,988) 63,222
Share of other comprehensive HHERB ZHMEE
income of associates W= 20,745 27,388
Items that will not be RAEEMPEEEGRZ
reclassified to profit or loss: =)=
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of ME-BERKEZ
property, plant and equipment BhkaE (B58) 35,409 (3,543)
Income tax effect FRiEME 2 (8.852) 886
TEC-E5R MEZERERSRAT 129



., Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RABEREAMEERER

For the year Ended 31 December 2021
BEZ_—F+_A=T—HLFE

2021 2020
—E—&F TETERE
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
=3 FAET FBT
Other comprehensive income for the Zs%FE H fth2 Wi
year, net of tax IR\ 16,314 87,953
Total comprehensive loss TEEZEBEEE
for the year (435,276) (942,021)
Loss for the year attributable to: MU T ATHEGAEEEIS :
Owners of the Company KREHER A (451,590) (1,029,974)
Non-controlling interests JEERR S - -
(451,590) (1,029,974)
Total comprehensive loss for the T ATELZEEE
year attributable to: Haga
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (435,276) (942,021)
Non-controlling interests JEER = - -
(435,276) (942,0217)
Loss per share (HK cents) BReEE (W) 19
— Basic and diluted —BE AR #E (20.45) (46.65)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2021

e = =

2021 2020
—E—&F TR
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
Jiok=3 TFHET TAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBER&E 20 318,054 283,971
Right-of-use assets FRESE 21 12,667 14,309
Investments in associates REEARZKE 22 584,805 506,060
Investments in joint ventures RNEETEIKE 23 20,662 109,949
Rental and utility deposits HER AZRMEE 65 65
Financial assets at fair value AT ESTABREZ
through profit or loss THMEE 24 4,266 4,266
Deposits paid BfiEE 47 1,684
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE B 25 - 57,920
Total non-current assets ERENE ELEE 940,566 978,224
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Inventories T8 26 56,700 55,219
Trade receivables B 5 RULIRR 27 168,961 151,576
Prepayments, other receivables and  FE{I#0IE ~ EfthfE U IE K
other assets Hih&E 27 142,359 132,198
Loan receivables FEWE ™R 28 1,070,223 1,261,210
Note receivables RN EE 29 138,099 170,301
Financial assets at fair value BAFESTAEBRZ
through profit or loss ETMEE 24 115,867 173,133
Bank balances and deposits RITHERREFER 30 36,328 28,464
Total current assets MBNBEEMEE 1,728,537 1,972,101
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IRAMBRRE

As at 31 December 2021
s i g S

2021 2020
—E-—F TECEF
Notes HKD’'000 HKD'000
Hiat FHET FAEIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEaE
Trade payables B 5 B IRM 37 231,201 137,586
Other payables and accruals HME B EE A 37 276,628 211,429
Tax payable FEfS#R 18 277,663 278,308
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 5,689 4,313
Borrowings (=3t 32 819,744 337,797
Loan from a related party —% B ALTENR 33 2,950 2,800
Loan from a director —HEZREX 33 103,710 119,465
Total current liabilities MENEERE 1,717,585 1,091,698
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEBEERE 10,952 880,403
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERTBERE
LIABILITIES 951,518 1,858,627
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 4,504 7,369
Borrowings Ny 32 177,941 656,130
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 25 15,158 5,937
Total non-current liabilities ERENEBEEE 197,603 669,436
NET ASSETS BEFE 753,915 1,189,191
Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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fme MBI R

As at 31 December 2021
KoE=—F+=A=+-H

2021 2020
—E—&F TR
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
Kz FET TET
EQUITY =

Share capital fg 7 35 220,800 220,800
Reserves o] 533,115 968,391

Equity attributable to owners TATHEE NEG#ELE
of the company 753,915 1,189,191
Non-controlling interests R - -
TOTAL EQUITY f R 753,915 1,189,191

The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 261
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 May 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:
HEE -
Li Yongjun
FXE
Director

EF

BI29E26EMNREMBRERHEFTEN
O TFIRA=+—HAMERRETE IH

UTFALTRERE

Lau Fai Lawrence
EIES
Director

BEF
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MAEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—F+_"_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATERNES
Property Non-
Share Share  Contributed luati Translati Statutory  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
% RIPERE BABE MEERERE hERE EEHE 2ithi @i FEREE Bhag
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TR TR TER TER TR TR TR TER TR
At January 2020 RIEZRE-A-B 20800 2559569 18,000 0,49 (8:550) 130 6w 213121 a5 21778
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - - (109974 (1,029974) - (1,029,974)
Items that may be redlassified to profit or loss T E# HEEEZ 2 BH .
Exchange differences on translating REENERZERER
foreign operations - - - - 63,222 - - 63,222 - 63,222
Share of other comprehensive income EHEATZHM2ENE
of assoclates - - - - 27,388 - - 27,388 - 27388
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or FEEHHEZEHZER !
Joss:
Loss on revaluation of property, EENE BERREZER
plant and equipment - - - (2,657) - - - (2,657) - (2,657)
Total comprehensive incomeloss) rEERENG/ (B8 88 Nk
for the year, net of tax 1B - - - (2,657) 90,610 - (1,029,974) (942,021) - (942,021)
Acquisition of additional interest in WE-BHBARNEMER
a subsidiary (Note 40) (Hi40) - - - - - - - - (47,570) (47,570)
At 31 December 2020 RIEIZE+IA=+-8 220,800 2,559,569 19,000 17,792 82,060 7335 (1,717,365) 1,189,191 - 1,189,191
At 1 January 2021 RZF--%-B-A 220,800 2,559,569 19,000 17,192 82,060 1335 (1,717,365) 1,189,191 - 1,189,191
Loss for the year FEEFS - - - - - - (451,590) (451,590) - (451,590)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: T &7 5 B2 £ 2 BE .
Exchange differences on translating BEENEBZERER
foreign operations - - - - (30,988) - - (30,988) - (30,988)
Share of other comprehensive income EREAAZEMR ARG
of associates - - - - 20,745 - - 20,745 - 20,745
Items that wil not be reclessified to FEENIEEERZES .
profit o loss: - -
(Gain on revaluation of property, B ENE T v
plant and equipment et - - - 26,557 - - - 26,557 - 26,557
Total comprehensive incomef{oss) rEERENE/ (58 88 1k
for the year, net of tax e - - - 26,557 (10,243) - (451,590) (435,276) - (435,276)
AL31 December 202 RZBZ-£+2A=+-8 A0 2559569 19000 30 7817 135 QI68%5) 753905 S YT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
BERSRER

2021 2020
—EZ—F === 5
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT FA7T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZHAERE
Loss before tax bR Al 5 18 (390,415) (1,036,986)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation charge of property, plant and ME--BERZHITE
equipment & A 17,059 16,152
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEITEER 5,877 9,107
Interest income FMBUWA (40,956) (73,098)
Finance costs MEEA 63,265 74,855
Share of results of joint ventures HEEREZER 89,287 62,327
Share of results of associates (A =YN=Id | (48,090) 9,994
Fair value change on investments at BATESFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss BREZ RN T EEH - 256,526
Loss on disposals of property, HEME -BERKEZ
plant and equipment E518 - 1,047
Investment income arising from HEShEZERBELEZ
undertaking on a joint venture BERA = (4,695)
Reversal of write-down inventories 7 B s # [l - (387)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 W AR FURE 18 22,307 28,166
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE R E R 1B 186,648 222,327
Impairment loss on other receivables HA 8 IR IE R (B B5 18 3,648 19,805
Impairment loss on note receivables FEUN =R R B B 18 32,230 37,822
Impairment loss on goodwill e R EEE - 330,991
COVID-19 rent concessions MHEREsSREEER - (898)
Gain on modification of lease ME B K= - (574)
Gain on bargain purchase HEBEEWNE - (4,091)
Gain on extinguishment of loan payables JHREN BRI E - (4,930)
Unrealised exchange differences RERERER - 10,115

T -F5R MEZREERRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
HEeHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ_—F+_A=T—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-— BT
HKD’000 HKD'000
FAET FBT
Operating cash flows before working EEESEEAZ
capital changes REWERE 59,140 (46,425)
Change in rental and utility deposits HERAARMREEH - (1)
Change in inventories FEEEF) (1,481) 2,412
Change in trade receivables B S EWERE S (39,692) (14,560)
Change in loan receivables FEW E & E) 38,540 (148,163)
Change in financial assets at fair value through %A FEst ABR 2
profit or loss, net TRIEEES F5E 57,266 (24,344)
Change in prepayment, other receivables FETRIE ~ Ht AR R
and other assets Hih&EESE) (12,172) 142,144
Change in trade payables B RN IRMED 93,615 24,267
Change in other payables and accruals HhE I Est & A
k) 78,790 (102,907)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEME S (FrR) 2IR% 155,726 (167,577)
Income taxes paid [=ENIZIESi (3.531) (2,090)
Interests received BUWF B 15 10,527
Net cash generated from/(used in) IREEBFRE . FRA) 2
operating activities &R 152,210 (159,140)
Cash flows from investing activities BREEHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEEY ¥ B &E MR H (9,778) (8,661)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BERREZ
plant and equipment FriS 718 5,486 -
(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid BiTiEE G R - 74
Net cash used in investing activities REEZBMAZAERE (4,292) (8,587)

136

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

= A PaX v o=k
RERER

Sl IT==}

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZE_—F+A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E—&F TR
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT FA7T
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHZHAESRE
New borrowings g fEFR 289,285 467,691
(Repayment to)/Borrowings from a director (B—REFER %E
—REFZMER (22,745) 21,860
Borrowings from a related party RE—ERAEAB 2 &R 150 1,800
Repayment of borrowings EEB (381,856) (291,967)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREEE (5,596) (9,525)
Interest paid BAFR (14,734) (14,157)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES) (FRA) FRIGZ
financing activities REFEE (135,496) 175,702
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEYILIMNELE 12,422 7,975
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXRSE) > F 2 528 (4,558) 1,040
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January HN—BA—BZREK
REFEY 28,464 19,449
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZBE=+—HZEREK
REFEY 36,328 28,464
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERREEEYIH
Cash and bank balances as stated in REMBIRRERRSZ
the consolidated statement of BE MIBITHER
financial position 36,328 28,464
TEC 5% RMEZEREERBRAT 137



"NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MR R M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2

1.

138

EE_—F+_A=+—HILEEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Renco Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

As at 31 December 2021, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Company has no immediate and
ultimate holding company or ultimate controlling party.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) was involved in
the following activities:

- manufacturing and sale of a broad range of printed
circuit boards (“PCBs");

- investment and trading of securities and related
treasury activities; and

- advising on securities and asset management services.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a consolidated net loss of
approximately HK$451,590,000 during the year ended 31
December 2021. In addition, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of approximately HK$819,744,000 which
would be due for repayment within the next twelve
months and amount due to a related party and a director
of approximately HK$2,950,000 and HK$103,710,000
respectively which are repayable on demand and bank
balances and deposits of approximately HK$36,328,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

The directors of the Company consider the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and financial obligations as and when they fall due, and
accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis after taking into consideration of the followings:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

enhancing the collection of loan and note receivables
by monitoring repayments when they fall due;

a substantial shareholder, through related companies
of which are also owned by this substantial
shareholder, has undertaken to provide continuing
financial support to the Group to remain continuing
operations and to meet its liabilities and obligations
when they fall due;

the Group will actively negotiate with the lenders for
debts restructuring and the renewal of the Group’s
borrowings when they fall due in order to secure
necessary funds to meet the Group’s working capital
and financial requirements in the foreseeable future.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will be able
to roll over or refinance the borrowings upon their
maturity;

identifying new investment and business development
opportunities to increase the Group's profitability;
and

the Group is actively exploring the availability of
various sources of financing including the disposal of
assets or obtain secured facilities by way of pledge of
assets etc.

The directors are therefore of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to the consolidated financial statements
to adjust the value of the Group's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZT_—HF+A=+—HLEFE
KRB EERRTIEBRERTENEE
B BN H S E R BRI H
BEMREB AL ARFAESKLERUT
ZREBEMREBREEERERSH
BHRREBIEE :

() ZBEREBRERKREENIAE
ZEBIEH 0 LUE AR ;

(i) —RETBRFEEEZETERERT
BEEZETHBMABAKERRER
REFBMHT  UEFRHEK
2o UWRETHIBEEREE;

(i) *EBRNEEHHAFREFTEAH
REBAEEZEERBEET W
FoEMAERNERZRRESLE
EslmedrsEBEBEST MY
BER - BFRD AEENEEE
R EEFHRANBRE

(iv) BRMREREBLERE T > LUE
MEEBZEBFEED ; &

(v) *EBERGBRRIETHZMBE
R BELEEENZBRERE
ERRSMES-

Hit EERA/RFBESRERURS
MEREBBEE -WAEEEEIFEL
2 ARAHGEMBRRFLAE LR
FEBEENEBEABREHTKROEER
REUEEENERE-— T EEFLER>
WEHDBEIFABDEENERD AR
HEENMAER-

139
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iR e BRI A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2021. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of buildings and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

e
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’'s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the
goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income), the
amount that was recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised on the same basis as would be
required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of “impairment of assets” as stated in the accounting
policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGU") that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net
assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not
remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Relevant activities are activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement. When
assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has joint control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements (continued)

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation; its share of the revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly, in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the joint venture's identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at
the end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture's post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint
venture subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that joint venture and (ii) the Group’s share of the net
assets of that joint venture plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that joint venture and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not
remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

4,

148

(c)

financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

(iii)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised

in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Buildings
are carried at fair values, based on periodic valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation
and impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Revaluation increases of buildings are recognised in profit
or loss to the extent that the increases reverse revaluation
decreases of the same asset previously recognised in profit
or loss. All other revaluation increases are credited to
the property revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. Revaluation decreases that offset previous
revaluation increases of the same asset remaining in the
property revaluation reserve are charged against the
property revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
building, the attributable revaluation increases remaining
in the property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or revalued
amounts less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Over the lease terms
ranging from
30 to 50 years

Buildings

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Moulds, dies, test fixtures 4 years

and pins

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Category Annual rate
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings Shorter of lease terms or 20 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined,
or otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below
Us$5,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials,
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

direct labour and

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Investments at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade, loans and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

T -F5R MEZREERRAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ZT—F+A=+—HIFE

FEEHBER &

THMEE
THREEEABAILESUHRRRE
ARBRMSEEZHBEERARRRZ
EERXSAMEBERBARRE LR
2B WIRATENMERER Z A E P
B ERAFESF ABm 2 KRB -
WEZATESF ARG ZREBERG
32 5 A A BN B S 48 2 B S0

AEBZEMEERNUTERNDLE

— BREBHRTFENEREE &

— BAFEFABED (BATESA
Bm)) HRE -

() HBEEEAEEHEE
HEMEE (BEES  EMAHAM
FEWGRRIR) FFE U TR RIS S
B

- EBEEHN—BSTEEBKEEE
WERENRERENEHRELN
FIE &

— BEZGHORINREEBHE
EZHEREER/INETER
HAREEREZHE

ZETHMEEHRRKBBERNEZE
REBHEN T RAREEGREZEBE
BEstE-

153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e BRI A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

4,

154

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(ii) Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category
if they do not meet the conditions to be
measured at amortised cost and the conditions
of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life
of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’'s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the
customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

FEEHBER &

EE
ERE R ATE (IRFEENZ SN
&) TSR EL 1 AR B ) 5 S 0
HEE

EMDBASRBERE FIFAERERE
HERMRFEENEEREEERSHE
ED12EA °

B 5 B IR KR H th & 7R IE

B BARMKAEMEMNREBEDSRZA
TERRESD > HRRIRABRAN AR EH
AR MMBEREELTAE KR AU
A5 B

TR
FABETZRm T ERERAIFRIE
HRBEEEITHRAAR.

ERSHKA

WA #ZE2EEGEBAHNRETRETL
BWEMNFTETERNAESE B aENAS
ZHWEERE - BRI REER E X
HEMIARBZENRARBE—FENG
W ABEEREAREE DR B

o



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue

(@) Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

(b) Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method.

(c) Realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst
unrealised fair value gains or losses are recognised on
change in fair value at the end of reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Eg D-l-mﬁ (HE

EERF

(i) *FHIESHEF
R R BRI RN B 8 HAE
HRBZFERSHARE+ @R
Al 2SN 2 ERERT) (BERE
FERSN) - FEER BB N R AR M
REAIRTS 2 FE IR

(i) EFEHRIEREF1E
ﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ%hﬂ#%@ﬁzT
o B e B 1R AR 5 By X 48 1 R SR
Fs e

(iii) REBEEF
BEEEMNNAEBREBUHRHEZ
LRA B RN AE BRI R
B EANEEAREAR UREES
%E) HERR o

MUkn BEREZ I
FEBOETES EEKRERMEE LR
mEEURMN SERZ IR

RYFEEhEEURGEEURNDAE
MR EELBHREGTREZAY
B FREREEmEEAEBRERE) 5t
S NUERGEEURDAER ZTRIET
LHPBEEZAFTENLREBELAEESRR
KREHFBZRMDEFELKHIETBER
FERETETURAR NEBHRRER
VAT o

RYEBUEREEUAROAER 2T
TP R AR TS 2 AT E5H & > JAHFT
RERFTZAFEFER M E B
Ry TREZATEFE RAFED
REEEWRERFZ B2 WHEDAF
o



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also recognised in consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the entities comprising the
Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to a parent of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit ("CGU") is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the financial support of the
controlling shareholder at a level sufficient to finance
the working capital requirements of the Group.
Details are explained in Note 2 to consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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5.

KEY ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of loans to associates, note
receivables and loan receivables

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
the ECLs of loans to associates, note receivables and
loan receivables in accordance with the three stage
model set out in accounting policy on individual
or collectively basis, as appropriate. The Group
estimates risk of default of the debtors and the
ECL rates considering factors such as days past due
of the receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history, the recoverable amount of the
securities and the timing of future cash inflows,
then adjusted for existing market condition including
forward looking estimates at the end of the reporting
period.

If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might
be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance.

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables of manufacturing segment.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates including forecast economic conditions (i.e.
gross domestic products) are analysed.
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KEY ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in Note 6(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives after taking into account the
estimated residual values. The estimated useful
lives are based on the expected lives of those
property, plant and equipment items. The useful
lives of property, plant and equipment could change
significantly as a result of technical obsolescence.
When the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, due to the change of commercial and
technological environment, are different from their
estimated useful lives, such difference will impact the
depreciation charges.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment,
in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.
Determining impairment requires an estimation of the
value in use (the “VIU"). The VIU calculation requires
the use of judgement and estimates on future
operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
Where the actual cash flows are different from the
original estimate, a material change in the amount of
impairment may arise.
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6.

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEME
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial $$@E’J/E§ﬂﬁ§uu R R SN
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and BEEERR -RBHESTREEANER
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management EEOK%.ﬁyﬁaﬂﬁAkFIEu+%”%§ﬁ+¥j$
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial RL T SRR PIFRAIM - W= SR 5 E R E
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on AEBPVBREANBERNFE-
the Group’s financial performance.
Foreign currency risk (i) ShERE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign KRB ETHEB AT UINEETE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the B LYAREREARRINE R o A&
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently B IREF I FmINE B PR AT B
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. EBEEEZUVERIIERR TR ES
However, management closely monitors foreign BEREREAEARINE RS
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
The carrying amounts of the monetary assets LX%W%Z( S EEETRINEGE U
and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign B SHEzEKEEREEEBE
currencies, i.e. currency other than the functional (EEEEZ%EQE%FhH&EETA FEWE ™
currency of the respective group entities, which are EERNBRBEZEF BEZEMER
mainly trade receivables, loan receivables, intra-group FRITEBRRET URER) BB
companies balances, trade payables, bank balances WREARZIREENT !
and deposits and borrowings at the end of the
reporting period, are as follows:
2021 2020
B T EF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAT
Assets BE
us$ ETT 179,664 109,882
RMB AR 189,129 198,371
Singapore dollars N o = 43
MOP AP 149 -
Liabilities =Ki=]
us$ ETT 79,270 73,639
RMB AR 179,988 179,964
Japanese Yen H 49 55
TEC 5% RMEZEREERBRAT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.

170

()

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase in the functional currencies of the
group entities, against relevant foreign currencies,
mainly US$ and RMB. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group’s sensitivity to the
change in US$ against HK$ is low as HK$ are pegged
to US$. In addition, the monetary assets denominated
in MOP, Singapore dollars, Japanese Yen and HK$
are not significant and the directors of the Company
consider that the Company’s exposure to the currency
of MOP, Singapore dollars, Japanese Yen and HK$ are
minimal. As a result, the following sensitivity table
does not include the impact of such changes. 5%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for 5%
change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in
loss for the year when the functional currencies have
strengthened against the relevant foreign currencies.
For a 5% weakening of the functional currencies
against the relevant foreign currencies, there would
be an equal but opposite impact on the result for the
year.

6.

MERRERE (&

()

Sh8 ELRE (42)

HRE DT
TERFINAEENEEERINES
K (EFERETRARE) ZHERI
e 2 RIS % 2 BRE « & A F]
ESTR BARBTAZTHEE
WEEBHETR A TELE 2 B
B AR o b 5h > BURPIEE ~ #7003 7T »
HEkBETIHEZEKEELAE
ROARBEEFRRETATEHZ
RPN s HERBTER
REAR FIt > THASRKESRIL
NEEEMEEF IR E 5% AR
MEEZEEBEASHRSIINERR 2]
RELLE 2EEEHEXFIER
BEEF TG EHMRAESTES
BEREBEZIEFEEEREB K
RERRERSREHAEHIME

TRZEBBTRINEEEZERH
SINEEB R T AFEREIREM-
ERVEEERBRINEETT5%
HAFEXERBRFESFERRE
%,

2021 2020
—ET-F 223
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FAT
uss$ ETT

Increase in loss for the year KEEREIE 5,020 2,499

RMB AR
Increase in loss for the year KEEREEN 457 850
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, note
borrowings and loan

receivables, loan receivables,

from a director.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances and deposits with
floating interest rates. The directors of the Company
monitor the related cash flow interest rate risk
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
cash flow interest rate risk exposure should the need
arise. No derivative contracts have been entered into
during both years. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, no sensitivity analysis for bank balances
and deposits is prepared as the effect of fluctuation
of interest rate is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group mainly trades
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that credit terms are granted
subject to in-depth credit verification procedures. In
addition, trade receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and trade receivables of
manufacturing segment are substantially covered
by credit insurance. In this regard, management
considers that the Group’s credit risk is minimal and
there is no requirement for collateral.

In respect of loans to associates, note receivables and
loan receivables, the Group assesses the background
and financial condition of the debtors, and requests
securities from the debtors and/or guarantee from the
debtors’ related parties in order to minimise credit
risk.

6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as
13% (2020: 11%) of the total trade receivables of
manufacturing segment were due from the Group’s
two largest customers in manufacturing segment.
While for treasury investment and financial service
segments, the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 64% and 19% (2020: 55% and 17 %) of total loan
and note receivables (including loans to associates)
were due from the Group's five largest borrowers and
two associates respectively.

(a) Impairment of trade receivables of

manufacturing segment

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables of manufacturing segment
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix which
is based on days past due for groupings of
customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)
(a) Impairment of trade receivables of

manufacturing segment (continued)
The following tables provide information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HE_T_—F+-A=+—HILEE
6. MBRRERE &
(iii) EERKE &)

(a) HIEDHEZE S EWRZHE
(#
TRINEE AR EE R RS H
FAZEZRBERMEERRB K

the trade receivables at the end of the reporting FEHEEEEEN !
period:
2021 2020
—EZ-&§ “EIEE
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount  allowance
BHGEE KELE HEERE BRSEX RKEEE BEEG
HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FTERT TERT TERT
Current BNHA 0.0% 122,685 - 0.3% 108,501 356
0 - 30 days past due HBHER0E30H 0.2% 31,691 67 0.3% 13,188 46
31-90 days past due  #IEI31E90H 0.0% 8,703 - 0.6% 2,588 16
Over 90 days past due  #EIHI90E M £ 80.0% 2,428 1,943 100% 1,515 1,515
165,507 2,010 125,792 1,933

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past two years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
insurance coverage on doubtful debts and
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

RBRBEEXTEARBEMESN
ERGERERSH -ZFHEX
EFHE > URRIEBTH
BHEANSERINER R
AR BY PR IR S TR AR L AR A &=
EHEWRIETRS ERHANEE
RRHER
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BAFEREEIE (&

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERAK &)

(a) Impairment of trade receivables of (a) HEHDEZELSEWRRE
manufacturing segment (continued) &
The following table reconciles the impairment TRAXFERRSHNMESE
loss of trade receivables of manufacturing NS D E 5 EWRFURE
segment arising from contracts with customers BB HER .
for the year:
2021 2020
—E-—% —ToEE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAT
At 1 January w—BA—H 1,933 1,940
(Reversal of impairment loss)/  (B[EIR{EEE) BRI
impairment loss recognised AIEEIE 54 (39)
Exchange realignment FERAE 23 32
At 31 December R+-_B=+—H 2,010 1,933
Change in gross carrying amounts of the trade FRNEZEBRMEEEESE
receivables during the year did not result in Bl R A IR A KR E
significant change in the loss allowance. go
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERZTHRESIEZI

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables, other receivables, loans
to associates, loans receivables and note
receivables of treasury investment and financial
service segments using the general approach
under HKFRS 9. Impairment of these financial
assets was provided based on the “three-stage”
model by referring to the changes in credit
quality since initial recognition.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

R FEFABDNEZE
HEERE
AEBEREAMBRSER]
BT —MRIAStEMHER
ERSMIRESBETEREI
RF HMthEWRIE THE A
BZzER BRERKEKRE
BrEERE ZSSHEE
RIFT=EREEIEX2ENR
BREZEEEREHTIRA
B



6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
Financial assets that are not credit-impaired on
initial recognition are classified in “Stage 1" and
have their credit risk continuously monitored by
the Group. The ECL is measured on a 12-month
basis.

- If a significant increase in credit risk (as
defined in accounting policy Note 4) since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
asset is moved to “Stage 2" but it not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired. The ECL is
measured on lifetime basis.

- If the financial asset is credit-impaired (as
defined in accounting policy Note 4), the
financial asset is then moved to “Stage 3”.
The ECL is measured on lifetime basis.

- At Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance).
If a financial asset subsequently becomes
credit-impaired (Stage 3), the Group is
required to calculate the interest income
by applying the effective interest method
in subsequent reporting periods to the
amortised cost of the financial asset
(the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) rather than the gross carrying
amount.
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(b) HMEREREZHMIRFE FEZIL
R FEFNAR A EZE
HEERE (&

R RERELREEREBEZ
TREENEREF—RBBRIR
rEEFEEZEHEERR
FEHE ERERI12EA E%ES
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EEAEEm(EERE
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EEREIE MR B
FEREERE - FAHE
BEEEE2EEE-

- HEMEESEERE
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BiFERIEEIR (&

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERAK &

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERLTHMRFESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and A FEGFABGIEZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

The gross carrying amounts of the financial MHBEREREMIRFD2BEZE
assets of treasury investment and financial MEEREEE ANEER
service segments, and thus the maximum Rk W

exposure to loss, are as follows:

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B 78 A
EEBE 2HIFEHEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B B REES FE=PEEL o

2021 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
—EZ—F FTER FTERT FHET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 IR

- Doubtful* —RER* - - 90,616 90,616
Other receivables included 5F AFE{TZRIE

in prepayments, other H AR K

receivables, and other HM&EE 2 Hfth

assets FE W FRIE

- Normal* —EE* 31,806 - - 31,806

- Doubtful* —RER* . 100,000 240,392 340,392
Loan receivables - secured fEWE R —F K IF

- Normal* —EE* 389,608 - - 389,608

- Doubtful* —RER* - 495,070 890,340 1,385,410
Note receivables - secured FEWZE % —F K IF

- Doubtful* —RER* - 230,165 - 230,165
Loans to associates THERNTDZEMR

— Normal* —EB* 313,541 - - 313,541

734,955 825,235 1,221,348 2,781,538
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
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6. MBEAKER (&
(ii) FERR &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERTHIRFBTEZIN
at FVTPL of treasury investment and A FEGFABGIEZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (B)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 3848
EERE 2HEBEEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—REE FREER F=REEL 1
2020 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T E FHT FHT FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWERM
- Doubtful* — RER* - - 90,616 90,616
Other receivables included 5t AFE{FFIE
in prepayments, other HMEWERR &
receivables, and other HMBEZ
assets E A fE WA
- Normal* —E8® 23,009 - - 23,009
- Doubtful* —RER* - 100,000 240,392 340,392
Loan receivables — secured FEE R —F 1
- Normal* —IEE 322,903 - - 322,903
- Doubtful* —RER* - 566,151 890,303 1,456,454
Note receivables — secured FEWZE 15— i
- Doubtful* —RER* - 230,137 - 230,137
Loans to associates FHERBZER
- Normal* —IE®* 303,632 - - 303,632
649,544 896,288 1,221,311 2,767,143
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WE—F-—F+-A=T—AILEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

HHEERERE (&

(iii) EEAR &

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, due
to the effect of COVID-19, the Group extended
the maturity date of certain loan receivables
and note receivables to 31 December 2022.
The gross carrying amounts of the modified
receivables as at 31 December 2021 are as

(b)) HERERLTHMRFESEZI
A FEGFABGIEZE
B ERE (&
HE_Z”_—HF+ZHA=+—
BEFEE HRHIESREERN
FE O KEBRRETRBER
REKEENIHABEBERRE
S F+ZH=+—H-
REREBRHREBEBR S —F

follows: + - EBE=+—HZEREHEBEW
T
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B fa 58
EEFE 2RI ESIE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
— P ER B _MEER B PRER Mz
2021 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
—E—F FHET FHET FET FHET
Loan receivables EREmS = 158,992 = 158,992
- 158,992 - 158,992
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. FIEEAMREIRE (&
(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERAK &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERLTFHMRFESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and A FEGFABGIEZE
financial service segments (continued) BEERE (&

During the year ended 31 December 2020, due BE_Z_ZHFF+_A=+—

to the effect of COVID-19, the Group extended BEFE BHRMEREERN

the maturity date of certain loan receivables FE O KEBRRBETRRER
and note receivables to 31 December 2021. EEKREENIHBEERS

The gross carrying amounts of the modified B2+ "HB=+—H-o

receivables as at 31 December 2020 are as RERNEBRHREBEBR-_ZEZSF

follows: +ZTA=+—BZEKELEN
T
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B 78 55
=8k 2HBEHEESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—REE MR EREER Mgt
2020 HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
—_B_EF FET FET FBT FBT
Loan receivables E™M 240,178 566,151 - 806,329
Note receivables FE I 24 - 230,137 - 230,137
240,178 796,288 - 1,036,466

No modification loss is recognised during the HREERAREHNNMBELE

year as the directors are of the opinion that Il N = A NI e

the financial impact of the modification is not B RS 18 ©

significant.

*  The credit quality of the financial assets is i R E R SRR W IE
considered to be “normal” when there is B REESEEER R
no information indicating that receivables RGN BlEMEEZ
had a significant increase in credit risk EEBERREIER) B
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the A - eMEBEECZEEER
credit quality of the financial assets is RIENRER] ©
considered to be “doubtful”.

TEC 5% RMEZEREERBRAT 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A
mah

175 ¥R AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6.

180

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
During the year, ECLs of these receivables were
assessed on individual basis. The expected loss
rates applied to each class of financial asset

6. MHFERAEIE (&
(iii) EERKE #&)
(b) HEREREHMRESEZ I

FHAFEHAHHEZE

HEEHE (&)

REE > ZFRWHRIAZ AR
EEBEZERNEEF (G-
REARKLBHERMEE TR

above are summarised below: BRI -
2021 2020
—_E—F —EIZF
Default Expected Default Expected
Note rate loss rate rate loss rate
b BHOE FEEBEE EBHE  EHRBEEX
Trade receivables B R EWER®
Stage 3 BIPEER (i) 100% 18%-100% 100%  18%-100%
g
Other receivables HthpE W TRIE
Stage 1 FIREEL 2%-20% 2%-20% 2% 2%
Stage 2 F2PEEL N/A N/A 23% 23%
Stage 3 BIMER 100% 96%-100% 91%-100% 91%-100%
Loan receivables EKRER®
Stage 1 BIREER 2%-20% 2%-20% 2% 2%
Stage 2 BIPEER 20%-40% 20%-40% 17%-26% 17%-26%
Stage 3 HIPEEL (i) 100% 28%-100% 100% 50%-62%
Note receivables EWERE
Stage 2 F2PEEL 40% 40% 26% 26%
Loans to associates FHEAT 2 EX
Stage 1 HIPEEL 2%-20% 2%-20% 2% 2%

“Default rate” represents probability of default
of the respective financial assets without taking
into accounts the value of the underlying
collaterals. “Expect loss rate” is a ECL rate of
the respective financial assets after taking into
accounts the value of the underlying collaterals
and/or expected recovery rates and time value of
money.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

There is no requirement for collateral for trade
receivables, other receivables and loans to
associates except trade receivable from a debtor
is covered by collaterals mentioned in Note (i)
below.

Details of collaterals of loans receivables and
note receivables are set out in Notes 28 and 29
respectively. The Group has taken into accounts
the value of the following collaterals for certain
trade receivable and loan receivables when
assessing their ECLs:

listed shares of owned by a borrower;

- listed shares of owned by a related
companies of a borrower;

—  equity interest in a borrower; and

—  interest in rights to use a number of sea
areas in the PRC owned by the group
companies of the borrowers.

There is no significant change in the quality of
these collaterals as a result of deterioration or
changes in the collateral policies of the Group
during the year.
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iR e BRI A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—F+A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and

HHEERERE (&
(iii) EERAR% &)

(b) HMEBEREREMRESEZI
L FEAARmEZE

financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)
Note: Hra -
(i) Information on collaterals for assessment of () BRI EEEREEKIIE
ECLs of credit-impaired receivables: NEREEBENEFRE
el
2021 2020
B —-F —EIEZHF
Gross carrying amounts HKD’000 HKD'000
IREAR{E FHET FHET
Borrower A EFAA 471,018 471,018
Borrower B fERAB 274,840 274,840
Borrower C ERAC 154,069 154,032

- As at 31 December 2021, trade and
loan receivables due from debtors
under control of the same group
("Borrower A"”) with aggregate gross
carrying amount set out in above table
were in default. The amount of ECLs of
HK$237,221,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$229,808,000) was estimated
with reference to the fair value of the
rights to use of sea areas in the PRC
held as security as at 31 December 2021
of HK$1,782 million (2020: HK$1,807
million) adjusted for estimated amount
of charges imposed by other registered
preferential creditors, irrecoverable
interest income and time value of money.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Note: (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

6. HERAETIE (&
(iii) EERKE #&)

(b)) HMEBEREREMRESEZIL
L FEAARmAEZE

HEERE (&)
Kt : (4

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivable
due from a debtor (“Borrower B") with
carrying amount set out in above table
was in default. The amount of ECL of
HK$76,955,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$60,424,000) was estimated
with reference to the estimated business
value of the 55% equity interest in the
debtor held by the Group of HK$925
million adjusted for irrecoverable interest
income and time value of money.

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivable
due from a debtor (”“Borrower C")
with carrying amount set out in above
table was assessed as default. When
determining the ECLs of HK$148,151,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$91,831,000), the Group has taken
into account the market value of listed
shares amounting to HK$5,918,000
pledged by Borrower C to the Group.
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IR AR BRRWE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BAFEREEIE (&

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERAK &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERLTHMRFESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and A FEGFABGIEZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&

The following significant changes in the gross THREREZEAREHER
carrying amounts contributed to the increase in AEEERBEKRRIERIBEE
the loss allowances of the respective receivables 0

during the year:
Trade receivables B SRS

Changes in loss allowances

BREGREY
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAEEZE 12f8 R &8
carrying amounts FEEE PHEREEER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RE = FZRE st

HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TERT TAERT TERT TAR

At 1 January 2020 A\ZE-EE—F—H - 16,715 17,979 34,694
Increase in receivables BB EE =ML 2 U

moved to stage 3 TR - (16,715) 16,715 -
Other change: increase  EA1EH) . BHREEHE

in ECL rate B - - 28,205 28,205

At 31 December 2020 WRZZE-ZHF

+-A=+—H - - 62,899 62,899
Other change: Hit&s)  BHEEES
increase in ECL rate BRI - - 22,253 22,253

At 31 December 2021 ATB—F
+ZRA=+—H - - 85,152 85,152
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6.

Changes in gross
carrying amounts

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERTHIRFBTEZIN

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
Other receivables

REAEZS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

6. HERAETIE (&
(iii) EERAK &)

FEAFEHA S HEZE

HEERE (&
H W
Changes in loss allowances
BHEEREEDY
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B &8
FEFE 2HRBEEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RE FIRRE B st

HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT

At 1 January 2020 RZZZZF—HF—H 12,492 - 219,643 232,135
Increase in receivables EBRES R ZEWR
moved to stage 2 A (2,000) 2,000 - -
Recovery of debts W el EH (8,002) - - (8,002)
Other change: Hitn&#) . BHEEEE
increase in ECL rate I - 21,000 6,807 27,807
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZT&F
+ZA=+—H 2,490 23,000 226,450 251,940
Increase in new e R IB 1S A
receivables 20,000 - - 20,000
Recovery of debts W ElE - (23,000) - (23,000)
Other change: Hitn&#) . BBEEEE
increase in ECL rate I - - 6,648 6,648
At 31 December 2021 RZIZE_—4F
+-B=+—H 22,490 - 233,098 255,588
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iR e BRI A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BiFERIEEIR (&

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERAK &)
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) HERERLTHMRFESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and A FEGFABGIEZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (B
Loan receivables FER B

Changes in loss allowances

BEEEED
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAQEEE 12{8 B &
carrying amounts FEEE SHEREESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE BPEER B st

HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT

At 1 January 2020 RIE2-EF—A—H 7,154 81,363 207,303 295,820
Origination of new EE RSB

receivables net of BN RURIE

those settled - 88,509 - 88,509
Increase in receivables EREF MR

moved to stage 2 JE W 2R IE 12 N (6,412) 6,412 - -
Increase in receivables EBRESZ[ERY

moved to stage 3 eI - (71,637) 71,637 -
Other change: Hitn&#) . BHREEEE

increase in ECL rate RIEN 800 29,896 103,122 133,818

At 31 December 2020 WRIZE-ETHE

+-B=+—H 1,542 134,543 382,062 518,147
Other change: Hitn&s) . BHEEEE
increase in ECL rate RN 33,852 63,648 89,148 186,648

At 31 December 2021 ATB—F
+_-_R=+—H 35,394 198,191 471,210 704,795
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Note receivables

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+H=1+—HLFE
6. MBEMEIRE &

(iii) EERAR &)
(b)) HEBERERTHRFEZEZIN
RN FEAABZANEZE

HEEHRE (&
B E 5

Changes in loss allowances

EHEERED

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAAEEE 12{8 B & HH
carrying amounts 88 SHEREESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE B B #ast
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAET FHET FHET FTHT
At 1 January 2020 RIZE-EF—A—H - 22,014 - 22,014
Other change: Hitn&#) . BHEEEE
increase in ECL rate K - 37,822 - 37,822
At 31 December 2020 RIZ_ZT&F
+ZA=+—H - 59,836 - 59,836
Other change: Hitn&%) . BBEEEE
increase in ECL rate ESi)] - 32,230 - 32,230
At 31 December 2021 WRZE-—&
+ZA=+—4H - 92,066 - 92,066

T -F5R MEZREERRAE
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iR e BRI A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

6. MBEAKER (&

(iii) EERAK &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Loans to associates

(b) HMEBEREREMRESEZI

R L FlEE AR a

HEEHBE (&

THEAFZ

Changes in loss allowances

=
a

£ 24
=F>

tEZE

(iv) Liquidity risk

BEEEED
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAQEEE 12{8 B &
carrying amounts FEEE SHEREESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE BPEER B st
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTHT FHET FHET FTHET
At 1 January 2020 and RZZE-ZF—HF—H
31 December 2020 RZBZBRFE+ZR
=+—A 4,036 - - 4,036
Other change: Hitnes) . BBREEEE
Increase in ECL rate K 22,362 - - 22,362
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
+ZA=+—H 26,398 - - 26,398
(iv) RENE & E M
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current FEEZHRATCHERRERE

and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that

it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ T —F+"_A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BIIEEIEEIE (&
(iv) Liquidity risk (continued) (iv) "BEERAK @&
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash rEEEHEERABBEREME

flows, of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows: EHIH 2T
Total
Weighted Within contractual
average 1yearoron undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 to 5 years cash flow amount
ARRER
METHRE —FERFREKR —ELf RERSLE REE
% HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
% THET FHET FET THET
2021 - b3
Non-derivatives: FTEIR:
Trade payables BAEMRN - 231,201 - 231,201 231,201
Other payables HtEATERN - 276,628 - 276,628 276,628
Loan from a related party — & BB ALTER 2,950 - 2,950 2,950
Loan from a director —LEEEW 110,970 - 110,970 103,710
Borrowings R 0-9.6 848,837 177,941 1,026,778 997,685
1,470,586 177,941 1,648,527 1,612,174
Total
Weighted Within contractual
average 1 year or on undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 110 5 years cash flow amount
BHREER
METHFE —FRFRER —E1f RENSEH REE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
% TET FET FET FET
2020 %5
Non-derivatives: FTETR:
Trade payables B REMERN - 137,586 - 137,586 137,586
Other payables HAE IR - 211,429 - 211,429 211,429
Loan from a related party —ZBEHATER - 2,800 - 2,800 2,800
Loan from a director —REEEM 7 127,828 - 127,828 119,465
Borrowings B 0-96 339,195 854,906 1,194,101 993,927
818,838 854,906 1,673,744 1,465,207
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iR E MR M A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BAFERIGEIR (&

(v) Categories of financial instruments at (v) RZEZ—F+ZH=+—HH
31 December 2021 ERTEER
2021 2020
—B_—F TETEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFESTABR
through profit or loss EREE

Mandatorily measured EEGHE == 120,133 177,399

Financial assets at amortised cost Z# KAt EMN SR E E

— Rental and utility deposits —MHERLAREZEE 65 65
— Deposits paid —Bf%E 47 1,684
— Trade receivables — B S EWERR 168,961 151,576
— Financial assets included in —stATEIRRIE ~ HAMEUL
prepayments, other receivables MEREMEENER
and other assets BE 129,061 119,914
— Loan receivables —EWER 1,070,223 1,261,210
— Note receivables —EREE 138,099 170,301
— Bank balances and deposits —IRITHE R R IFR 36,328 28,464
1,542,784 1,733,214
Financial liabilities ETMaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#EiHp AtEN EREE
— Trade payables —B ZREMR™M 231,201 137,586
— Financial liabilities included in — st AEMENRIER
other payables and accruals EstERANERERE 276,628 211,429
— Borrowings —f&= 997,685 993,927
— Loan from a related party —— %A LTER 2,950 2,800
— Loan from a director —RBEEEN 103,710 119,465
1,612,174 1,465,207
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fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BAFEREEIR (&
(vi) Fair Values (vi) 2FE

Except as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial
statements, the carrying amounts of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected
in the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

(vii) Capital risk management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

PRI IR R F24PTIRBE I 47
BB R PR R R B9 7 £ [ < /Y
BEERTHEBENREERESS
NAFERE-

BEXEEER
AEBEAEEZTEZARARE
REBFEKEZET  UkHER
REBEALXUZFHEFTRIES
REEE-

AEBEBHBEARGER THEK
BR BB IFHAE  HER NS
BEAER s&EEERAEBDR
RKEZRES PARREBEEAN
BIOMBRD - RBEE_ZT_—FK
“TECEF+_RA=+—HLEHFE
NI EENERAEERR BRI
Biz

SEC—E45H MHZREEERAT 191



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MR M A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(vii) Capital risk management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing
ratio of not more than 80%. Net debt includes trade
payables, other payables and accruals, borrowings,

loans from directors and loan from a related
company, less bank balances and deposits. Capital
represents total equity. The gearing ratios as at the

end of reporting period were as follows:

MERRERE (&
(vii) B ERERE (&

FEERBERARBLX BI&ES
BRUBEABEMEREZER BEEH
BEX - XEEZHRABERFELE
BLEERBIBESO% BEFHEE
BEZRBMERR  EMEMRIBERE
STERERCERER UKR—H
B AR B BIRTERR R FM e
EAREHDBE -NREARZE
AEELEERNT

2021 2020

—g-—F —EIEF

HKD'000 HKD’000

FHT FHET

Trade payables B2 AR 231,201 137,586
Other payables and accruals HM A RIB R EstE A 276,628 211,429
Borrowings EE/N 997,685 993,927
Loan from a related party —% B ALTEMN 2,950 2,800
Loan from a director —REFHEMN 103,710 119,465
Less: Bank balances and deposits & : IR{T&S R R EZ N (36,328) (28,464)
Net debt BEFEH 1,575,846 1,436,743
Total capital BARAEEE 753,915 1,189,191
Total capital and net debt BARBEREEFRE 2,329,761 2,625,934
Gearing ratio BEXREGMREX 67.6% 54.7%
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R G M B RERMEE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEEE (&
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at () RZEZ—F+ZH=+—HH

31 December 2021:

DT EERIKE

Fair value measurements using:

MATHEBETHNATEE:

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
it F14R EVE $3%R et
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FAT FAT
Recurring fair value  REMHATEHE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair ~ RAFEFABRZ
value through profit EHEE
or loss
Club debentures BEEESE - 4,266 — 4,266
Listed equity FHRERE
investments 115,867 - - 115,867
Total recurring REMATEAEZRE
fair value
measurements 115,867 4,266 - 120,133
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 R_E_EF+_"_B=+—HMA
December 2020: TERBRINE .
Fair value measurements using:
FATHEBEETHNATENE !
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
it EAE EVE ERE 4
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTAT FHET FAHET TAET
Recurring fair value  REMATEHE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair ~ AFEFABRZ
value through profit EHEE
or loss
Club debentures TEEESR - 4,266 - 4,266
Listed equity THREEE
investments 173,133 - - 173,133
Total recurring REMATEAZHRE
fair value
measurements 173,133 4,266 - 177,399
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SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM") that are used to strategic
decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately because each
segment offers different products and services and
requires different strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments:

Manufacturing -  Manufacture and sales of
segment PCBs

Treasury investment - Investment and trading
segment in securities, fund

investments and related
activities and provision
of financial assistance

Financial service —  Advisory on securities,
segment asset management
and consultancy and
corporation solution
services

No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the three reportable segments of the
Group.

Corporate income and expenses and corporate assets
and liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segments as they are not included in the measure of
the segments’ results and assets and liabilities that
are used by the CODM for assessment of segment
performance.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar order.

T -F5R MEZREERRAE
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8. NHEHE
(a) EAIWEHE
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

#E—_=—_—&£+-A=+—HILEE
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Reportable segments (continued)

8.

196

8. NEWE (&
(a) ARENE (&

2021
ZEZ-fF
Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
R MBKRE SRS st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THET THET THET THET
Revenue from external customers — ZREIMBEE ZUA 551,756 (16,325) - 535,431
Reportable segment loss RS DB (42,635) (314,403) (3,648) (360,686)
Amounts included in the measure of 5t A 74E#EmitEZ 25 .
segment profit or loss:
Interest income FBBA 15 40,941 - 40,956
Finance costs MEER (11,371) (51,894) - (63,265)
Depreciation of property, ME -BERSEEZINE
plant and equipment (1,578) (7,418) - (8,996)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets AR EEITE (3,513) (2,364) - (5,877)
Share of results of associates () d-UN=IPa 5 - 48,090 - 48,090
Share of results of joint ventures HEEhEEE - (89,287) - (89,287)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 fE U Bk FURI B 512 (54) (22,253) = (22,307)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEWE R ER B - (186,648) - (186,648)
Impairment loss on note receivables FEW ZHRER B - (32,230) = (32,230
Impairment loss on other receivables ELftt & W F B R E K5 1B - (3,648) = (3,648)
Reportable segment assets RENEEE 587,417 1,856,068 222,963 2,666,448
Amounts included in the measure of Gt ADEEEHEZ .
segment assets:
Interests in associates REERR 2R - 584,805 - 584,805
Interests in joint ventures REEhE7 R - 20,662 - 20,662
Additions to non-current assets" REFRHEE 12,873 1,012 - 13,885
Reportable segment liabilities ARENEEE (596,872) (875,203) (165,450) (1,637,525)
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BT —F+A=+—HIFE
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 8. DHEWRE B
(a) Reportable segments (continued) (a) AIERENLE (&
2020
“ECEF
Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
s pHgE SRR 4t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTHET FET FEx FTET
Revenue from external customers — ZRESMBEE Z WA 461,027 (183,452) - 277,575
Reportable segment loss AREDEER (59,790) (926,796) (19,805) (1,006,391)
Amounts included in the measure of 5t A 7 4E#Em it EZ £5E .
segment profit or loss:
Interest income FIEWA 21 73,077 - 73,098
Finance costs MEEM (14,936) (59,919) - (74,855)
Depreciation of property, ME - BERSEZINE
plant and equipment (14,081) (2,071) - (16,152)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets AR EENE (3,959) (5,148) - (9,107)
Reversal of write-down of inventories 7 & #fi i o] 387 - - 387
Share of results of associates EHE AT 2 2B - (9,994) - (9,994)
Share of results of joint ventures HEEhEEE - (62,327) - (62,327)
Reversal of impairment BRRURTUAEBRERR
loss/(impairment loss) on (RERE)
trade receivables 39 (28,205) - (28,166)
Impairment loss on loan receivables fEWETRIERE - (222,327) - (222,327
Impairment loss on note receivables fEWNZEERERE - (37,822) (37,822)
Impairment loss on other receivables E ftt & W R B R E K5 1B - - (19,805) (19,805)
Impairment loss on goodwill BENERE - (330,991) - (330,991)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREEBR
plant and equipment R - (1,047) - (1,047)
Reportable segment assets ORENEEE 509,531 2,293,231 144,806 2,947,568
Amounts included in the measure of Gt ASHEEEHEZ .
segment assets:
Interests in associates REERRZ R - 506,060 - 506,060
Interests in joint ventures REEhE 7R - 109,949 - 109,949
Additions to non-current assets" REFEREBEE 8,499 7,254 15,753
Reportable segment liabilities RENEEE (510,693) (872,021) (100,112) (1,482,826)
# Include additions to property, plant and equipment 3 BEABEME -BERZERER
and right-of-use assets BB E
ZET—FFF RMEEREESRAR 197



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B M BRI

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 8.

(a) Reportable segments (continued)

DERS (&
(a) AHEDE (,é%

198

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, ARENEET - BEEMBEREHEK !
assets and liabilities:
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET
Profit or loss ik
Reportable segment loss PIREDEBE (360,686) (1,006,391)
Other unallocated staff cost Hihk BB I (29,729) (30,595)
Consolidated loss before income MRETEMZ HAIG S
tax expense &8 (390,415) (1,036,986)
2021 2020
—E_—F T =
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 2,666,448 2,947,568
Unallocated bank balances KOECIRITHERRER
and deposits 2,655 2,757
Consolidated total assets HEBEEME 2,669,103 2,950,325
2021 2020
—B_—F = 2
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET FET
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities ASREDEAaE 1,637,525 1,482,826
Tax payable FEIRIE 277,663 278,308
Consolidated total liabilities REBaBERn 1,915,188 1,761,134
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BE_ZE_—F+A=1+—HLEE

SRS (&

(b) tEHEK
TREHRAEERBINEER ZI
AUKRBREMTEINZIERIE E
(MFEFRBMEEL 2D e

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 8.
(b) Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers and non-
current assets other than financial instruments

(“Specified non-current assets”).

Revenue from external

Specified non-current

customers (Note) assets
RENEERZWA (H:E) HEFERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEI-f ZTIZHF ZEI-HF IZ2IZHF
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FHET FHETT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &% (FE& ) 45,685 (180,882) 330,155 125,902
The People’s Republic of FEAREME (THE))

China (the "PRC") 167,554 196,374 319,002 490,540
Singapore L 30,845 16,680 = -
Thailand R - 302 - -
Malaysia EXRADR 3,848 1,742 = -
Germany = 61,670 57,429 = -
Poland il 57,458 46,644 - -
Other Europe countries HAMEUMNE X 85,103 77,818 = -
United States of America EH2ERE 6,893 13,641 - -
Korea #RE 2,397 3,410 - -
Japan SN 61,068 40,216 - -
Other Hith 12,910 4,201 - -
Total At 489,746 458,457 319,002 490,540

535,431 277,575 649,157 616,442
Note: Bzt -

Revenue is attributed to countries on the basis of the

customer’s location. Non-current asset is attributed to

countries on the basis of the location of the assets.

WATRERFREM ZERE 7 JF

/)

HEEREEMTMZERKE Do

e

T -F5R MEZREERRAE

Aoy
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8. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 8. NHERE (A&
(c) Information about major customers (c) ERAFERERZEHN
Revenue from major customers who have individually REFERXR (BEXEREBERAZ
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of 10%8 U £) WMAIRENT :

the Group are disclosed as follows:

2021 2020
=2 — —EIEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
F#ET TET
Customer A? ZEA? 60,531 39,974
Customer B? = F B2 57,458 42,663
Customer C'2 =ZRC? N/A 37,579
Customer D'2 RED!? N/A 37,558
Customer E'2 RHRE? N/A 46,644
1 This customer contributed less than 10% of the g ZEPRBE_ZE”—F+=A4
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December = +—HLEFEMEMRZWAM
2021. REBWATEI0% °
2 Included in the manufacturing segment. 2 STARIE D
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9. REVENUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

9. A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers Z 2 & A
— Sales of goods —HE S m 551,756 461,027
Revenue from other sources H 2R 2 WA
Fair value loss on trading purpose MR ZENZ R ATE
equity investments at FVTPL, net FFABTZRAKEZ
NEEEIE FEE
— Unrealised loss —REIRE1E (57,266) (256,526)
Interest income ISV N
- Loan and note receivables —EWREFKREE 38,540 64,269
— Loan to an associate —BFHMEATZER 2,401 8,805
Total revenue from other sources kB E MR 2 WA 4E%E (16,325) (183,452)
Total revenue N Y 535,431 277,575
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WE—F-—F+-A=T—AILEE

9. REVENUE (continued) 9. WA (&
Disaggregated revenue information YA B BE 4
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_ T _—F+_R=+—BL=EE
Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
RE BHEE SRR et
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Segments paE FER FERT FET FHET
Type of goods or services ERERFBER
Sales of goods HEEMm 551,756 - - 551,756
Total revenue from contracts with EREHNWALEE
customers 551,756 - = 551,756
Timing of revenue recognition WA BESR R
Goods transferred at RENEHEENER
a point in time 551,756 - - 551,756
Total revenue from contracts with EREHNBALEE
customers 551,756 - - 551,756
Geographical markets IR 5
The PRC HE] 167,554 - - 167,554
Hong Kong 58 62,010 - - 62,010
Singapore IR 30,845 - - 30,845
Malaysia BRAD 3,848 - - 3,848
Germany =B 61,670 - - 61,670
Poland bl ] 57,458 - - 57,458
Other Europe countries HtBUNE R 85,103 - - 85,103
United States of America ENZaRE 6,893 - - 6,893
Korea e 2,397 - - 2,397
Japan HA 61,068 - - 61,068
Other countries/regions HMER /& 12,910 - - 12,910
Total revenue from contracts with BEREHNRALLEE
customers 551,756 - - 551,756

202

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
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9. REVENUE (continued) 9. WA (#&
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) WAE R (&
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_THF+_A=+—HLEFE
Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
niE KA SRR st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Segments bag:-:l FET FET FET FHET
Sales of goods HEGMR 461,027 - - 461,027
Total revenue from contracts with EREAHWALLE
customers 461,027 - - 461,027
Timing of revenue recognition WA B 2R B R
Goods transferred at REFBHEESERNER
a point in time 461,027 - - 461,027
Total revenue from contracts with RN AL
customers 461,027 - - 461,027
Geographical markets B
The PRC HE 163,896 - - 163,896
Hong Kong 5% 35,048 - - 35,048
Singapore g 16,680 - - 16,680
Thailand =B 302 - - 302
Malaysia ERAE 1,742 - - 1,742
Germany =E 57,429 - - 57,429
Poland ik 46,644 - - 46,644
Other Europe countries HnBUME R 77,818 - - 77,818
United States of America ZHBERE 13,641 - - 13,641
Korea EE] 3,410 - - 3,410
Japan HA 40,216 - - 40,216
Other countries/regions HMER e 4,201 - - 4,201
Total revenue from contracts with ERAHWALLE
customers 461,027 - - 461,027

There was no inter-segment sales between segments and
therefore the amount on sales to external customers by
segment is as the same as total revenue from contracts
with customers by segment in both years.

T -F5R MEZREERRAE

RmEEER > 2 REREET D ERH
& FHItR D8 DR INERE R /FHBY
fh’iﬁé,ﬁﬁi&/“ﬁiuﬁﬂ’]%ﬁ BHWA

I\‘IL\J‘ g/E\ *E H ©
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10. OTHER INCOME 10. Hthig A

2021 2020
—E—% TETERE
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFET TAET
Bank interest income IRITHI B WA 15 24
Service income AR 75 U A 2,218 1,153

Investment income arising from HEBrEZERBEEZ

undertaking on a joint venture KREWA 223 (i)

(Note 23 (i) - 4,695
Government grants I8 #e8 B 1,322 8,993
Recharged tooling income BB EREEWRA 1,157 3,615
Others EHAith 3,756 2,045

8,468 20,525
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 1. Hthlzs R 518
2021 2020
S —F _ECEHF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Net exchange losses P& R85 58 (16,348) (22,132)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEKRKZHEEIR
plant and equipment HRE = (1,047)
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 40)  FEZEBERE (#5240) - (330,991)
Gain on bargain purchases (Note 40) HEBB W= (H5£40) - 4,091
Gain on extinguishment of loan payables [ FE & F =
(Note 44a) (H1zt44a) - 4,930
(16,348) (345,149)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MEEH
2021 2020
B —F TECEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Interest on: FE
— Lease liabilities —HHEai 1,143 1,692
- Borrowings —f&8 55,132 65,726
— Loans from a director ——XEEEH 6,990 7,437
63,265 74,855
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13. INCOME TAX 13.
The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:

FrigiR
RESERREMEERER FER
B (%) ST

2021 2020
T —F —ETEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FAT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BENHAFRIE —h [l (b 21810
— tax for the year —KEEHRIE 3,255 3,106

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNHERTR I — & BH1ER

— tax for the year —AREFEERE = 3,991
— overprovision in previous years —BEFEEBERE - (6,334)
Deferred tax (Note 25) IRIEFRIE (HfEE25) 57,920 (7,775)
61,175 (7,012)

For Hong Kong profits tax, under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5% on estimated assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong during both years.

No Macau profits tax has been provided as the Macau
subsidiary of the Company is exempted from Macau
Complementary Tax for the year ended 31 December
2020. According to the Macau Complementary Tax Law,
assessable profits up to MOP600,000 is exempt from
Complementary Tax, and assessable profits exceeding
MOP600,000 is taxed at a rate of 12% for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the statutory tax rate of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries is
25% (2020: 25%).
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13. INCOME TAX (continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to loss before income tax expense/(credit) per

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

13 *ﬁ (ﬂé
$¢F‘Fﬁ S H S (E%R) BHERES
BakEMEEKERAZHAEREH,

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (%) RIBERIE T 5 HER !
comprehensive income as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—5F —EIERF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET TABT
Loss before tax BRI BIRES 18 (390,415) (1,036,986)
Tax credit on loss at the rates applicable ZtBRATEEEBARARE
to the jurisdictions concerned SEZEBEERBRS (20,346) (175,292)
Tax effect of exemption granted to BT RFNBABIZE8 R
Macau subsidiary MBETE = 2,792
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax H7E:RM WA E AL ER
purpose or subject to capital gain tax WAZRBLE (10,553) (4,642)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ARSI MBEE
for tax purpose 15,300 89,303
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REDRIEBRE MG E 18,854 43,229
Over-provision in prior years B FEBREREE - (6,334)
Reversal of deferred tax assets e SR FESE 2 IEIETR IR
previously recognised BE 57,920 3,797
Tax effect of other deductible temporary HM KD AR ERE=E
differences not recognised ZHRBRE — 40,135
Total income tax expense/(credit) R8skt (E%) 48458 61,175 (7,012)
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

14. FEFIE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/ AEBEEEHFEILQSMER GEA) UT
(crediting) the following: ZEE5 .
2021 2020
—EZ—F TETERE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FHBT
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z BB =
Audit services ZBAR
— Current year —KEE 2,122 2,155
— Over-provision in prior year —BEFFEBEEE - (416)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMAK 494,147 417,859
Reversal of write-down of inventories GFEMURER Gt AHE
(included in cost of sales) B 7) - (387)
Depreciation charge of property, ME-BERREZINE
plant and equipment (Note 20) B (Wat20) 17,059 16,152
Depreciation charge of right of FTRAREEITEER
use assets (Note 21) (Htat21) 5,877 9,107
Employee costs (Note 15) BB A (Kfat15) 138,809 149,652
15. EMPLOYEE COSTS 15. [EE R
2021 2020
—EZ—&F TETERE
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMAE (BIEESNE
remuneration (Note 16)) comprise: (B1at16)) BFE
— Wages and salaries —TERHE 121,020 124,883
— Contributions to retirement benefits —BRAREF] B R
scheme 14,013 21,080
— Other staff benefits —HMWET®EAH 3,776 3,689
138,809 149,652
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16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

16. EEi £
RBEZZMEWTF
2021
—EZ-&

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to retirement

and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total
HE EMR RAER
e Hihig# SIS gt
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TER TER
Executive directors HITES
Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok”) 2 (T8k%E) - 5,227" - 5,227
Shan Yongxin (Resigned on BHE RS —F
4 November 2021) +—AmHET) - 2,533 18 2,551
- 7,760 18 1,778
Non-executive director ERTES
Li Yongjun FXE 600 - - 600
600 - - 600
Independent non-executive directors BIFHRITEE
Ng Man Kung (Resigned on B RIS F
21 March 2022) ZA-+—REM 220 - - 220
Lau Fai Lawrence 2% 220 = - 220
Mak Kwok Kei FEE 220 - - 220
660 - - 660
1,260 7,760 18 9,038
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16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 16. EEME (&2

2020
“E-EAE

— ==

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to retirement

and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total
He EMK RIKEH]
e HethigH) STEE st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TR TER
Executive directors BTES
Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok") S0 (T85%)) - 5,426" - 5,426
Shan Yongxin (Resigned on BEE (RS- -F
4 November 2021) +—RMARE) - 2,875 18 2,893
Liu Tingan (Resigned on fEx (MZ222F
6 April 2020) MmE 7~ BEHT) - 1,341 5 1,346
- 9,642 23 9,665
Non-executive director ERTEE
Li Yongjun ZKE 600 - - 600
600 - - 600
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHITES
Ng Man Kung (Resigned on St (BB ZF
21 March 2022) ZRZ+—H#D 220 - - 220
Lau Fai Lawrence 3z 220 - - 220
Mak Kwok Kei EEE 220 - - 220
660 - - 660
1,260 9,642 23 10,925
" Included in the amount is rental and management fee paid " ZEBEERBEE_E-_—5+°_H4
for director’s quarter to Keentop Investment Limited, a —t+—HIFEENESLEERERZ
company beneficially owned by Mr. Cheok, amounted to REIBEREFRRBZEEEEHE
HK$2,131,000 (2020: HK$2,330,000) for the year ended 31 REIRE2,131,0008 7% (TR 5
December 2021. 2,330,000 7T) °
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16.

17.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The executive directors’
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The non-executive director’'s emolument shown above was
mainly for his services as a director of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

emoluments shown above

No emolument was paid to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during both years. No directors waived any of
their emoluments for both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2020: three) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
16 before. The emoluments of the remaining three (2020:
two) individuals are as follows:

16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZT_—F+H=1+—HLFE
SEME &
EXFImHATESME N FTEIRE
MEBRAARAEBRSHRE AR
EXFITHNIERTESMENEFEI &
HEAARARBNENBLABDERREZ
R#E o EXFTRHBIIERITESMEE
ENREEARARESRHBE R

RmEFEFER EREEGME F
RIMATERIMATER R 2 ERE
SRR BRI E - M EES I MEFER
FHEMME-

hasEHMAL
FEBALREFMALHR Wa (ZF
TRE =) AFATES REZH
SRR EXMEI6Z KB Hip=2 (T
TOBE L) ALZHENT

2021 2020

—EZ—F TETERE

HKD'000 HKD'000

FAET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & 2B R EMEF 11,300 5,765
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKEF B

scheme 54 36

11,354 5,801

—E—FF% RMEEERERFREARE
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17.

18.

212

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL (continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

17. G EBESHNALT (&
MeN T THE :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E—F TETEEF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 E2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %2,500,000% 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 75 %4,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7c%6,500,00078 7T 1 -

No emolument was paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years. None of
the above individuals waived any of their emoluments for
both years.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the
current year (2020: Nil).
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19. LOSS PER SHARE 19. SRE1E
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share KABIEBEANEBLEREAKREEEIE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the ThEUL T8t E

following data:

2021 2020
—E-—f —T-Tx
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHT FATT
Loss 518
Loss for the purpose of basic and STEESRERKEEHEER
diluted loss per share KAz EBE (451,590) (1,029,974)
2021 2020
g —%F —EEHF
Number of shares: Rin &8 :
Weighted average number of ordinary  s5TESRKRERBERREZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss BiBERMETEH
per share 2,208,000,000 2,208,000,000
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

214

20. W% - BEKRRE

Moulds,
Furniture, dies, test
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor fixtures
Buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles and pins Total
A
HE i RE B R
£ MERE RERER e "E REREH st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-%-F—H
Cost or valuation A E 222,952 15,361 721,494 15,013 17,472 5,409 997,701
Accumulated depreciation  REHTERAEHE
and impairment losses - (7,241) (678,432) (11,443) (12,214) (4,400) (713,730)
Carrying amount REE 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
At 1 January 2021, R_E_—E—-F—F
carrying amount IREE 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
Additions AE - 5,060 4,606 73 - 39 9,778
Disposals HE - - (3,739) (1,322) (425) - (5,486)
Depreciation provided AEERERE
during the year (5,209) (427) (8,454) (794) (2,009) (166) (17,059)
Revaluation gain Bl 35,409 - - - - - 35,409
Exchange realignment ERREE 8,524 465 2,316 30 VAl 35 11,441
At 31 December 2021, R_EZ—F+8
carrying amount =+-8 kaE 261,676 13,218 37,791 1,557 2,895 917 318,054
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—&E+_R
=+-H
Cost or valuation MAEFEE 261,676 15,488 671,978 12,684 17,237 5,629 984,692
Accumulated depreciation  REHTERAEEHE
and impairment losses - (2,270) (634,187) (11,127) (14,342) (4,712) (666,638)
Carrying amount REE 261,676 13,218 37,791 1,557 2,895 917 318,054
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A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ME - -BER=E (&)

(continued)
Moulds,
Furniture, dies, test
Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor fixtures
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles and pins Total
BEN
HE RAKE BRI
BF MEEE BRERES Rt RE ZEREE a5t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2020 KZE-%%-HF—H
Cost or valuation BASEE 218,911 14,629 683,590 14,523 17,196 4,979 953,828
Accumulated depreciation RHTERBEHE
and impairment losses - (7,122) (642,026) (10,260) (9,870) (3,995 (673,273)
Carrying amount REE 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
At 1 January 2020, RZZ2ZEF5-A—-H>
carrying amount REE 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
Additions HE - 1,801 6,642 87 - 131 8,661
Disposals HE - (1,047) - - - - (1,047)
Depreciation provided AEERERE
during the year (4,803) (683) (7,504) (820) (2,180) (162) (16,152)
Revaluation loss BREBR (3,543) - - - - - (3,543)
Exchange realignment ERAE 12,387 542 2,360 40 112 56 15,497
At 31 December 2020, RIZEZZF+ZAH
carrying amount =+—-HKAEE 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZF+ZAH
=+—H
Cost or valuation MATEE 222,952 15,361 721,494 15,013 17,472 5,409 997,701
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTERAEHE
and impairment losses - (7,241) (678,432) (11,443) (12,214) (4,400) (713,730)
Carrying amount REE 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

20.

216

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC. At 31
December 2021, the Group’s buildings with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$261,676,000 (2020:
HK$222,952,000) were pledged to secure the bank loans
granted to the Group.

The Group’s buildings were revalued at the end of
reporting period based on depreciated replacement cost
approach and with reference to the valuation reports
issued by Flagship Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
The valuation reports used depreciated replacement cost
approach which is arrived at using the aggregate amount
of the new replacement cost of the buildings, from which
appropriate deductions may then be made to allow for the
age, condition, functional obsolescence and environmental
factor.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a revaluation
gain of approximately HK$35,409,000 (2020: loss of
HK$3,543,000) on the Group’'s buildings has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and credited
(2020: debited) to property revaluation reserve.

The following table presents the fair values of the
Group’'s buildings measured at the end of reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three
level fair value hierarchy as identified in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value

20. ME - -BmERRE (&

AEBZEBFHURPRE R
:—¢+:EE+—E’$$I%E
B4975261,676,0008 T (ZE_ZF :
222,952,000 7T) 2 EFEFIEF  EA
REBMERIBTERZERC

REREMR ~EBZBFRITEEEN
RAELKESEBICERERGEME
EEENGEBAERARHANMGEER
SETER ZLERSHKATEEEN
% ERBFRNMEENAEEFEL

Figte ik s EERE RIRIERARZVE
EHRMEER -
BE_Z_—F+_RB=1t—HLFE"

REFEBFREBEHUEA35,409,000

Bt (ZETE 4 [ F5383,543,00087T)
EREMEEREERE N ESEHE

BASA (CEZZTFE 0 o

TREVINBREPRARREBEEESE
WIRNEBHHREERF 1358 AFE
STERBAZ =MAFESRIEHR
EBEBFHNAFE-FIE DA FESNE
FMBELEREMBBAENTEE

measurement is classified and determined with reference REAEEMSEUT
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique, as follows:
2021 2020
S —F _ECEHF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FAET TET
Level 3 E=4R 261,676 222,952
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(continued)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balance of Level 3 recurring fair value measurement is AT EERERANT ¢

provided below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LR R e

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ME - -BERSE (&)

BZMEBERFEFERFNRER

2021 2020
—E_—F “EITEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
Opening balance HAWAER (B R M
(Level 3 recurring fair value) NS 222,952 218,911
Depreciation provided for the year KEEFHEINE (5,209) (4,803)
Revaluation gain/(loss) shlE (B8) 35,409 (3,543)
Exchange realignment PE 7 sE % 8,524 12,387
Closing balance HAIREER (B E M
(Level 3 recurring fair value) NS ) 261,676 222,952
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of the Group’s buildings in the PRC are determined,
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorised, based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurement is observable.

As at 31 December 2021

20. % -BERRE (&

TR EREEEZ PHBFHAF
BEETT % URREAFE BT
WMAEBNAEREENAFESEET
AT EERBDOER
R-F_—%+ZA=+—H

Relationship of

Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs for
hierarchy technique input fair value Range
EAEIR-E
WAESR
REEER KEHE EARABRRBAE ATERRE 5
Level 3 Depreciated New replacement costs The increase in the new RMB3,150 per square
replacement cost per square metre are depreciated replacement metre
approach determined using costs per square metre
estimated current would result in an
cost of replacement increase in fair value
of the improvement
less allowance for
physical deterioration
and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and
optimisation.
B WEEEMNZE BYARMEBEEMARA BTARKMTEZEERE BTARKARE
BRIt EEE M 12 R B A FE1E 3,1507¢T
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

20. ME - -BERRE &)
R-E-_ZEF+_RA=+—H

Relationship of

Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs for
hierarchy technique input fair value Range
AHEE
WAEHR
RAFESHK HEHE EARABRRBAE ATERRF #E
Level 3 Depreciated New replacement costs The increase in the new RMB3,000 per square

replacement cost per square metre are

approach determined using
estimated current
cost of replacement
of the improvement
less allowance for
physical deterioration
and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and
optimisation.

E=4 HEEEMRZE BIFAKRFEEMEEK

A BRINMGEHEEES
B APRERIBRE
K —1]] HEAF X
BEREIL BHEERE
TEo

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

Had the Group's buildings been stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(if any), their carrying amount as at 31 December 2021
would have been approximately HK$208,353,000 (2020:
HK$205,496,000).

depreciated replacement metre
costs per square metre

would result in an

increase in fair value

STHKFMFTEEER STHKARY
AWM EHATE 3,007
t 0

REEGERD EZLEET-

MAEBRBFRELSHRABRAINE
RBEEEE (ME) KR AIEHRZE
_—E+”"B=Z+—HBZKREER
#75208,353,0008 T (ZE &% :
205,496,000 7T) ©
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. FREEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: WEHAEERBER
2021 2020
—E-F “RIFF
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET FET
At 31 December: R+ZB=+—8":
Right-of-use assets FRESE
Leasehold land EELH 3,360 3,358
Buildings BT 9,307 10,951
12,667 14,309
The maturity analysis, based on rEBRHEESEEE
undiscounted cash flows, of RAMIBREREN
the Group's lease liabilities is as follows: ZIEAH DT :
Less than 1 year 1EUA 5,689 4,313
1 to 5 years 1E5% 4,504 7,369
10,193 11,682
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets fEFREEE Z ITEEHA
Leasehold land HE T 130 120
Buildings 1gF 5,747 8,987
5,877 9,107
Lease interests HEFE 1,143 1,692
Expenses related to short-term leases BIGHMRE R A - 28
Total cash outflow for leases HEZIRERE4REE 6,739 11,245
Additions to right-of-use assets NEEHAEEE 4,107 7,092
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group leases various land use rights and land and
buildings. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 to 49 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right-of-use assets
in respect of leasehold land with carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,360,000 (2020:HK$3,358,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the
Group.

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

. EREEE (&

rEEEESZEI MERE UK IR
BF -HEWRAESE S2E49FHEEH
[RoMEEMRMIDIREREERER  LHE
BB PR R B A5 1+ o 72 & 175 52 3 488 1t AN
EE3sE > BIEEEER A BIFERIRR
%o

N B —F+_B=+—H &x&EE
IRMEEA3,360,0008 T (CE_Z£F .
3,358,000 ) 2 EEE T M FA
BEEE TR (FAXEBEFMEATIR
TEMRZER.

22. REHEATZIRE

2021 2020
—E—% TR
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets ELREEFE 297,662 206,464
Loans to associates* FHE NS 2E; 313,541 303,632
611,203 510,096

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERBEHE (M EE6())
(Note 6 (iii)) (26,398) (4,036)
584,805 506,060

v As at 31 December 2021, except for a balance due
from an associate amounting to HK$89,449,000 (2020:
HK$101,902,000) which bears interest at a rate of 12%
per annum and is repayable on 31 December 2021,
the amounts are unsecured, interest-free with no fixed
repayment terms. The loans are classified as non-current
assets as settlement in next 12 months were not expected.

8 R_BE_—F+_RB=+—H>BREK
—E B E QB 2 85 489,449,00078 7T
(Z2-F4 1 101,902,000 730) % 4F
MEREBEFEKRBR_ZEZ—F+ZA
= t+—HEEN ZERBEBLERE
RERITEETEENH ANREHRER
TERRFI2EERGES WERDE
BIERBEE-
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates during the year ended

31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out below:

Place of incorporation
or establishment/

22. RVERBZIRE (&
ME-S-—FR-F-FFE+A
=+—BLEE REEBEATNHE
BIMT :

Percentage of

Fri&E 2t

Ownership interest/
Voting power/

Name operation Profit sharing Principal activities
MR IR BEEED RERE
18 [=E 30k bE D g FEER
2021 2020
B T FE
FE R ER B RERERAR The PRC 45% 45%  Money lending
("Shenzhen Shengda”) (Note (a))
F R ER B EEEERAR FRE W&
(DRI BE3E)) (B752(a)
Jade Summit Holdings Limited BVI/The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding
("Jade Summit") (Note (b))
BAEZEREBRARE (T4%E)) HEBREZEHE/TH REZR
(Br52b))

Vastline Limited (Note (b)) BVI/The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding

BEBRAE (WD) RBREYEE,/TEH REZR

Asia Cosmos Limited (Note (b)) Hong Kong/The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding

SBERAR HaEb) 58/ HE REZER

mERDEMEREERAF The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Property development

(Note (b))
mBRDEHMEREBRAR FRE Y EEa kD
K1z b))

BNEEEMBIRAR (Note (b)) The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Wholesale, import and
export of construction
materials

ENZBEEMEBERAR Ha#b) ] BEMNME EHO
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22.
Particulars of the Group’s associates during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out below:
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The summarised financial information of Shenzhen

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

REBEATZIRE (&
HE-_F-_—&R-_F-FE+_H
S+—BILEE AEERE AT S
VAT : (&

liog= 20

(a) TEEEEMERARRINBENMBE

Shengda, a material associate of the Group, is set out B ZHH T -
below:
2021 2020
B —F TECEE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FAT FET
As at 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H
Current assets MENEE 200,320 279,703
Non-current assets EREBEE - -
Current liabilities mEaE (227,421) (298,505)
Non-current liabilities ErRsasE - -
Net liabilities B&EFEE (27,101) (18,802)
Group's ownership interest AREBZHEEEER 45% 45%

Group's share of net assets of the
associate, excluding goodwill
Goodwill on the acquisition (less

cumulative impairment)

AEBBEHERATDZ
EERE (FaEES)

WEELENEE
CRUR 5T E)

Carrying amount of the investment

REREE
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BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22.

Particulars of the Group’s associates during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out below:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(@) The summarised financial information of Shenzhen

Shengda, a material associate of the Group, is set out
below: (continued)

REERQABZIKRE (&
BE_TE_—FRZIBZEF+_AH
=+ —HLEFE AEEBERTNFRE
;AT (&

Wizt - (#)

(a) TEEEEMERRRINBENMHE
BETZEHHWT : (&)

2021 2020
—E-—F g %S
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FAET FHET

For the year 31 December BHE+ZBA=1+—HLEE
Other income Hl A = -
Loss for the year FEBE (9,344) (13,567)
Other comprehensive loss Hith2m|mE1E - (1,045)
Total comprehensive loss S EEEREE (9,344) (14,612)
Loan to an associate T—HEBE AT 2B 111,811 101,902
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIREE (22,362) -
89,449 101,902

The unrecognised share of loss of the associate amounted
to HK$4,205,000 for the year (2020: HK$6,575,000). The
cumulative unrecognised share of losses as at 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$12,195,000 (2020: HK$8,461,000).
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE-T-—F+-A=t—HILEE
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. REVEATRIZIRE (&
(b) The summarised financial information of Jade Summit (b) XEBEEM =N m48REN
and its subsidiaries, a material associate of the Group, BREINTBERMEHIIWT :
is set out below:

2021 2020
=2 — —EIEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
At 31 December: wW+=-HA=+—8":
Current assets MEEE 921,885 1,034,001
Non-current assets ERENEE 2,914,413 2,295,330
Current liabilities mEMaE (1,500,048) (1,432,228)
Non-current liabilities EREE (1,253,843) (1,146,324)
Net assets BESE 1,082,407 750,779
Group's ownership interest KEBZHEEEER 27.5% 27.5%
Group's share of net assets of the ZAEBELBE AT EE
associate and carrying amount of FEKKRSREE
the investment 297,662 206,464
2021 2020
=2 — —EIEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
For the year ended 31 December HE+ "B =+—HLFE
Revenue WA - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERN/ (B518) 256,189 (36,342)
Other comprehensive income BEMemk=m 75,439 99,592
Total comprehensive income HE WG AERE 331,628 63,250
Loan to an associate F—EBE NG 2EXR 201,730 201,730
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts & : RIEEHE (4,036) (4,036)
197,694 197,694
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23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REETLEZKE
2021 2020
—E-—#& kSt =¥
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Share of net assets NMEEBEEFE 20,662 109,949
Notes: ez -
(a) Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: (@) BETREMFBUT:

Percentage of

Fri&BE 2t
Place of
incorporation Ownership interest/
or establishment/ Voting power/
Name operation Profit sharing Principal activities
MR ISR AR REES
% EE 2k FE DA FEER
2021 2020
—E_—F _—ETEF
Partners Special Opportunities Cayman Islands 66.7% 66.7% Debt investments

Fund I (the “Fund”) (Note (i)
Partners Special Opportunities FIZEE
Fund | (TE &) (15#3))

Grand Highlight Investments  BVI 50.0%
Limited (Note (ii)

Grand Highlight Investments HEBRZE S
Limited (4/52(ii))

Notes:

(i)  On 4 September 2019, the Group has obtained joint
control on the Fund through participation in the
board of directors of the Fund. Each of the Group and
another independent shareholder (the “JV Partner”)
owns 50% voting rights in the board of the Fund. The
ownership interest disclosed above represent capital
contribution to the Fund by the Group.

(i) The company was set up by the Group and the JV
Partner to jointly manage the Fund.
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BBERE

50.0% Fund management

2LEHE

Hiat -

)

(i)

RZZF-—NAFAAEA x&EE
ERSHEATHNEZTEMNEE
EHHFEN B AEEKRS —%
BIRR(GEBHIRESZZE
EEXEMBS0%ERRE LR
RENEAREDEAEED LK
BEEHHE-

ZABHAEERARGEBHMIL
UEREERESE-



23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to a deed of undertaking, the issuer of the
bond subscribed by the Fund and its related party
have undertaken to guarantee the Group to receive a
rate of return of 18% per annum (the “Undertaking
Percentage”) on the Group’s subscription amount
on the Fund. The Undertaking Percentage was
amended to 12% per annum since July 2019. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was
entitled to investment income from this undertaking
amounted to HK$4,695,000. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group was no longer entitled
to investment income from this undertaking.

Summarised financial information of the Fund, a material

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

23. REEERZKRE (B
(a) BELENHENT @
W : ()

(i) WEAZZE EBBE2ESE
TAREBBALTERFBERAE
EEMAERHESHNRBEEE
WEEE18%MEIHRE (MEHEHT
D)) cBZZE—hEEBLUK
AHEBEDLESTAEF12% RE
E_E_EF+_H=+—HL
FE O AEEBHBAILTEAEFE
BEEWA4L,695,0008 TR E
EFEZ-_—F+ZHR=+—HIE
FE > AEBFTBEEAILIBEAR
RESREWA -

b) EE FEENEASELRF) 2MBE

joint venture of the Group, is set out below: B EHF WM T :
2021 2020
—EZ—F ZEIEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHAT FHET
At 31 December: ®W+=ZBA=+—8":

Current assets (bond receivable) mEEE (BINES) 31,948 165,879
Non-current assets EREEE - -
Current liabilities piEAp=RE (955) (955)
Non-current liabilities ERBAER = -
Net assets BEERE 30,993 164,924
Group's ownership interest KEBZHEEE#ER 66.7% 66.7%

Group's share of net assets of the Fund ZEEELESEEFER
and carrying amount of the investment R EEREE 20,662 109,949
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REEEEZRE (&)
(continued)
(b)  (continued) (b) (#)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2020
BE+-HB=1+—HLEE —E—-F —ETEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHAT FHET
Revenue WA - 32,494
Loss for the year FERIE (133,931) (93,490)
Other comprehensive loss Hth2mE1E - -
Total comprehensive loss S HEFIBRE (133,931) (93,490)
(c)  Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's (0 FHEBERARLABAZAERGZD
joint venture which is considered by the directors as (ZUBERMBEZNWT
immaterial is presented below:
2021 2020
ZEZ—F TECTE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FHETT
Share of the joint venture’s loss EhHaEErERFERIE
for the year - -
Share of the joint venture’s total EhaEtERAFELIANR
comprehensive income for the year ks - -
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBASELEZREE

joint venture - -
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

24, BATEH ARG ZEMEE

2021 2020
—g-—F g
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FAET FET
Non-current JEREN
— Club debentures, at fair value — TGRS BATE
S8 4,266 4,266
Current ik}
— Listed equity investments, at fair value — EHRERE  HAFE
(Note) 58 (Hat) 115,867 173,133
Note: k=2

The above equity investments were classified as held for trading
and were, upon initial recognition, classified by the Group as

financial assets at FVTPL.

BE-

PRARAREDERFIERS WD HESR
BHAERDEABATESF ABDNER
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REMBRRM G

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS) 25.
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

EEREER (BE)
REEERBEFERINETEER
Haf/ (EE) RESBHOT

230

prior years:
Unrealised
fair value
change on
Impairment financial
Revaluation  of financial instruments
of property assets at FVTPL Total
BATEEA
BamiER
EMEE TAMKER
MEE AE ATEE st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TAT TAT FAT
At 1 January 2020 A\ZETEF—F—H 6,492 (30,380) (19,765) (43,653)
Debited/(credited) to profit or BZAFEE B,/
loss during the year GFIARFERR)
(Note 13) (Hyz#13) - 4,729 (12,504) (7,775)
Credited to reserve during AL FERFE
the year (886) - - (886)
Exchange realignment fE R AR 331 - - 331
At 31 December 2020 A_ETE+_H
=+—H 5,937 (25,651) (32,269) (51,983)
Debited to profit or loss BARFEEEHNRE
during the year (Note 13) (Hizt13) - 25,651 32,269 57,920
Debited to reserve during BAFERETR
the year 8,852 - - 8,852
Exchange realignment fE R A 28 369 - - 369
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_8
=+—H 15,158 - - 15,158
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

25. MERIBEE (BE) (&
RRGRERBRRRNERMS > BETE
EREEERSEDIES U TARNH
R B 0 BRI BRI AR

2021 2020

—E—% TR

HKD'000 HKD'000

FHET FET

Deferred tax assets RIERMIBE E = (57,920)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBaE 15,158 5,937
15,158 (51,983)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising from Hong Kong and the PRC of
approximately HK$441,005,000 (2020: HK$348,789,000)
and HK$119,472,000 (2020: HK$117,598,000) respectively
available for offsetting against future taxable profit
indefinitely and five years from the year in which the
loss arose respectively. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in the group companies that have been loss-making for
several years and it is not considered probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. There is no
profit of the PRC subsidiaries available for distribution
subject to the withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not
have other material unrecognised deferred tax.

RIBERFR > AEBDNELEBEETERT
BN EREMEEEFEFERALSE
BRI R ERR G N REBRIE
B8 D B4 2A441,005,0008 70 (Z
T4 1 348,789,000 70) K& 119,472,000
BT (CTE-FH 117,598,000 7T) © H
RIEERBEEEHSFRIEEBNE
RNBEES BWRBARKA RS EA
MIBEIBFINAERIEF) > B Bz
EHEIEBBIRIERNIBEE-

REBEERERE BT N\F—HF—
H ¥ P E i B A B PR EBUEF B kB9
IR B BIRTRIRR - PRI B A B I HE AR
MIAR R BY AT DO ] o

R-ZE_—Fk_Z_ZTF+-H
=+—H AEETEHMEAREDE
JERIA o
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7 = a R BN

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. 8
2021 2020
—E—% TETERE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAET
Raw materials and consumables eSS gz Y] 43,869 38,840
Work in progress THRmMm 12,797 19,757
Finished goods AL 14,042 14,058
70,708 72,655
Less: Allowance for obsolete inventories i : FREZ S #HE (14,008) (17,436)
56,700 55,219
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 27. B S EWERRRN ~ TA{TRRIE ~ HAth
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS EWFRRIEREME E
2021 2020
—E—F TETEEF
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables (Note (a)) B 5 EWERT (K13#a)) 256,123 216,408
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RERESE (Mata))
(Note (a)) (87,162) (64,832)
168,961 151,576
Prepayments, other receivables and TETRIE ~ Mt UGRIE &
other assets (Note (b)) HW&EE (Ba20b))
— Prepayments —FE B 13,298 12,284
— Deposits paid —BfN&%E 9,960 5,961
— Other receivables —HMhFE W Fh1E 119,101 113,953
142,359 132,198
311,320 283,774
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

(continued)
Notes:

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

27. B 5 EUARTR ~ FA{F R IE « HAth
REREREMEE (&)

HtaE -
(@) EFEKIRMR

FEBUEBERERNEGELUNE
KEHERNE S BUARREIIWT ¢

2021 2020

—E-—F TECFE

HKD'000 HKD'000

FHET FET

Denominated in United States dollars ETFHE 151,269 85,311

Customers of manufacturing segment are generally granted
with credit terms of 30 to 120 days while no credit period
will normally be granted to customers in treasury investment
and financial service segments. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) at the end of reporting period is as follows:

REDHENER —REK30E1208Z
EEH MYBREREHREDEN
ER—RUIEGEEH NBEHMR R
BEZAHN27 2 B 5 BUERR (G0
REREHE) ZREDAWT !

2021 2020

—E-—fF —EEE

HKD'000 HKD'000

FHT THET

0 - 30 days 0&30H 47,230 55,292
31 - 60 days 31E60H 51,917 39,958
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 38,726 23,259
Over 90 days 90H U E 31,088 33,067
168,961 151,576
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R G M B RERMEE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 27. B RURERR ~ FEIFRIE ~ HAth
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS FERWHREREMEE (&)
(continued)

Notes: (continued) bzt o (#&)
(@) Trade receivables (continued) (a) BEZEUER (&
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for BN E 5 IR (0 REREHE)
doubtful debts) which are past due is as follows: ZERE DT :
2021 2020
—E-—f —EoTE
HKD'000 HKD'000
FAT THET
0 - 30 days past due BHIOE30H 31,624 13,142
31 - 90 days past due HHI31E90H 8,703 2,572
Over 90 days past due #HAo0E L 5,950 23,022
46,277 38,736
The movement in impairment loss on trade receivables from NEEHRBEEANFIELEE S EWERR
contracts with customers during the year is as follows: BERBEBEZEHNT !
2021 2020
—E-—F “EITF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of the year REH 64,832 36,634
Impairment loss recognised B ZRERE 22,307 28,166
Exchange realignment bE 52 S 23 32
At end of the year AR 87,162 64,832
(b)  Prepayments, other receivables and other assets (by FENFHE HMMEKRIBEREMEE
Deposits and other receivables are all denominated in PRESRESHBR ZskEMEIR
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at the HEYUERERBRINEGEE.

end of both reporting periods.

Other receivables mainly include receivables from Cayman HMEWRIBTEBIEARER KT 2 H
Islands funds set up by the Group over which the Group has EFEES KRB MAEBRHZ
no control. SRS mITEFIRE
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28. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

28. RIRE

2021 2020

—E—% TR

HKD'000 HKD'000

FHET FET

Secured loans (Note (a)) BIREER W3t @)) 1,775,018 1,779,357
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts o RIREE (704,795) (518,147)
1,070,223 1,261,210

Notes:

(a) The balance represents secured loans to independent third
party corporate borrowers which bear fixed interest rates
ranging from 3% to 36% (2020: 3% to 36%) per annum
with initial loan period ranging from 12 months to 24
months. These loans were secured by the following:

- fund investments of a borrower;

55% equity interest in a borrower;

- interests in certain properties of a borrower;

- equity investments owned by the shareholder of a
borrower;

- listed shares owned by the related companies of a
borrower;

- listed shares of group companies of the borrower;

- issued share capital of group companies of the
borrowers;

- interest in rights to use of a number of sea areas
in the PRC owned by the group companies of the
borrowers; and

- personal guarantees executed by the shareholders or
key management personnel of the borrowers.

(a) ZERIEHRTBIE=HLIBARA
Z2HEIERER ZE 8L EEMN Kt
BOENRNFIEEIE (CE _TFE:
3EE36E) IFERBRNF121E8
E2MAR - ZEERUUTH &S BRI :
— —AEFRANEERE,

— —ZAERABS5%MHE ;

— —RERARETYENERD ;

— —RERANRRAEEZRAE
®E;

- —RERANBEBASEANL
mR

— BRAEERFINLEHRRD

— BRAEERINEZEITRE;

— BRAEERQFFMESTEHZE
BB AR

— BRAREXTIBEEABRI
BIE AR
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R G M B RERMEE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

28. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Included in the loan receivables is a short-term interest-free
loan amounted to HK$20,000,000 which was lent to the
bond issuer as mentioned in Note 29. The securities of this
loan and the bond receivable in Note 29 are the same.

(c)  The Group's loan receivables that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

28.

Kzt o (8)

(b) UM E29FT4 > B ERBERES
EITABHZIEE% EE7R20,000,000
BT o ERZ IR 297 FEWRE
FHA8[E °

(0 #AEEUFHEER
HESHENEWER

BREINELEELUNEG
AW -

2021 2020
—EB-—F TEBCBE
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") AR TAR®)) 5HE 184,185 198,125
29. NOTE RECEIVABLES 29. BN EE
2021 2020
—E-F “RIFF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FAET FET
Secured AR 230,165 230,137
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts B RERBE (92,066) (59,836)
138,099 170,301

236

The Group subscribed from four third party issuers 5%
- 10% fixed coupon redeemable unlisted bonds. These
bonds were secured by the issuer’s interests in certain
bonds issued by a company listed on the Stock Exchange
and personal guarantee executed by the director of certain
issuers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+H=1+—HLFE
29. BIRER (&
RIZEZZEF - WM ESFFREEGH
986 837 000B T Z=MMESFEERE
HREBEEHRBFE -FEHN
WﬁMH&M@)\_v_—¢+ A
=t+—B RmEBRNFEZESFA5%E
EREBAELIF EmES BETAR—
MR LM AR ETzETERSNE
m AR

29. NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

In 2020, three out of the four bonds with carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$986,837,000 were settled through
several restructuring and debt assignment agreements.
Details are set out in Notes 44(a) and 44(c). The bond that
remained held by the Group at 31 December 2021 is a
5% fixed coupon redeemable unlisted bond secured by
the issuer’s interests in certain bonds issued by a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal and interest of the bond(s) as at 31
December 2020 and 2021 were repayable within the next
12 months.

BER_ZE-_TEAR"T_—F+-A4
=+—HHNEEKRFNEARRKI2MEAR
WEE -

30. BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS 30. SRITHGFRTEMR

2021 2020

—E—&F T _ T4

HKD’'000 HKD'000

FET FET

Bank balances and cash RITERRERES 36,328 28,464
36,328 28,464

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank balances carry

RZB_ S kR-_F”_Z2F+_AH

interest at prevailing deposit rates. =+—B  RITERERBITERN XSt
I%\ @
The Group's cash and cash equivalents at each reporting AEENREREBHNRERREEE
date are denominated in the following currencies: MBI TS EHE -

2021 2020
—-— —=—=m
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FAET FET
Denominated in RMB AR EHE 4,944 246
Denominated in US$ METTEtE 28,395 24,571
Denominated in HK$ ATEE 2,840 3,604
Denominated in Singapore (“SGD") LNkt (MFH0#sc)) sHE - 43
Denominated in MOP LURPI¥E5HE 149 -
36,328 28,464
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7 = a R BN

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 31. BESEIRM - HBEAIRIER
ACCRUALS FEst & H

2021 2020

—E-F “RIFF

HKD'000 HKD'000

FHET F BT

Trade payables B2 AR 231,201 137,586

Other payables and accruals HihEARIE KR Est & A

— Other payables —HAMhE [ RIE 118,296 39,761

— Interests payables —EEHE 40,765 39,513

— Accruals —FEStE A 117,567 132,155
276,628 211,429

507,829 349,015

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at each
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RERSAH RELXRAR2IZES

AR ZRE DT ¢

2021 2020
B —F TECEF

HKD’000 HKD'000

FHET FHETT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 22,973 37,019
31 - 60 days 31%E60H 26,163 18,754
61 — 90 days 61%E90H 30,306 19,392
Over 90 days 908 L £ 151,759 62,421
231,201 137,586
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

31. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 31. ESEIERM - H B RIAR
ACCRUALS (continued) FEEtER (&)
The Group's trade payables that are denominated in AEBNUEREBRSRIIEGEUING
a currency other than the functional currencies of the BsHENEZEARMEIWT !
relevant group entities are set out below:
2021 2020
T —F TERIEEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FAT
Denominated in US$ METTstE 14,367 22,489
Denominated in Japanese Yen MHBHEE 49 55
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are B 2R R R—MIK60E120H
normally settled on terms of 60 to 120 days. The Group NEE AEEXRBYERREEREK
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure BERMBENRFENEERRREE.
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
The Group's other payables and accruals are denominated R ER S B R NEE 2 HMER
in functional currencies of the relevant group entities at BHRrESERHOUEHMERBSRINES
the end of both reporting periods. BatEe
32. BORROWINGS 32. f&
2021 2020
—EZ—F === 5
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHT FA7T
Secured bank loans repayable within AR—FRNEENBIRE
one year (Note (a)) IRITE (K5t (a)) 144,417 131,856
Other loans, unsecured (Note (b)) HMER > mIKW (H22b)) 180,559 183,882
Other loans, secured (Note (c)) HEmmE= > 5K (Watc)) 672,709 678,189
997,685 993,927
Current portion BDHERER 7 819,744 337,797
Non-current portion FERDERER 7> 177,941 656,130
997,685 993,927

T -F5R MEZREERRAE
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

S

—=

——EtoA=t-ALEE

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

240

(a)

(0

Notes:

The bank loans are secured by certain buildings and right-
of-use assets in respect of leasehold land held by the
Group, corporate guarantee of the Company and personal
guarantee of Mr. Cheok, a director of the Company.
As at 31 December 2021, bank loans of approximately
HK$144,417,000 (2020: HK$131,856,000) carried fixed
interest rate ranged from 2.36% to 3.85% (2020: 0.85% to
4.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021,
from Jade Summit, an associate, and an independent
third party amounted to approximately HK$177,941,000
(2020: HK$177,941,000) and HK$2,618,000 (2020:
HK$5,941,000) respectively. The loan from the associate

unsecured other loans obtained

is non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable in 2024;
whereas the loan from the independent third party bears
interest at a rate of 9.6% per annum (2020: 9.6% per
annum) and is repayable within the next twelve months.

Secured other loans borrowed from an independent third
party lender bears interest at a rate of 3% to 8% per
annum (2020: 3% to 8% per annum) and HK$672,709,000
are repayable within the next twelve months (2020:
HK$200,000,000 and HK$478,189,000 of which are
repayable within the next twelve months and beyond twelve
months respectively). The balance is secured by:

Corporate guarantee of the Company;

- Equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Company;

- The Group’s interest in an associate;
- Trade and loan receivables with carrying amount of

HK$220,792,000 (2020: HK$241,211,000); and

- Financial assets at FVTPL with carrying amount of
HK$63,781,000 (2020: HK$55,941,000).
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32. 1EITA C“ )

Kiat -

(a)

(@]

ZERTERUETEFT R AEEMEF
EHEIHMZEREEE - AQARZD
(ERREARBDETS R EZE AL
RIEEB| R _BE-_—F+_-_B=+—
H>$84%4144,417,00087T (ZE
T4 1 131,856,000 70) MER{TE MR
NF236EE3.85E (CE_F4:0.85
EZE4352) 2EEFHEFR -

RZEZ—%+ZH=+—H"H
B (—HEBERE) R—S%BILE
THERENERFEMERD B L
#177,941,0008 T (ZE B4
177,941,000 7T) K2,618,00058 7T (Z
v_sﬁﬁ 5,941,000787T) ° %K B B &
BERATHE EEBLBNR S
_Efﬁf,a%& MmARBEBILE=HEXRE
MEFNKICE (CE_TF  £HZF96
B) stE o MERAR+ZERARNEER-

BEIE=FERABAZEIRFH
MERREMNKIEEZEIE (ZE_ZF
£ EMNRIEESE) ;B2 MHED
672,709,000 B BN AR+ -EE N
BB (CZT-ZF : 200,000,000 TK
478,189 ooo%mﬁ DRI R AR+ Z 1@
BAKRKR+TZEBURBEIRE) - %&RTD
M RIEEIRF :

—  EREZEEER;

— RAERTETHBRE ZKRE

— FEER-—EBMEASZ#ED

-

—  BREEA220,792,000E T (&2
ZAE 1 241,211,00087T) 2 B FE
BRI S FEWE =R ; K

—  BRMEEA63,781,0008 T (ZEZ
T : 55,941,000 7T) 2R AF
Bt NIERZEREE-°



32. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

32. f&m (&)

Wizt : (&)
() (continued) (0 (#)
The borrowings that are denominated in a currency other MERERBERD BLUNEEEtE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities RERREHMT -
are set out below:
2021 2020
—EZ—F —2TEHF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT FHET
Denominated in US$ MUZETEE 64,903 51,150
Denominated in RMB MAREEE 177,941 177,941

33. LOANS FROM A RELATED PARTY/

33. RKEB—%MBAL EEZ2EN

DIRECTOR
2021 2020
—E-—%F —EIERF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FAET
Unsecured loans from a related party: kB — % B A B EIER
B
— Non-interest bearing and repayable on —F st B & BZRERER
demand (Note (a)) (H1t(a)) 2,950 2,800
Unsecured loan from a director: RE—HEENEEHT
=/
— interest bearing at 7% per annum and —IZEFIR7E B KRER
repayable on demand (Note (b)) ERIBE (WaEb)) 103,710 119,465
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

33. LOANS FROM A RELATED PARTY/
DIRECTOR (continued)

Notes:

242

(a)

(b)

The loan was advanced by Mr. Liu Tingan (“Mr. Liu”), who
has resigned as an executive director of the Company on 6
April 2020 but remains as a key management personnel of
the Company and director of many subsidiaries.

The loan was advanced by Mr. Cheok, an executive director
of the Company.

The loan from Mr. Cheok that is denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

3. RE—LMBAL EE2RK

() EMIhEBEZRE (T21%%E)) B4
FREER S _TFEMNANERHESR
ABRPTESF HEBELELANIEERE
ANERZHEMBRAR ZESE-

(b) EMHATABATEFSLERM-

REEZEENERPUEAER BRI
FEERLUNERESHENEREIWT !

2021 2020

—EZ-F 223

HKD’000 HKD'000

TFET FET

Denominated in RMB MARSE 2,047 2,023
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A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+A=+—HIFE

34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. THE&E
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
HEF® HEMHRNIRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E_—-F “ETTF —E-% “ETEF
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET FAT FET FAET
Within one year —&FR 6,338 5,070 5,689 4,313
In the second to fifth BEERTE
years, inclusive (BIEEEMSF) 4,666 7,845 4,504 7,369
After five years L% - - - -
11,004 12,915
Less: Future finance charges 8 : RERBEM L (811) (1,233)
Present value of lease liabilities TR E&EMIRE 10,193 11,682 10,193 11,682

Less: Amount due for settlementid : I 12ME 8 R EIHIEE
within 12 months (shown WRIE GIRREas
under current liabilities) ET) (5,689) (4,313)

Amount due for settlement  R12EBBHBHEERN

after 12 months Q] 4,504 7,369
At 31 December 2021, the average effective borrowing RN_EBE - —F+"_H=+—H>FHEXR
rate was 6% (2020:6%). Interest rates are fixed at the BRI EECE (CE_ZF 6[FE) o fIX
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value BDREHNBEHREE wMEAEEEER
interest rate risk. EEHZERE
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R G M B RERMEE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL

35. g7

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

EREE
01872
ZEREE
("000) HK$'000
(F8) FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020, RW_E2_ZF—HF—Q-
31 December 2020 and 2021 TETEFERE T —F
+-A=+—H 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
At 1 January 2020, A ZEEF—F—B-
31 December 2020 and 2021 TECEERTE_—F
+-HA=+—H 2,208,000 220,800
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36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

Company

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves are

as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
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36. f# &

(a) &=%£H
REBNREEEIEBHNIEGE
/\fmf&%jjﬁo

(b) ZAF
AT MBS EBENT

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

R EE REtEiE Wt

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

FHET FHET FHET

At 1 January 2020 N _E_EE—-HF—H 2,559,569 (650,072) 1,909,497

Loss for the year FEBE - (1,035,370) (1,035,370)

At 31 December 2020 and RIEZEF

1 January 2021 + E +—Bk

“E_—-%—A—H 2,559,569 (1,685,442) 874,127

Loss for the year FEBE - (341,988) (341,988)
At 31 December 2021 RN_E_—F+_4

=+—H 2,559,569 (2,027,430) 532,139

As at 31 December 2021,

the aggregate amount

of distributable reserves of the Company was
HK$532,139,000 (2020: HK$874,127,000).

e

WZE2Z—&®+ZHA=+—8"
P N/NI =] ORI ) /)E{u%{%,%@aﬁ%
532,139,000 T (&=
874,127,0003 7T) ©
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(c) The following describes the nature and
purpose of each reserve within owners’
equity:

246

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium
It included the premium arising from the
subscription of new ordinary shares in the past.

Contributed surplus

It represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the group reorganisation
in prior years, over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefore.

Property revaluation reserve

It represents gains/losses arising on the
revaluation of property. The balance on this
reserve is wholly non-distributable.

Translation reserve

It represents gains/losses arising on retranslating
the net assets of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

It was appropriated each year on the basis
of 10% of the profit after taxation of
certain subsidiaries established in the PRC
as determined by their boards of directors
in accordance with the respective Articles of
Association of these subsidiaries. This reserve
should only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into capital and expansion of
production and operation.

(vi) Accumulated losses

It represents cumulated net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. B KIE
Capital commitments of the Group in respect of property REBRSHE 2EBBHEBRREAES
and equipment and capital contribution outstanding at MBRRANTIREGFNMERRBEUR
each reporting date not provided for in these consolidated AEMEAREEWT !
financial statements are as follows:
2021 2020
S —F “EIERF
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET TABT
Property, plant and equipment ME-BER&E
- Contracted, but not provided for —BEINBEREE - 915
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. KA LR 5
(@) In addition to the related party balances and (a) BAREGEEVHRFEMWEEFESE 2

transactions set out in other Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, during the year,
the Group entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

B ALTER R 7 SEEA
FEA TN AEEBETUTRS !

Related party Nature of transaction 2021 2020
R AL RH4E B —F —ECEF
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FH7T
Keentop Investment Limited Lease and management
("Keentop”) (Note (i) fee payments 2,131 2,330
ERERRRE (TBE) HEREEEMR
(H520))
Shenzhen Shengda (Note 22(a)) Interest income from a
loan to an associate 6,990 8,805
RRIE (Hf5E22(a)) THERBIZERZ
FBUA
—E—F5% MEZREERARAR 247
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(continued)

248

(i)

Notes.

The amounts paid to Keentop, which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Cheok, a director of the Company,
and his spouse, related to a property leased as their
residence. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement entered
into on 26 May 2017, the monthly rental and
management fees were HK$165,000 and HK$18,000
respectively for three years from 1 June 2017 to
31 May 2020 (the “old tenancy agreement”). The
tenancy agreement was renewed on 29 May 2020 for
three years from 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2023 under
the same terms and conditions.

This related party transaction in relation to the
old tenancy agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

Details of lease liability related to this lease is set out

38. AT 5 (&

(a)

(&

Hjt :

(i)

NEMAEFAEBEZWES
NFPFERABDEETERERERR
ERBEZEEZRIB-RENRC
T—t+tERA-+ /A
K (TEMRLY)) » —FE—tERA
—HEZZZZEFHA=+—H
—EEEZAEKEBRED A
165,000 755 18,0007 75 ° FH4Y
ER_E_EERFA_t+HhHEZ
HEEMERREGEEE=F H_ZT
—EFARE—BREEZZ==
ABR=+—H-

ILTE BRI ERNNRERALRS
R EHRABRFERERS -

HZHEARZEEERFFH
HIEnF

as follows:

2021 2020
ZEZ—F T
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FHETT

Classified under: DR
Current portion TMENER 1,778 1,570
Non-current portion JEmBENER D 808 2,586
2,586 4,156

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021



38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)
(i)  (continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ TS+ A=t+—HIEE

38. Rt AT 5F (&

(a) #)
Kzt . (#)

(i) (&

RREEMRZHPHAT ¢

2021 2020
—EZ-& —ZC%E

Minimum Minimum
lease Present lease Present
payments Interest value payments Interest value
RIEBELR FE RE REHEEMT Gil)s! RE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FET FET
Within 1 year 1R 1,980 202 1,778 1,980 410 1,570
110 5 years 1256 825 17 808 2,805 219 2,586
2,805 219 2,586 4,785 629 4,156

Members of key management personnel during
the year comprised only those executive directors
whose remuneration is set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

b) REFEZTBEEASERAT
Rz e MBRERN

EF HM=H
5160

T -F5R MEZREERRAE

249



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MR M A

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T - —F+A=1+—HIEFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are

39. B AR

RN FENINBABREREIER 28
e A 45 [&] E 32 RN A

R TEBE_—F+"RA=+—HHWER

as follows: BB -
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration attributable to
Name and operation Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
MBI,
kg SR R EHRES FATFEGERERS T FTEEH
2021 2020
ZEZ-F ZEIEF
Directly Owned
EEBE
Topsearch Industries (BVI) Limited  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
US$13,085,640
HEBRUHE/EE  BiBK13,085640%T REER
Brilliant Plus Investments Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Investment holding
HERUHE/EE  EBRIER REER
Indirectly Owned
HEHEE
Topsearch International Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited HK$17,000,000
EGER (2R) BRAA &E &18%17,000,000% 7T REER
Deferred non-voting*
HK$20,000,000
BRERELR
20,000,000 7t
Topsearch Printed Circuits (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
Limited 1,706,319,277
ESRBRER (FF) ERAT BE EiEkK1,706,319,.2778 7T REER
Topsearch Printed Circuits Macau Ordinary shares Macau 100 100 Sale of printed circuit boards
Macao Commercial Offshore Pataca100,000
Company Limited
EIRERANRFEERE RN &i8R100,0000FF HEENRI R IR IR
ARAH
EEREERE (D) The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Manufacture of printed circuit
BRAFS US$109,000,000 boards
ESRBKRHER (D) F & A109,000,000% 7T SEENRI R IR AR
BRAFS

250 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021



39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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39. B AR (&

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Name and operation Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
MBI,
%18 Enyd-ESib BRRELX FAREMERET DL TEEH
2021 2020
B2 C“EBCEZE
Topsearch Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
Investment (Holdings) Limited HK$46,784,002
&E L8 0646,784,0028 T BREER
REERLEEELARE The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Provision of information system
BRAge HK$ 1,000,000 management services and
investment advisory services
BEERLEEELARE HE SR E 41,000,000 7T REENRAEERBREE
BRATe BERRT
Hero Zone Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Investment holding
HERUHE/ B EBRRIET REER
Hong Kong Bridge BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Equity and debt investments
Investments Limited
HERYHE/ B EBRRIET REREHRE
Renco Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Provision of advising on
HK$34,000,000 securities and asset
management services
&E 18 234,000,0008 7T NEFRABRREHREE
BER
Perfect Stage Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Investment holding
HERYHE/ B EBRIET REER
Just Right Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Consultancy and corporate
solution services
HERYHE/ B EBRIET ARt ERRRRRE
Brave Unit Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Consultancy and corporate
solution services
HERYHE/ B EBRRIET ARt ERRRRRE
Sonic Dragon International BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Consultancy and corporate

Limited

HERUEHE /B

EBRIET

solution services

EAREERRARRE
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

39. B AR (&

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Name and operation Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
MBI,
kL ERiyd-EiE BHEES FAREMERET L TEEHR
2021 2020
—E”_-5 "EZ°ZF
Classic Blaze Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Consultancy and corporate
solution services
HERIHE/5F  EERIER ARt ERRTRRE
Blissland Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Consultancy and corporate
solution services
HERIHE/5F  EERIER ARt ERRTRRE
Thriving Season Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Equity investment
HERIHE/5F  EERIER RELE
Renco Capital Partners Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 100 100 Dormant
HK$5,800,000
MEBEXEBABRAT &E £ 18 15,800,0007 7T BEER
Shenzhen Renco Private Equity The PRC Ordinary share 100 100 Assets and funds management
Investment Fund Management RMB20,000,000 and investment and financial
Limited® advisory
FBBLAERERERSEE PE ERRART BERESEHURRER
BRATe 20,000,0007T R
Digital King Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Fund investment
HERYHE/ 58  BERIER 2ERE
Idea Excel Investment Ltd BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Fund investment
HERIHE/5F  EERIER 2ERE
Great Merchant Investments Ltd ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Fund investment
HERIHE/5F  EERIER 2ERE
Power Tiger Investments Ltd BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100 100 Fund investment
HERIHE/5F  EERIER 2ERE
Hong Kong Bridge Landmark The Cayman Island/ HK$220,000,000 100 100 Equity and debt investments
Investment Fund, L.P* Hong Kong
MEHE/&E 220,000,000 7 REREBRE
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
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39. B AR (&

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Name and operation Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
MBI,
%18 Enyd-ESib BRRELX FAREMERET DL TEEH
2021 2020
e B L
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt The Cayman Island/ HK$1 100 100 Dormant
One Road Infrastructure Hong Kong
Investments Fund IIl L.P*
BEHE/EH 1T BEEY
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One  The Cayman Island/ HK$375,000,000 100 100  Debt investments
Road Fixed Income Fund L.P# Hong Kong
RENE /&8 375,000,000 7 BHRE
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One  The Cayman Island/ HK$375,000,000 100 100  Debt investments
Road Natural Resource Fund Hong Kong
LP¥
RENE /&8 375,000,000 7 BHRE
HKBridge Absolute Return Fund  The Cayman Island/ HK$410,000,002 100 100 Equity investment
LP¥ Hong Kong
MEHE/&E 410,000,002 7 RERE
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One ~ The Cayman Island/ HK$1 100 100 Dormant
Road Growth Fund L.P* Hong Kong
BEHE/EH 1T BEEY
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One  The Cayman Island/ HK$220,000,000 100 100  Debt investments
Road M&A Fund L.P* Hong Kong
MEXNE /&8 220,000,000 7 BHRE
Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech The Cayman Island/ HK$240,000,000 100 100 Equity and Debt investment
Investments Fund L.P.* Hong Kong
MEHE/&E 240,000,000 7 REREBRE

T -F5R MEZREERRAE
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39.

254

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no
rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital
upon winding-up unless a sum of HK$500,000,000,000,000
has been distributed to each of the holders of the ordinary

shares.

@ Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

i The funds were established by the Group as Cayman Islands

exempted partnership.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities as
at 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally comprised the Group’s assets or results. To give
details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 40. EFUE
Year ended 31 December 2020 E_ZTEF+"A=+—HULESFE
During the year, following the debt assignment REFE RETEBEELHR K&
arrangements, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in EWEETHEMNEESHNI100%KEE
several Cayman Islands funds in which several subsidiaries HPARFAETHEBAGIAEBESBA
of the Company are general partners as set out in Notes (H KM sE44(b)R44(c)) - HEE2—EH
44(b) and 44(c). Fund I, Fund I, Fund Il & IV and Fund V TR RN EES AR EAARR
are defined in Note 44. 7E °
The Group acquired these funds to expand its existing AEBKRBZEESUEREARESRK
portfolio in fund investments. The fair value of identifiable BEHAEHG ZFEEN 2 _TF—
assets and liabilities of these funds as at 1 January 2020, B—HB (BN EBEH) A& &E
the date of acquisition of the funds, were as follow: REENAFENT
Fund | Fund Il Fund Il &IV Fund V Total
HEe— EE- E&=RkMO E&H Mt

HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Loan receivables EWER = - 241,299 93,366 334,665
Deposit and other receivables %% R ELfth &Iz 18 18,532 21,588 - 2,402 42,522
Financial assets at FVTPL BATE ABR L
EHEE 4,972 - - 70,754 75,726
Trade and other payables B A REMERT R EM
FEfTRUE (8,215) - (103,923) (1,737) (113,875)
Tax payable e I18 (26,819) (17,497) (17,595) - (61,911)
Net identifiable a#p (R EE
(liabilities)/assets L (11,530) 4,091 119,781 164,785 277,127

Add: 25% additional equity I : REBHEHRE S
interest in Absolute Return 2 25%ZB 9 IR
Fund (Note 45(c)) (Hfz£45(c) - - 47,570 - 47,570

Net identifiable (liabilities)/ ~ ZEEELZ BT A

assets attributable to (BR) /BEZ

the Group %8 (11,530) 4,091 167,351 164,785 324,697
The fair value of REBERZATE:

considerations transfer:
Note receivables EWE % - - 411,688 234,592 646,280
Trade receivables B R EUER - - 5,317 = 5,317

- - 417,005 234,592 651,597
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40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

41.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

40. EFWNE (&

BE_TS-_EHF+-"B=+—HLEE
(#)

Fund | Fund Il Fund Il &IV Fund V Total
BEE— BE$- Ef=-rM E£H st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTET FTET TET TERT FTERT
Goodwill/(gain on BE/ (REEE

bargain purchase) W z) 11,530 (4,091) 249,654 69,807 326,900

Impairment loss recognised X UR BB FESD 2 AL 1B
upon acquisition g (11,530) - (249,654) (69,807) (330,991)
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBEEWA = (4,091) = = (4,091)

The fair value of loan receivables and deposits and other
receivables acquired amounted to HK$334,665,000 and
HK$42,522,000 respectively. The gross amounts of these
receivables are HK$334,665,000 and HK$42,522,000
respectively and were expected to be fully collectible.
Since the acquisition date, the funds have contributed,
HK$54,712,000 and loss of HK$37,174,000 to Group's
revenue and profit or loss respectively.

The goodwill arising from the acquisitions were allocated
to the respective funds, each of which represents a
cash-generating unit, for impairment testing. At the
acquisition date, the recoverable amounts of the funds
were determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the carrying value of their net identifiable
assets/liabilities with major assets being investments in
listed shares and loan receivables. As a result, an aggregate
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$330,991,000 was
recognised in 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

41.

FEM B R UKEE & HMERRIE
MWAFEED R A334,665,000% 75 K&
42,522,0008 o 2 EEINARIBZ 42%E
37 #%334,665,00078 75 5242,522,0008
o FRHAR 2 ke - B U EE H BB %R »
ZEESEDAXTERNKARER
HRA54,712,000%8 7t ke E54837,174,0007%8
=5

BRBEEREENBECOEEREE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. XABMFBIRRR

RBEMREBERADUBRRRZE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BT
follows:
2021 2020
HKD'000 HKD'000
FAET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME- BB R E 1,728 2,488
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,531 6,895
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZERE 871,038 871,038
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 4,989 4,951
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WS B /&8 /A B TR I8 1,328,344 1,705,848
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFESAAEGRZERHEE 2,188 2,188
2,211,818 2,593,408

Current assets MHEE
Other current assets HMRHHEE 140,713 140,642
Loan receivables W E =R 500,489 455,832
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEST ARG SRHEE 17,259 17,489
Bank balances and cash IRTTERKNIES 618 1,581
659,079 615,544

Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables and accruals HAth & I8 K FE 5t & A 50,932 53,507
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,485 2,343
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES B B A B FR 1B 1,873,252 1,825,651
Loan from a related party — R ATE®R 2,950 2,800
Loans payable eI B 8,100 1,000
1,937,719 1,885,301
Net current liabilities RENBEFEE (1,278,640) (1,269,757)
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42. ZRAF B RR &
THE COMPANY (continued)
Information about the statement of financial position RREPRBEEERRTDHBRIRZE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BT (&
follows: (continued)

2021 2020

—E-F “RIFF

HKD'000 HKD'000

FET FET

Total assets less current liabilities 2B E R REIAE 933,178 1,323,651
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Lease liabilities HEas 2,298 4,783

Loans payable BB 177,941 223,941

180,239 228,724

NET ASSETS BEFE 752,939 1,094,927
Capital and reserves B 75 Rz ik s

Share capital [N 220,800 220,800

Reserves B 532,139 874,127

TOTAL EQUITY AR 752,939 1,094,927
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FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B AR M 5

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BHE_

- F+-A=t—AILEE
43. MEFBEE ZBBHIE

Loan from a
Lease related Loans from Interest
liabilities ~ Borrowings party director payable
— 2B AL —4%
HE&R EEA £ EEY-EN FEF S
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2021 A _E_—-F—H—H 11,682 993,927 2,800 119,465 39,513
Changes from cash flows: Renegs .
New borrowings MIEER - 289,285 150 - -
Repayment of borrowings BERN - (381,856) = (22,745) =
Repayment of loan interests BEEDHE - - - - (14,734)
Lease payments BE[® (6,739) = = = =
Total changes from financing MERERELHERE
cash flows: (6,739) (37,439) 150 (22,745) (14,734)
Other change: Hithg s
Offsetting arrangement BT - = = = -
Reclassification EEiibag - = = = -
New leases WS 4,107 - = - =
COVID-19-related rent concession HBFEEREEHEES - - - = =
Modification of lease HEEN - - - - -
Interest expenses FERMZ 1,143 40,046 - 6,990 15,086
5,250 - - 6,990 15,086
Exchange adjustments: EREE . - 56,283 - - 900
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_1
=+—H 10,193 997,685 2,950 103,710 40,765
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
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FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

43. MEEHEEZARYHKR (&

Loan from a
Lease related Loan from Interest
liabilities Borrowings party a director payable
—ZEBAT —%
HEaR RN B3 EZET FEFIE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR FER TER FTER TER
At 1 January 2020 A _E_ZFE—-H—H 18,427 1,628,256 - 91,055 84,475
Changes from cash flows: Renegs .
New borrowings migED - 467,691 1,800 21,860 -
Repayment of borrowings BEER - (291,967) - - -
Repayment of loan interests BEETAE - - - - (14,157)
Lease payments AE[® (9,525) - - - -
Total changes from financing MERERELHEE
cash flows: (9,525) 175,724 1,800 21,860 (14,157)
Other change: Hithg s
Offsetting arrangement RHTH - (890,616) - - (44,857)
Reclassification EEiibag - - 1,000 (1,000) -
New leases WS 7,092 - - -
COVID-19-related rent concession HBFEHREFEEER (898) - - - -
Modification of lease HEENK (5,112) - - - -
Interest expenses FERMZ 1,692 53,808 - 7,437 11,918
2,774 (836,808) 1,000 6,437 (32,939)
Exchange adjustments: ERRAE: 6 26,755 - 113 2,134
At 31 December 2020 AZEEFE+H
=+—H 11,682 993,927 2,800 119,465 39,513
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44, SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the general
partners and limited partners of several Cayman Islands
funds set up by the Group (some of which are controlled
by the Group) entered into several restructuring and debt
assignment agreements which give rise to the following
non-cash transactions:

(a)

(b)

(0)

Loan receivables, note receivables and other
receivables with carrying amount of HK$461,989,000,
HK$165,874,000 and HK$67,314,000 respectively
were assigned to lenders of the Group to settle loan
payables and accrued interests thereon to the extent
of HK$700,107,000, which resulted in a gain of
HK$4,930,000.

A limited partner in two Cayman Islands funds (“Fund
| and Fund II”) has withdrawn from Fund | and Fund
Il. Certain subsidiaries of the Company, which have
contributed HK$1 in each of Fund | and Fund II, have
become the sole investors in Fund | and Fund Il since
then. HKFRS 3 has been applied to account for the
deemed acquisition. Further details are set out in
Note 40.

Note receivables of two Cayman Islands funds owned
by the Group and trade receivables with carrying
amount of HK$820,963,000 and HK$66,000,000
respectively were transferred to limited partners
(the”LPs”) of certain Cayman Islands funds in which
the Group had no control (“Funds Ill & IV and Fund
V") in exchange for i) 100% equity interests in Funds
' & IV and Fund V held by the LPs and additional
25% equity interest in Absolute Return Fund in which
the Group owned 75% equity interest prior to this
arrangement; and ii) settlement of the Group’s loan
payable of HK$235,366,000. Further details are set
out in Note 40.

45. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 May
2022.

44,

45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M BRI 5T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+H=1+—HLFE
BEARIFRERS
BE_ZE_TE+_A=+—HLEE-
rEERUZETHEEEEES (BTE
ERAEEREZET) 2 BEBEBRARERE
BANFTULETEMAREREZEGZ HE
FUTIERERS :

(a) BREEDHIA461,989,00078 75~
165,874,000/ 75 567,314,000/
TZEWEMR B EREREMAE
KWHREBEBEEETAEBR ZERA
LB S LL700,107,000%8 75 2 B RY
ENERKREESHNE  EEWE
4,930,00038 7T °

by MEREREES (B2 KEE
TNDZ—RERGBAERHESR
—REE" -RAEEF—REETE
BHE1BTZETEAATNEAST
BEENREE —REE " ZMH—
REZE -BEBMBREERF3IRE
ERBLUMBFUBEEAR E
—HEFIREIMIEE400

(0 BREESDH%A820,963,0008 T K
66,000,000 T2 ANEBHES 2 W
EHENEES VRREENRES
FEWRMEEETAEE I EZEF
zETHEREES ((EE2=K
MEEEH) 2BREBA (TBR
EBAND) UME)BEREBARTE
ZEESZKROKREEHEFHNI00%
RERANEBRIEZHAIER75%
R BEBRESPIEEIN25%
R, RNENAEBENLER

235,366,000/ 70 c E—FE B EH RN

MI5E40 0

HESRSMBRR

EFEgN_ZE_"_FRA=+—0A#E
RBRETIEAGEMBERE-
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' FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T_—EF+"H=1+—HIEE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and ZAEBERBEZAFEMBRFEHBESHEL
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as B HRERZETLBEBUREERER
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set #EZ &I T o

out below.
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
_EZ-&F ECEE “T-NE 2 )\E Bt
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
AT FET FET FTET TET
Revenue WA 535,431 277,575 208,941 388,892 1,347,408
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETERIESR/ (ZH) A
credit/(expense) (&518) /&7 (390,415)  (1,036,986) (602,600) (509,579) 557,316
Income tax (expense)/credit FiisR (L) /% (61,175) 7,012 (56,086) 81,911 (101,203)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (518) /57 (451,590)  (1,029,974) (658,686) (427,668) 456,113
(Loss)/profit attributable to: BT AL (58) /
@A
Owners of the Company E/NSIEZZEUN (451,590)  (1,029,974) (658,619) (427,668) 456,113
Non-controlling interests RS - - (67) - -
(451,590)  (1,029,974) (658,686) (427,668) 456,113
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEEME 2,669,103 2,950,325 4,496,887 5,150,896 5,463,624
Total liabilities GEEHE (1,915,188) (1,761,134) (2,318,105) (2,304,745) (2,142,666)
Total net assets BEEFELH 753,915 1,189,191 2,178,782 2,846,151 3,320,958
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Renco Holdings Group Limited with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group” or “We") has substantially grown its businesses
spanning from Printed Circuit Board ("PCB”) manufacturing
to financial services. Aiming to become Asia’s leading asset
manager and maintain our competitive edge in the PCB industry,
we are committed to integrating sustainability principles
into our strategic planning and daily operation through
transparent measures, given delivering enduring value to our
major stakeholders — shareholders, employees, customers,
and the wider society. Therefore, we attach great importance
to employee care, business integrity, customer satisfaction,
environmental conservation and community engagement with
explicit missions and objectives.

Having a deep ambition to construct long-term trusted ties
with our stakeholders in the community, the Group is pleased
to publish the environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
report (the “Report”) summarising its ESG performance and
initiatives.

Scope of the Report

The Report examines the Group’s ESG management approaches,
environmental and social performance and material topics
during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(the “reporting period”), with the scope of all business
segments including PCB manufacturing business, treasury
investments, financial services and asset management in Hong
Kong and the PRC'. The key performance indicators (“KPI")
as disclosed in the Report is based on our business in Hong
Kong and the manufacturing plant in Qujiang, which is the only
manufacturing plant in the PCB manufacturing business.

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Report follows
all the principles as stipulated in Appendix 27:

BRI - HHEREAHRS

FRAHRS
MAHERERRRABDRANBAR (Bl
£/ HHRM) 2EFEREE  BREHRG
A (TENRIARERHIR)) RIS E 2 RARTS - IR
F LB BRBYFE IS Pl 15 A8 3 R R BB A BB
RERABEER REMARMNALZEE
RERRENBIGBIRTERTGEEE  AE
ERFNE-RR-EE - BERPRERTEREM
BABE AL HMPSEEREIHE B
XEE - BZRARARE - RERERTESH
W LB BRREEm R BT

AEEBMAT S EEE HEREA

(TESG)) B R B ESGRE (MRE)) » =
ERAERENRHTEARAZENERZILEAGHE
BEf% o

wEEE

AREBERAEER S —F—HA—HZE
“EC—F+ZA=+—0HK" (HREH[E)
ZESGEEAZ - RERMEENUKREIES
B BEREMBEEH N aEREERT
EEEENRIRBEIRRNEES MBRE -UH
BRBREEEE - REMKEZAREIISE
(TKP1)) W ER RPN EBRER R #T
AOBLIE R (R 7 BT R 46 B8 AR B 36 SR FE RO I —
RER) °

wmEER
BEERBEEBMAEXSMAERARRS L
TRAMER27TETZRE - HEREARABRSTE
SRS - HREEBENBR27FAE 2 PIA %R !
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. Environmental, Social and Governance Report
7 B - HegrhEARS

The Group has determined
the content of the Report
based on the results of the
stakeholder engagement
and materiality assessment
and has covered the key
ESG issues of concern to
stakeholders.

rEBERBEFMNEZAR
ExkEBEMFEMEE R
TR T2 REFNDE
BTN EBESGEER

Quantitative

The environmental and
social KPIs have been
disclosed in the ESG report.
To provide the stakeholder
with a comprehensive
understanding of the Group's
ESG performance, the criteria,
methodology and references
used to calculate the KPIs are
set out in the ESG report.

RIE R EKPIERESGER
EARB-RTRHNEH
AEBMNESCGRREARD T
R ESGHR BRI T AR5t

The Group uses consistent
reporting and calculation
methods as far as
judiciously practicable and
details significant changes
in data or methods in the
corresponding chapters to
achieve comparability of
ESG performance.

AEBEFEAITHANE
TEA-—ENRERFE
FE MR AREEEF I
BRAENERES  WE

BKPIWER N 5E KRB E
IR o

Contact & Feedback

The Group believes a strong trusted relationship with our
community is critical for our business sustainability. We
treasure your opinions on this ESG report and our sustainability
performance. If you have any comments or suggestions, please
feel free to contact us via info@renco.com.hk.

264

During the reporting period, the Group did not engage in any
consultancy and corporate solution services due to the current
capital market fluctuations and the adverse impacts of the
COVID-19 outbreak.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that well-established ESG principles and
practices will increase investment values and provide long-term
returns to stakeholders, therefore the Board attaches great
importance to that.

Board Statement

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG-related
matters, including the performance, strategies, and compliance
to relevant laws and regulations. The Board monitors the
accomplishment of ESG-related actions and reviews the content
and quality of the ESG report of the Group annually.

For better management of ESG risks, the Board oversees the
risk evaluation process of ESG-related issues and respective
risk mitigation plans. Different departments are involved in the
ESG risk management process in order to improve the Group
ESG strategy. Besides, the Board is accountable for monitoring
the quality of ESG-related training for staff to ensure their
knowledge and practices are in alignment with the Group's ESG
development.

To precisely manage key ESG issues, the Group employed an
independent consulting firm to conduct materiality assessment
on ESG issues. Stakeholder surveys have been carried out
to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders,
including directors, which allowed the Board to provide opinions
on the materiality of ESG issues,thus identify and prioritise the
material issues of the Group. The Board is well informed and
is responsible for reviewing and validating the result of the
materiality assessment. In the meantime, the Board will keep
reviewing the stakeholder engagement channels and exercise
to ensure the Group ESG strategies meet the expectations of
stakeholders.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HEREBARS

ESGE A

AEEARE RENESCRAEREHBESE
EEME TARMEREENES RitES
FHILEEER-

EXgEH
EFEEASEECEENESGHERBEE 81
RE -RBERERERRERNETER &
CERESGHBATHNRR U SFERAE
EEESGHRENABTRERE -

AT EFEESGR R EF g BESGHEESE
BEHRERTGEEREREENRRERETE R
FIZPFIRHEESGRAREE R  UBERER
ESGIRBg o b EE G B BB B TESGHER
BINEE URREMNBAEREAREERN
ESGERMRIF—H o

AT EREETESGERE  AERZRBIL
BHARHESGEEETEZ TG -BEHF
MEETHERE  LIRERBRIMEFHE
NER BREF BEFTHURMESGEERN
BEEMRRER  Mm#EH KB kIBFRE
FEBZEAFE - EFEENTLEEEZ
REBEERMMENER RE > EFERF
BRAFKMNEZHERERERER  UREFRE
EEESGRBETERMNERE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEARBEERRS

To make sure the management of ESG issues is on the right
track, the Board has set goals and targets on the Group ESG
performance according to the identified material issues and
implemented relevant policies to improve the performance.
Besides, the Board oversees the coordination between
departments, and reviews the ESG performance as well as
progress made against the goals and targets set regularly
through Board meetings.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group understands the best way to manage its business is
having a strong collaboration with its stakeholders thus values
their interests and views, and above all, their participation.

To identify stakeholders’ insights and concerns in relevance to
business operation, the Group has been maintaining regular
communication with the major stakeholders through various
channels, which are illustrated in the table below:

A THRERESGEEZERBETEN EFER
BATHEN ZERETE] LASEBESGEMAY
BERER TEMAERBERULESEN I
S EFEEERMPIZENHBRAB R LR
BEFETRTEPRILZEBBRFTESGEIA
K ETEUS R E & o

FinEs A
FEEROEBEEBZRERERSRERF
MEEFREESERE AL BB ERFH
BEZNmAEBER URKREZ2H-

HAFNENERETEECRBEREL
FEB-—HEBTRATMZEERELETE
RpERTEHESR

Types of Expectation and Communication channels
stakeholder group requirements
R EHRNER FEHIRE K BEERE
Shareholders o Returns o Announcements
= EIE: N
o Compliant operation o Shareholders conferences
BREE RERE
o Raise company value o Email, telephone communication
RAREMEE and company website
e Transparency in information and BIE B BB R ABBLE
effective communication o Dedicated reports
BN BERERBMBES EBEER
Employees J Protection of rights o Employee mailbox
== e e cE (=
J Occupational health o Employee communication meetings
BEER EEBBEGS
o Remunerations and benefits o House journal and intranet
HEME R P &8 T 47 £ 19 Bk 4
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HEREBARS

Types of Expectation and Communication channels
stakeholder group requirements
R &EARER FAHIRER BERE
Partners o Operate with integrity o Reviews and appraisal meetings
Bt IS BERTLEE
o Equal rivalry ° Business communication
TEHFE 2 75 8 8
o Performance of contracts o Exchange and discussions
B1TE&8 MR EY
o Mutual benefit and win-win result e Engagement and cooperation
EEBEMEEFEHER AR

Government and regulators

TR BB AR

Complies with national policies,
laws and regulations
ERCEERRBERREREER
Support local economic growth
IR 7 ETIE R

Drive local employment

GEEb SRS

Pay taxes in full and on time

2 B e BRARAR

Ensure production safety

BREELEE

o Regular information reporting
EHAE R B

o Regular meetings with regulators
EHREEEREERE

o Dedicated reports
HEER

o Examinations and inspections
BEEE

Community and the public
He kAR

Improve community environment
HEMEIRIE

Participation in charity
BHENTEFE

Transparency in information

BiflZEH

o Company website
NGIE

° Announcements
N
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEARBEERRS

Materiality Assessment

In order to identify the ESG issues that are material to the
Group in formulating appropriate ESG strategies on ESG
management and determining the direction of the Report,
the Group has commissioned an independent consultant to
conduct a materiality assessment in form of online survey.
Both our internal and external stakeholders were invited to fill
in the questionnaire and score the identified 32 ESG issues in
accordance with their relevance and importance to the business
operation and the stakeholders themselves respectively. The
main stages of the materiality assessment are as follows:

BEEMMG

AP AN EBEENESGERE  UBMESGE IR
EEENESCREBABERS DM AEEE
ZEBIEBEBRE L AEETER MG
FEEBFRINBFNEREBS > LD AR
BHOEEFEERFNEESNHEBRMERE
EUHEHAN32EESCEBETITND - BEE
MG EESRAOT :

o Identify and map a list of ESG topics

Stage 1 o WA MARBIESGEAEYFR
s e Identify key stakeholder group

o HBIEEFMELHER

Stage 2 o Conduct stakeholder engagement exercise
= . EFRBHESEED

o Prioritize the most material ESG topics by materiality assessment

s BHRBEMTEEEERESG

Stage 3

BEZRBRF

FER= . Review the result of materiality assessment for ESG report
disclosure and ESG performance improvement in future

o RESGHREBFHRERESGRRBMZIZFA R EE M E4E
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Based on the materiality of each of the ESG issues expressed by
the stakeholders, the ESG issues are prioritised and shown in the

materiality matrix below.

Environmental

R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HEREBARS

EENEMEREBF ZESGHEE

Materiality Matrix

BEBEFDEHSESGEEMBNEEME > Tit

-~

Environmental Compliance

RESH

Air Pollutant Management

ERTREE

Wastewater Management

JEIKEE

Greenhouse Gas Emission

R RS R

Waste Management

EE¥)E 1R

6 Energy Consumption
AERHFE

7 Use of Water Resources
KERER

8 Use of Raw Materials and
Packaging Materials
R 8 S it B 6 AR

9 Responding to Climate Change
RIEEEM RS

10 Prevention and Handling of

Environmental Incidents

TAR K BRI IR A

~ W N

u

Note:

BEEMER
(1]
(2]
(3]
e %ba K
i) (4] (s Jo2)
£ 4
sd ® 0
i~
58
2o (25] (16)
g=
ie G @
i © 00 oo @0
g o o o
@ ®
@
Significance to the Group
HALENES
Employment and Operating Practices Community
Labour Practices 3 1 ) HE
BIRRS %5 == =
Employment Compliance 18 Operational Compliance 30 Charity
aRER aREE EE
Employees’ Remuneration and 19 Managing Environmental Risks 37 Promotion of Community
Benefits of Supply Chain Development
& 8 #r B2 R BEHERNIRIEER 1EEHEZRE
Employees’ Working Hours and 20 Managing Social Risks of Supply 32 Poverty Alleviation
Rest Period Chain HE
BB TIERF# R R BEMHEENT YRR
Diversity and Equal Opportunity 21 Procurement Practices
Lt RFEEKS PREBI1E 5
Occupational Health and Safety 22 Quality Management
BERRRZS HEEE
Training and Education 23 Customer Health and Safety
ENEHE BERREREZR
Prevention of Child Labour and 24 Responsible Sales and Marketing
Forced Labour BEEHEREH
B b2 TR 555 T 25 Customer Service Management
ERRBEE
26 Intellectual Property Protection
o E R R E
27 Research and Development
2%
28 Customer Privacy Protection
ERARRE
29 Anti-corruption
'R

The material issues are in bold and italic.

Hiat: EEFEEUHBRABIET-

—E-F5R MRAZREERRAE

269



. Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEARBEERRS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to review and
formulate corresponding ESG policies and targets, as well as
streamline the ESG reporting disclosure in order to pursue
continuous improvement in our ESG performance in the future.

RESPECTING OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group believes attracting and retaining talents is the key
to our business sustainable development; thus, employment
conditions and standards have always been our prime concerns
aligned with the materiality matrix above. We endeavour to
construct a quality workplace which values communication,
innovation, execution, and diversity. Besides, we respect and
treat our people with dignity in accordance with relevant local
laws and international industrial standards, including Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, and the Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition ("EICC") Code of Conduct.

BRERK  AEEREEERS RHEHEEZ
ESGE R B RRU KB RHESGIR S M EE » U
RIRFFENBESGERL

EEST
REBERERSIMERBAATAAFBEERE X
BER; At BEGHEREIN—BEAELE
BRI EEEE— N FERIEE
BN BIEBEIES ERERERE
BIFT~#ITH RZmibe tboh > AR IEAER
MBEFRERTERZE (BEEBRER
B FEEE ARG HERERETITELAR
B B3 (Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition)
(TEICC)) 1TR%ER) BEERFET -

bjectives

=

Provide a diversified and discrimination-free workplace

e Ensure employee occupational health and safety

Enhance employee training and personal development

Comply fully with relevant laws and regulations

Employment Practices

The Group has developed a broad range of responsible
employment practices beyond the regulatory minimum within
our organization by the implementation of employment-
related policies and procedures, including Staff Handbook,
Human Resources Management System and Labour and Ethics
Management Procedure. These policies specify our standards
concerning employee compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, vacations, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
The Human Resources Department is responsible for supervising
the enforcement of the above policies, and organizing training
to interpret policies for each new hire.
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We believe competitive remuneration packages are crucial to
motivate and retain our talents. The Group conducts reviews
and benchmarking on the staff remuneration against the peers
regularly to ensure its competitiveness in the market. Monthly
monetary bonus and discretionary bonus are granted to eligible
employees, depending on their performance. Annual salary
structure review and appraisal are also conducted to review
employees’ performance. Apart from the attractive base wages,
all employees are entitled to comprehensive insurance coverage
(eg. Five social insurance schemes and one housing fund in
PRC, and medical and life insurance in Hong Kong), overtime
compensation and different allowances etc. We also offer
adequate family leave benefits, including marriage, maternity
and birthday leaves, and stipulate appropriate working hours to
ensure employees could achieve work-life balance. Besides, we
organize annual medical check-ups and provide gym facilities for
our employees to proactively enhance employees’ health.

At Renco, fair and anti-discrimination are our workplace
values. We insist on solely scrutinizing candidates’ competency,
experience, and personal performance with strict prohibition
against discrimination in any form in relation to recruitment,
remuneration, promotion and transfer, dismissal or retirement
process. There is zero tolerance on any kind of discriminatory
behaviour, harassment or victimization at Renco, on the
basis of age, gender, religion, race, decent or place of birth,
physical disability, and sexual orientation. Employees will
only be dismissed for reasons such as lack of competence or
infringement of company policies. Whenever an employee offers
to resign or being laid off, the human resources department
would interview the relevant staff to understand the reason of
quitting and to improve the Group’s human resources policies.
Renco is also committed to providing equal opportunities for
all employees in all aspects of their work, from recruitment,
training to performance evaluation. A whistleblowing system
is in place with a dedicated team to investigate any unfair
treatment and take prompt actions.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HEREBARS

RPEBEERFHNZHFNEGTEE AR RRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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In terms of labour rights, we advocate the freedom of work
and human rights. To prevent child labour, new employees
are required to provide copies of identification documents for
age verification. All staff must be employed on a voluntary
basis by entering into employee contract, and they are able to
terminate their employment with requested notice or pay in
lieu of notice to prevent forced labour. Once child or forced
labour practices are discovered, the Group would investigate the
cases thoroughly and dismiss related employees immediately.
In addition, the Group supports freedom of association and
collective bargaining.

Besides, the Group seeks to promote a cohesive and harmonious
labour and management relationship with the belief that
mutual trust is the pre-requisite of employees’ loyalty. We
communicate with our staff regularly through staff meeting,
collecting opinions from the suggestion box and conducting
employee satisfaction survey bi-annually to identify their needs
and concerns. Their views and recommendations are highly
valued for advancing our working conditions. Furthermore, our
staff can also enjoy a wide range of recreational facilities such as
library and basketball court in the factory to take a break from
their work.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material breach of applicable laws and regulations concerning
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, other benefits and welfare and the use of child
labour and forced labour.
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Healthy and Safe Workplace

Perceiving a safe and healthy workplace is the cornerstone
of our business operation, we possess a scrupulous standard
beyond full compliance with the Production Safety Law of the
PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases and the Work Safety Law of the PRC. The
Group’s plant has obtained the ISO 45001:2015 certification,
which systemically identifies, manages and mitigates safety
risks in the production cycle. In order to minimize occupational
injury and illness at root, we are also engaged in raising
staff awareness on safe operation through regular trainings,
especially for the new hires to ensure regulatory compliance.
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ievements

e Zero significant casualties
e Zero fire and leakage incident

e 100% safety training coverage

To nurture a safe and healthy workplace, the Group has
formulated safety operating procedures, in-house rules and
emergency preparedness plans, detailing the safety precautions
for various production processes and requested employees to
strictly abide by them. Safety training is arranged according to
the nature of the posts, such as electric work, welding, chemical
handling and working in confined area, so that employees’
competency is certified prior to starting work. In addition,
hazardous chemical drills are held regularly to ensure employees
are familiarized with evacuation routes, skills of evacuation in
emergency situations, general knowledge on safe assembly
and proper application of relevant equipment to handle
chemical leakage. Apart from imprinting safety awareness
into staff’'s mind, we protect them physically by providing all
necessary personal protection equipment for corresponding
workers. During the Reporting Period, we also organised
occupation health training to raise employees’ awareness of the
potential factors affecting health by learning relevant laws and
regulations.
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In the past three years, there were no identified work-related
fatalities. During the reporting period, there were 2 work
injuries, resulting in 35 lost days.

In correspondence to the continuous outbreak of Coronavirus
disease 2019 (COVID-19), the Group has implemented a series
of preventive measures and control policy, as well as established
a COVID-19 Prevention and Control Leading Group to manage
hygiene of the work environment and carry out preventive
measures, such as providing personal protective materials to
our staff and arranging disinfection for offices and dorms. All
staff were required to wear masks, as well as measure body
temperature before entering the premise. The Group also
formulated emergency policies to report suspected cases and to
inform the management. Besides, the management has strived
its best to cooperate and support local government’s pandemic
prevention and control work, and prepared adequate pandemic
prevention supplies for employees.
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Development and Training

Professional competency and development of our employees
serve a pivotal role in our substantial business growth. The
Group pays great attention to cultivating a learning-centric
corporate culture and offering diversified training sessions.
We have established the Training Management Procedure to
improve employees’ knowledge and skills through induction,
internal and external trainings. To better meet employees’ needs
and expectation, annual training plan is set up by identifying
training needs based on employees’ education level, experience,
and skill requirements.
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Keeping abreast of technological advancement, and operational
and job diversification, we offered a variety of internal and
external coaching programs, including institutional knowledge,
operational skills, and work procedures for our workers during
the reporting period. To ensure safe operation, safety training
on chemicals and hazardous substances storage, and radiation
work were carried out. For the asset management and financial-
related services, the Group always encourages its staff to learn
continuously and acquire related professional qualifications
through reimbursing professional membership expenses to
eligible staff. In order to increase the employees’ environmental
awareness, the Group provided our staff with environmental
training on relevant environmental laws, environmental risks
identification and control of the manufacturing plant, as well as
environmental cost management.
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BUSINESS INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

As an ethical corporate, the Group upholds the highest level
of business integrity and shows zero tolerance of corruption,
bribery, extortion and fraud by the establishment of rigorous
code of conduct. The Group strictly abides by all relevant laws
and regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap.201) of HKSAR, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC, and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC and the
Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC.

Our employees are strictly prohibited from offering or accepting
any forms of advantages such as gifts, entertainment, rewards
and commission, in exchange for jobs, sales, work location or
assignment. We have Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery policy
and the code of conduct stipulated in the staff handbook, and
require all employees to read the relevant contents and sign the
declaration. Besides, employees are expected to declare every
actual or potential conflict of interest by written declaration.
Infringement of the Group’s policy is subject to dismissal
or other disciplinary actions. Internal audits are conducted
regularly to ensure compliance with policies. The Group has
set up a whistle-blowing system, in which the identities of
whistleblowers and reporting information are kept strictly
confidential. The independent investigation mechanism helps
solve all suspected cases on bribery, extortion, fraud, money-
laundering and competitive behaviour. We will report the cases
to relevant authorities (e.g. ICAC) for further handling when
necessary.

In order to enhance employees’ awareness on anti-corruption,
the Group has provided relevant self-study training materials
on anti-corruption guide for listed companies published by the
ICAC to employees. Besides, all staff has signed the Employee
Integrity Agreement to ensure honesty and integrity at work.

During the reporting period, the Group confirmed that there
were no breaches of relevant laws and regulations, and no
concluded legal cases regarding corruption practices were
brought against the Group or our employees.
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SATISFYING OUR CUSTOMERS

Supply Chain Management

Due to the nature of PCB manufacturing, various metals and
raw materials such as laminates, solder masks, gold salts,
aluminium and copper foil are involved in the manufacturing
process. It is of utmost importance to select suppliers that
provide reliable and quality services and supply. We have
developed and implemented a supplier quality management
system (“QMS"), including the Procurement Policy and
Procedure. Internal measures are implemented to govern the
selection and evaluations of suppliers and to monitor their
continuous performance on product quality and service as well
as social and environmental performance. All the potential
new suppliers are required to pass our stringent evaluation
before entering into cooperation. In the event of engaging new
suppliers, we check the compliance status of relevant laws and
regulation and evaluate the development and quality system
of the suppliers. To identify social risks, a vetting process is
conducted in respect of the business licenses, accreditations and
qualifications of suppliers, including various ISO accreditations,
to ensure suppliers’” competency, experience and their
compliance with our quality requirements. For our raw materials
and automotive product suppliers, we demand their attainment
of relevant quality standards in their management systems, such
as the ISO 9001, and IATF 16949. Assistance and necessary
training are offered to new suppliers in building their QMS
towards the mentioned standards. While for laminate suppliers,
Production Part Approval Process (“PPAP") Report is requested
for the laminates to reduce unexpected failure due to defects in
design and manufacturing.
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To identify environmental risks, relevant qualifications and
accreditations, such as test reports under the Restriction of
Hazardous Substances (“ROHS") and safety testing reports, are
taken into account. To ensure suppliers’ environmental quality,
on-site product assessments are conducted by our designated
committee, which is comprised of the representatives from the
Group’s procurement and quality assurance department and
engineers in PCBs business segment. Moreover, we hand out
Environmental Management Audit Questionnaire to suppliers
annually to assess the environmental management system. Only
after suppliers fulfil our requirements and pass the evaluation
procedures can they be included in our “Qualified Vendor List”.
In addition, they are required to sign a declaration and pledge to
against the use of materials subjected to environmental control
before signing cooperating agreements.

For existing suppliers, regular performance reviews are
conducted, assessing their product quality, service performance,
material safety, process monitoring and environmental
performance. Their place of origin is also taken into account
to prevent unethical purchase. Suppliers who fail to meet the
standards should implement corrective actions promptly, and we
will discontinue the business cooperation if they cannot pass our
evaluation consecutively. Besides, all our suppliers should follow
the requirements under the Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition ("EICC") code of conduct in their operation to ensure
the compliance of the products and services with the principle
of sustainable development and avoid compromising the quality
and safety of the Group’s products. During the reporting period,
all the suppliers of the Group are governed by the aforesaid
supplier management procedures.
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Services/Product Excellence

Manufacture of PCB with supreme quality is our utmost
dedication. We place strong emphasis on securing product
superiority in every single stage, from engaging suppliers and
clients, business operation, after-sales services, to driving
customer satisfaction. We strictly abide by the relevant
national laws and regulations regarding product quality,
safety management and customer privacy, including the
Product Quality Law of the PRC and the Law of the PRC on
the Protection of the Rights and Interests of Consumers. We
have established a QMS which is certified with international
standards of ISO 9001, IATF 16949 and ISO 138475. These
standards prescribe our requirements on enhancement of
customers’ experience, defect prevention, product innovation
and continual improvement of our QMS.

In terms of product quality and safety, the Group has formulated
and implemented a series of quality assurance management
standards and procedures, including Product Monitoring and
Measurement Control Procedure, Non-conforming Product
Control Procedure, Corrective and Preventive Measures Control
Procedure, Product Safety Control Procedure. Apart from regular
inspection of the effectiveness of the QMS, we also conduct
compliance check of every product prior to final packaging and
delivery to ensure the fulfilment beyond both the standards
of the products specifications and customers’ requirements.
Besides, we have obtained the Underwriter Laboratories
certification for raw materials such as laminates and solder
masks, and all our products are certified by the China Quality
Certifications (“CQC") Centre so that our product quality is
guaranteed and are safe to use. Top talents and advanced
equipment are employed for our product reliability. More details
can be found in the following website:

http://www.topsearch.com.hk/en/Reliability.htm
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While putting effort into product innovation, the Group places
great importance on the protection of intellectual property
rights and strictly monitors the use of patents and technologies
to prevent infringement of intellectual property rights. The
requirement and restrictions on the registration, maintenance,
and protection of intellectual property are listed in the
agreement with employees and suppliers and the Group will
pursue legal actions and seek compensation for damages to
intellectual property from those who violate the agreement.

With the dedication to become Asia’s leading professional asset
manager which bridges China and overseas markets, we always
stay thirsty and innovative to provide professional services that
exceeds market standards. The Group endeavours to keep
inventing and revamping our capital management plans and
financial products to fulfil our clients’ ever-changing demands
timely, including enhancing our service standard and expanding
its coverage. Our professional team, which is comprised of
a group of experts in fund management, private equity and
discretionary asset management, offers tailored solutions
and advisory for proper and sustainable investment and asset
management. We have Personal Account Trading Rules in place
to govern activities related to investment trading.

Besides, the Group keeps abreast of the latest information of
the regulatory authorities and related financial institutions for
our investment and asset management strategies so that our
services are complied with relevant local laws and regulations
and potentially generate optimum financial return.

During the reporting period, there was no material breach of
relevant laws and regulations pertaining to health and safety,
advertising, and labelling matters relating to products and
services provided.
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Product Innovation

The Group also puts strong focus on product innovation so as
to offer the state-of-the-art products and services. The Group
continues to invest in its research and development to pursue
technical excellence and deliver next generation solutions for
meeting our customers’ future demands and enhance cost-
efficiency. During the reporting period, the Group has jointly
collaborated and conduct research projects with two of the
top universities in the region — The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Tsinghua University, for improving its technical
competencies and bringing forth innovative ideas. More details
can be found in the following website:

http://www.topsearch.com.hk/en/Research_Development.htm

Customer Satisfaction

The Group believes customer satisfaction paves the way
to its business growth thus values their opinions most. We
have Customer Service Procedure in place to maintain an
efficient communication with our customers.
feedback is annually collected and analysed by means of
customer satisfaction survey on product return rate, customers’
complaints, and delivery lead-time. The Group will identify
the area of improvement and formulate corresponding action
plans in accordance to the survey result. Our continuous
improvement on product and service quality is therefore highly
driven by our customers’ feedback. The effectiveness of the
implemented measures are also regularly accessed by the quality
assurance department. In addition, we have published thorough
procedures on handling customer complaints. Prompt actions
will be taken to investigate the cases and respond to clients.
We will carry out remedial action plans where necessary and
the root cause will be analysed to prevent similar cases from
reoccurrence to build up customer’s confidence and keep up
reputation. During the reporting period, there were no products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons,
and no customer complaint was received.

Customers’

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HEREBARS

E m Bl

FEBT+HEEERAN  UEHRIFERX
R - AEEFERENE  LUEK =
B R —RERSRE mETRZXR
RERRBANARY G - RSB ~EE
BHEAMAIBRARBE-EBEIARERFE
REHBEIFRETHRIER » S H KM
BENKRBERAFES - ARESHBE FHE
LU 480k

https://www.topsearch.com.hk/index_chi.htm

ERWERE
rEEEGEERAEERNREAEHER
Et  AEEBRAEREFZER -HMER
IERRBERF  BERFRIFAMBR A&
ESEEBEMERREX - ZTRRFLRE
REZERmnEERERERITERZE
R-AEBERREAEERAFTERNS 28
BhkbERETHE it TR ZRER
BRAKEEFEEFENSERRRBER
BERESPITEMRTERAETZIERZK
Mo ltbsh > R EBMEIER P RFZFMAE
Feo R EBRRIARTHRAEBERCER
F-ZfIRNAERERFETHIITHE B
REDMRARE HEBRHFELUES
DEIEREORRFEE RSB §
BEMRNUEREZERNZEREEERM
ATARL FEEERRRT

SEC—E45H MHZREEERAT 281



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEARBEERRS

Confidentiality and Privacy

The Group safeguards confidentiality throughout the operations
in all our business operation. We have formulated the Corporate
Management Manual and Information and Data Confidentiality
Regulation to guide our departments and staff at all levels to
deal with confidential and sensitive information (e.g. employee
personal data, corporate information, inside information,
trade secrets, customer’s product designs and technologies,
intellectual properties etc.). The Group is committed to building
mutual trust with our customers at all times. Understanding how
indispensable privacy means to our clients, we always identify
it as an issue of critical concern. All our staff are required to
follow general provision of confidential information protection
stipulated in the Staff Handbook. Employees are prohibited from
copying, transferring and disclosing the restricted information
without prior consent from the management or customers. In
addition, all employees and suppliers are demanded to sign
the nondisclosure agreement before entering into contracts.
Violation of the company policy is subject to dismissal or other
disciplinary actions.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
material non-compliance of applicable laws and regulations
relating to privacy matters, including Securities and Futures
Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group values and advocates sustainable development,
and recognizes our obligation in establishing an effective
environmental management system for environmental
protection, especially in the manufacturing segment. We seek
every opportunity to improve the efficiency of our operation by
reducing the consumption of energy and raw materials and have
formulated a comprehensive set of environmental policies and
supporting procedures covering greenhouse gas emissions and
resource usage.
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The Group complies with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC, Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Emergency
Response Law of the PRC, Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311) of Hong Kong and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.
354) of Hong Kong. During the reporting period, the Group
was not aware of any material violations regarding relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

For the manufacturing business, the Group has established an
environmental management system (“EMS”) which is certified
by 1SO14001:2015 to identify, manage and mitigate the
environmental risks of the manufacturing process. We have also
set up the Environmental Committee to supervise and prompt
the continuous improvement of the system. The committee
monitors the progress of environmental objectives and targets,
reviews environmental risks, and evaluates the EMS regularly. It
is also responsible for identifying national and local government
emission standards and formulating the Group's environmental
protection strategy accordingly. During the reporting period, the
Group continued to make effort in fulfilling our environmental
conservation objectives.
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Objectives

Bz

e Optimise resources and energy efficiency

e Redauce greenhouse gas emission

e Reuse and recycle all valuable materials and reduce wastage
e Procure green raw materials

e Comply fully with relevant emissions laws and regulations
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Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The major air pollutant emission of the Group is from the
manufacturing of PCB, which generates air pollutants such as
volatile organic compounds, ammonia and acidic/alkaline mist.
To manage air pollutant emissions from the manufacturing
of PCB, gas purification towers, such as wet scrubbers and
acidic/alkaline degassing chambers are installed to absorb the
organic particulates and neutralise the mist. To standardise the
operation and inspection of the purification towers, the Group
has established the Air Emission Control Operational Procedure,
detailing the frequency for monitoring and instruction for
a third-party
institution has assessed the concentration of air pollutants for
the manufacturing of PCB and no violation of the Emission
Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) has been detected.

maintenance. During the reporting period,

Also, a small amount of air pollutants are generated from
vehicle usage for the Group’s daily operation. To reduce the
air pollutants from vehicles, the Group regularly maintains and
inspects the vehicles to ensure the fleets are properly tuned and
avoid idling vehicles.

The Group generates greenhouse gas directly from the
combustion of fuels in vehicles and during cooking in the
canteen, and indirectly from electricity consumption, water
consumption and paper waste discarded at landfills. To reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, the Group has adopted a number
of measures to reduce resources consumption and wastage as
mentioned in Resource Management.
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Wastewater Discharge

The major wastewater discharge of the Group is from the
manufacturing process of PCBs, which consists of a high
concentration of metal ions, acids/alkaline and organic
substances. The wastewater is treated by our in-house
wastewater treatment facilities with processes such as pH
adjustment, coagulation and acid hydrolysis before reuse or
discharge. The Group has established the Wastewater Treatment
Operational Procedure to regulate the operation and inspection
of the wastewater treatment facilities. During the reporting
period, the Group has assigned a third-party institution to
conduct routine tests on effluent to ensure the fulfilment of
national regulatory standards, including the Discharge Standard
of Water Pollutants for Electroplating (DB44/1597-2015).

Waste Management

The Group generates both hazardous waste and non-hazardous
waste from its operation. The manufacturing business generates
several types of hazardous wastes such as copper-containing
sludge and acidic/alkaline waste. Non-hazardous waste of the
Group includes waste paper, metal, plastic and daily office
garbage.

Recognising the potential repercussion these waste could have
on the environment as well as our worker safety without proper
handling, the Group has established the Guidelines for Waste
Handling to effectively process the hazardous and nonhazardous
waste generated from the manufacturing business as classified
by the Directory of National Hazardous Wastes of the PRC.
Hazardous waste is classified by its properties, stored in proper
containers with appropriate labels and is transferred to and
handled by qualified waste collection companies. For the
manufacturing business, non-hazardous waste is collected by
recyclable or non-recyclable categories and is then recycled or
collected by local waste treatment companies.

To effectively reduce waste produced by the Group, we have
built a sludge dehumidification facility for the manufacturing
business, which was designed to reduce the water concentration
of the sludge from 80% to 30%. As a result, the amount of
waste could be greatly reduced.
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Noise Management

The Group understands the noise we generate during the
manufacturing process may pose disturbance to nearby
residents, we have implemented sufficient noise control
measures for noise and vibration arising from the operation of
the plant. All the facilities and equipment that produce loud
noise levels are surrounded by sound-absorbing materials and
are installed with enclosures or erected barriers so as to abide
by the applicable national laws and provincial regulations
such as the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprise Noise
at Boundary (GB 12348-2008). During the reporting period,
the Group has hired third-party professional companies to
conduct regular inspections to maintain the effectiveness of
the measures. Besides, in order to effectively manage the noise
produced from the plant operation, the Group has conducted
weekly monitoring work to record the noise level of the
manufacturing plant.

Resources Management

Being one of the leading manufacturers of PCB, the Group
keeps exploring opportunities to save resources during business
operation. Energy, water, paper and packaging materials are the
main types of resources consumed by the Group, among which
electricity constitutes the biggest part of energy consumption,
in addition to a small amount of fuels used for vehicles. The
Group follows the 3R principles (i.e. reduce, reuse and recycle)
and monitors the use of electricity, water, paper and packaging
materials, thus effectively control the use of resources.
Procurement is made based on the stock and future demand
analysis to avoid over-ordering and unnecessary resource
consumption. The Group reuses resources, including treated
wastewater, and recycles non-hazardous waste to maximise
resource efficiency. In an effort to reduce the use of water, the
Group has installed an automatic screen washing machine to
avoid manual washing process, which greatly reduced water
usage in the screen washing process. During the reporting
period, there was no issue with sourcing water fit for the
purpose of the operation of the Group.
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=l—

To raise awareness of its employees on environmental protection AT i2E

ETHIRFEHRLEERIRR &

and promotes the 3R principles, the Group posts signs in SEEEERMBBEMERES R WREST
conspicuous and relevant locations to remind its employees to EINE R - HFATEETIFMAT HEEKRE
save resources. We have also listed in the Employee Handbook #X3EHe > Wt WS EFKEH EL B R AEIES]

measures for energy and paper saving and established a Green EB#BWTF :

Office Guideline for the manufacturing business as follows:

Electricity

Procure equipment

that is energy saving

or with greater energy
efficiency
REBETRES A A (A
R 2 5%

Set all the electrical
appliances to energy saving

mode and switch off when
they are not in use

FRB BRKRTE AR
N RN A ER
Maintain the office
temperature at 23 - 25°C
AR E MR R K23
F25E

Carry out regular
inspection and faucet
leakage tests

EHAE KBRS T IR B
K22 Rl E

Keep the faucets off when
they are not in use
KEEBENERAR KA
IR EFRA A

Promote e-platform for
internal information
circulation

BETHASERGERZ
EFFEH
Encourage the use of

recycled paper and
double sided printing

wEfERBEMRER
FTEN

Place recycle box to
collect waste paper

T E (o] W A8 DA & BE AT

TEI-F5R WMEEREEARAR
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group stays proactive in managing emerging environmental
risks and advancing our performance in pursuit of long-
term and sustainable operation. We fulfil our sustainable
commitment by prudent selection of manufacturing materials
for our manufacturing business. We follow the EU Restriction of
Hazardous Substances to restrict the use of hazardous materials,
such as lead, mercury, and cadmium for our production cycle.
Also, through adopting various surface finishing techniques,
such as Organic Solderability Preservative, Electroless Nickel
Immersion Gold and Immersion Silver, our products are lead-
free and halogen-free, which produces minimum impacts to the
environment.

During the reporting period, the Group has utilized the facility
we constructed to collect and reuse the copper and nickel metal
from wastewater generated from the manufacturing of PCB.

The Group also lays emphasis on handling environmental
emergencies by setting the Environmental Emergency Response
Plan for the manufacturing business. The Group has identified
man-made and natural sources of workplace environmental
hazard and developed the emergency response plans
respectively, covering the excessive discharge of wastewater
from wastewater treatment facilities, accidental emissions of
exhaust gases, spillage and leachate of sludge, fire disaster and
the leakage of hazardous chemicals, liquids and heavy metals.
To ensure our workers are familiar with the precautionary
measures, emergency response and reporting channels
stipulated in the plan, we have provided training and organised
emergency drills during the reporting period.
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Climate Change

Climate change has attracted widespread international attention
and the risks associated may have negative impacts on the
Group's businesses. We have thereby identified different
climate-related physical risks such as the increase in extreme
weather events and changes in precipitation patterns which
could pose threats to the Group’s environmental and even
financial performance due to a decrease in productivity. Climate
change may also pose transition risks to the Group such as shifts
in consumer preferences. Besides, the Group’s operational cost
may increase because of the increased environmental reporting
obligation and the strengthened specifications for existing
products and services.

The Group will keep reviewing local policies and regulatory
updates to identify potential climate-related risks and has
developed an environmental risk inventory based on the
possibility and impact of the identified risks. Safety warning
systems and special working arrangements are put in place
to ensure the safety of employees and on-site workers during
extreme weather conditions or events.

ENGAGING THE COMMUNITY

The Group attaches great importance to the interaction with the
wider community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility. In
light of community investment, the Group donated RMB 100,000
to Shaanxi Ankang Charity Association so as to alleviate poverty
and help the disadvantaged groups. Moreover, the Group
believes only if we treasure natural materials wholeheartedly
can we educate our community to protect the environment.
We understand environmental protection is of everyone
responsibility thus we will seize the chances to organise more
meaningful events relating to environment for the public in the
future.
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Social Performance

R E
HEEX

2020
—E-EHF

Employment

&1

Number of Employees

BEAK

252

201

By Age Group
HEE AR B 52
Below 30
30 LT
30 to 50
3058 E508%
Over 50
50 ML b

92

158

50

122

29

By Gender
HIERE 52
Female
Z%
Male
B

97

155

96

105

By Geographical Region
it & s 2

Hong Kong

B

PRC

Bl

16

236

190

By Employment Type
BEEERE S
Full-time
28
Part-time

FE

252

201

Employee Turnover Rate (%)’
BEREKER(%)

136

290
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2020 2021
—TTHF —T”_—F

By Age Group'’

R AR B 2
Below 30 / 96
30 LR
30 to 50 / 151
305% £505%
Over 50 / 181
5078 LA =

By Gender!’

eI E b
Female / 120
pegics
Male / 148
B

By Geographical Region'

it & & 5
Hong Kong 44
aB
PRC 142
o

Average Hours of Training per Employee and
Percentage (%) of Employees Trained 8.43(94) 8.62 (100)
B EE N FIIER B R IERIENES R A 5 (%)

By Gender

b2 S FalIE b
Female 8.44(94) 8.78 (100)
ol
Male 8.42(94) 8.47 (100)
S

By Employee Category?

B{EEERE 52
Senior / 5.00 (100)
= 4R
Middle / 7.69 (100)
AR
Junior / 7.35 (100)
H#R
Others / 9.00 (100)
HAth
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2020 2021
—_EZH —E_—%F
Distribution of Suppliers
HEEE D
Number of Key Suppliers 13 17
ZHEBHE
By Geographical Region
& & 53
Guangdong 7 9
=R
Jiangsu 2 2
JL Bk
Anhui 1 1
2
Jiangxi 1 1
PN}
Shandong 1 1
LR
Zhejiang 1 1
yiipan
Chongging 0 1
B5E
Hubei 0 1
G
Note: Wizt -

1. Figures of employee turnover rate are disclosed from FY2021 1. {EBEARAFH_ T —FHBHFEERLRE-

onwards.
2. REEBENIASNESRLEEMNTHBZINEFH
2. Figures of average hours of training per employee and percentage REZEIBEENEDLEE S —FHK
of employees trained by employee category are disclosed from FERKEE-

FY2021 onwards.
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Environmental Performance IRIBEN
Unit 2020 2021
Bl —E-sF  —®-—%
Emissions
BERK
Water pollutants from manufacturing of PCB
BY 35 EN Rl 48 B& AR BY 7K 55 24
Chemical oxygen demand Tonne 51.13 55.67
i=—=k=§- i
Ammonia nitrogen Tonne 3.01 6.71
A 148
Total nitrogen Tonne 15.27 12.94
ARES i
Air pollutants from manufacturing of PCB
SIS ENR 4R BR AR BV R RIS 4
Nitrogen oxides Tonne 4.94 5.43
KAy i
Sulphuric acid mist Tonne 10.28 10.79
P B i
Ammonia Tonne 18.73 17.79
=, 48
VOCs Tonne 0.25 0.30
BEEEEY i
Particulate matter Tonne 5.01 6.35
EETaEY)| i
ZEZ—FFF RMEEREESRARE 293
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Unit 2020 2021
Bl ZEZTHF T —F
Air pollutants from vehicle usage’
ERARENERTRY
Nitrogen oxides Kg 400.68 426.96
EalE=K( oY) NN
Sulfur dioxide Kg 0.85 0.99
—&|1EH /N
Particulate matter Kg 32.67 35.00
FERIH) NI
Waste
BE4)
Non-hazardous Waste’
mEREY°
Total Tonne 570.14 535.88
“act g
Waste paper Tonne 142.54 139.43
BEAR g
Waste metals Tonne 420.66 388.65
BT & 7
Waste plastic Tonne 6.95 7.76
R I
Intensity’ Tonne per
1000ft? PU* 0.09 0.04
BE Mg 1,000 75 R
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Unit 2020 2021
B i ZTTEE T —F
Hazardous Waste?
BEEY
Total Tonne 7,393.89 6,907.04
Hazt L3
Copper-containing sludge Tonne 2,266.86 1,791.11
R ENENE I
Acidic waste? Tonne 2,663.02 2,407.19
& 14 BE Y g
Alkaline waste® Tonne 1,424.24 1,405.94
4 BE Y0 L3
PCB waste Tonne 563.71 719.09
EI ) 43 B8 1 BE 4 Mg
Tin-containing wastewater Tonne 329.79 328.61
= EE K U3
Others® Tonne 146.28 255.09
HAthe L3
Intensity’ Tonne per
1000ft? PU 1.16 1.05
BE Mg, 1,000 75 R
FEEA
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Unit 2020 2021
Bl ZEZTHF T —F
Resources Consumption
BIRHFE
Total Energy Use MWh 75,791.08 75,482.00
RERERBE JKELBF
Direct Energy Use”
BEXERERE
Mobile Combustion MWh 530.40 614.64
B R I5E JKELBF
Stationary Combustion MWh 98.68 78.94
[E] 7E ) ¥ JKELBF
Indirect Energy Use
BiESERERAE
Electricity MWh 75,162.00 74,788.42
E JKE B
Intensity
B
Manufacturing Business’ MWh per
1000ft? PU 11.89 11.41
BUSETE KEE,
1,000 5 R
FEBAL
HK Businesses MWh per
full-time
employee 11.33 16.39
BEBER KEE,
LEBER
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Unit 2020 2021
Efl —ETF ZEZ—F
Water Consumption?®
FEKE®
Total m?3 1,850,831.00 1,722,244.00
#a st K
Intensity’ m3 per
1000ft? PU 290.94 261.02
3 s THKS
1,000 75 R
FEEM
Packaging Materials
230
Total Tonne 131.64 127.80
4@t I
Intensity’ Tonne per
1000ft? PU 0.02 0.02
s W& 1,000 5 R
FEBAI
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Unit 2020 2021
B i ZEZTHF 2 —F
Greenhouse Gas Emissions’
= mEEHEe
Total tCO2e 41,460.54 40,902.86
45t WA bRk EE
Direct Emission (Scope 1) 1CO2e 1,122.72 812.73
BEEYm (BE—) Wb EE
Indirect Emission (Scope 2)"’ tCO2e 39,633.06 39,435.12
BEHEm (BET) 7 W _EEikEE
Other Indirect Emission (Scope 3)? tCO2e 704.76 655.00
HtnR s (BES) » = (et
Intensity’
B
Manufacturing Business’ tCO2e per
1000ft? PU 6.50 6.19
RS X W —FIiEE
/1,000 /5 R4
72 BB (1]
HK Businesses tCOze per
full-time
employee 5.14 7.20
BEAER W —FIiEE
S BEHES
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Note:

The emission factors used are from Appendix 2 “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (“Appendix 2”) and the guidelines on greenhouse
gas emission accounting and reporting provided by the National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") of the PRC. The
Global Warming Potential (GWP) is updated in accordance with
the IPCC AR6 WGI Report.

The Group also generates a very small amount of general office
waste during operation which is considered insignificant and is
managed by the property management company, hence no data is
available.

1000ft? PU is the production unit which implies 1,000 square feet
of product produced.

Acidic waste includes acidic copper-containing waste liquor and
acidic waste etchant.

Alkaline waste includes alkaline waste etchant.

Others include the other hazardous waste generated from
the production of PCBs, including waste laboratory analytical
fluid, waste mineral oil, developer solution, nickel-containing
wastewater, gold-containing wastewater, screenwash water,ink
cans, organic cleaning waste, empty can of gold salt, ion
exchange resin, film and photosensitive film, filter wool and
activated carbon.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of unleaded petrol
and diesel oil consumption to energy units are in reference to CDP
Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh.

The volume of water use covers the manufacturing business only.
There is no separate water bill for the Hong Kong office as it is
included in the property management fee.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is based on
Appendix 2 and the Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong
published by EPD and EMSD. The Group inventory includes carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. For ease of reading and
understanding, the greenhouse gas emissions data is presented in
tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e).
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10.

11.

12.

300

Scope 1 covers the emissions from stationary combustion sources,
mobile combustion sources, fugitive emissions from the use of
refrigerants and removals from tree planting. The emission factors
used are from Appendix 2 and the guidelines on greenhouse gas
emission accounting and reporting provided by the NDRC.

Scope 2 covers the emissions from purchased electricity from
power companies. The calculation is based on the average carbon
dioxide emission factor of China regional power grid provided by
the NDRC and the emission factor provided by The Hong Kong
Electric Co., Limited.

Scope 3 covers the emissions from water consumption and paper
waste disposal and is calculated based on Appendix 2. There is no
record of air business travel of employees due to the outbreak of
COVID-19.
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RENCO HOLDINGS

Unit 2707, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong
BBEIEE8ITHE RO E2707E

Tel BiE : (852) 2710 2323 E-mail B2 : info@renco.com.hk
Fax f8E : (852) 2323 8137 Website 4331t : www.renco.com.hk
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